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NoƟ ce is hereby given that 64th Annual General MeeƟ ng 
of the shareholders of the Deepak Industries Limited will 
be held at  16, Hare Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 001 on 
Tuesday, the 17th September, 2019 at 2.00P M to transact 
the following business:-
Ordinary Business:
1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Balance 

Sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 and 
the statement of  profi t and loss for the year ended 
on that date together with the reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors of the Company thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the year 
ended 31st March 2019.

3. To appoint a director in place of Shri Pradip Kumar 
Daga (Holding DIN No.00040692) who reƟ res by 
rotaƟ on and being eligible off ers himself for re-
appointment.

Special Business:
4. To consider and if thought fi t to pass the following 

resoluƟ on as an ordinary resoluƟ on:
 “RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to secƟ on 148(3) and 

all other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneraƟ on of the Cost 
Auditors M/s. SPK Associates, Cost Accountants, 
Kolkata (Firm’s RegistraƟ on No. 000040) for 
conducƟ ng the audit of the cost records of the 
company for the year 2019-20 determined by the 
Board of Directors of the Company at Rs 50,000/- 
(apart from service tax including cess as applicable 
and out of pocket expenses)  be and is hereby 
approved and raƟ fi ed.” 

5. To consider and if thought fi t to pass the following 
resoluƟ on as special resoluƟ on

 “Resolved that pursuant to secƟ on 149 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (including any statutory amendments or re-
enactments thereof for the Ɵ me being in force) 
and read with rules made there under  and read 
with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
provisions of the SecuriƟ es & Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 as amended Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ , 
being more than 75 years of age and  Independent 
Director (DIN No. 00066344) of the Company 
whose term of offi  ce as an Independent Director of 
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N O T I C E
the Company is expiring on 30/09/2019 be and is 
hereby conƟ nued and re-appointed as Independent 
director for another term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years 
from 01/10/2019 to 30/09/2024 and who shall not 
be liable to reƟ rement by rotaƟ on”

6. To consider and if thought fi t to pass the following 
resoluƟ on as special resoluƟ on

 “Resolved that pursuant to secƟ on 149 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (including any statutory amendments 
or re-enactments thereof for the Ɵ me being in 
force) and read with rules made there under 
and read with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 
2013  and provisions of the SecuriƟ es & Exchange 
Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 as amended Shri 
Anand Prasad Agarwalla, Independent Director 
(DIN No. 00312652) of the Company whose term of 
offi  ce as an Independent Director of the Company 
is expiring on 30/09/2019 be and is hereby re-
appointed as Independent director for another 
term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years from 01/10/2019 
to 30/09/2024 and who shall not be liable to 
reƟ rement by rotaƟ on.”

7. To consider and if thought fi t to pass the following 
resoluƟ on as special resoluƟ on

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to SecƟ on 197 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RegulaƟ on 17(6) of the SEBI 
(LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 and including any statutory 
modifi caƟ on or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵ me 
being in force, consent of the shareholders of the 
company, be and is hereby given  that  the Non-
ExecuƟ ve Directors of the Company who are neither 
in whole-Ɵ me employment of the Company nor 
Managing/Whole-Ɵ me Director of the Company, 
be paid in addiƟ on to the siƫ  ng fees for aƩ ending 
the meeƟ ngs of the Board or CommiƩ ees thereof 
and reimbursement of expenses, a commission, at 
a rate not exceeding one percent of the net profi ts 
of the Company for any fi nancial year, including the 
fi nancial year 2018-19, subject however to such 
ceiling if any, as the Board may, from Ɵ me to Ɵ me 
fi x within the aforesaid limit of 1% of the net profi t, 
in that behalf for any year if the Board so decides, 
and the same to be divided amongst the Non 
ExecuƟ ve Directors in such manner as the Board 
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may determine ”
 Resolved that the commission paid to the non-

execuƟ ve directors be and are hereby raƟ fi ed by the 
shareholders.

 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving 
eff ect to this resoluƟ on, the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to take all acƟ ons and to do all such acts, 

N O T E S

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY/ PROXIES 
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A 
person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate 
not more than ten percent of the total share capital 
of the Company carrying voting rights. A person 
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of 
the company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person can not act a 
proxy for any person or shareholder.

 The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, 
should be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted 
on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be 
supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, 
as applicable.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out 
details relating to Special Business at the meeting, 
is annexed hereto.

3. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting 
held on 29/05/2019 have recommended a dividend 
of Rs.10/- per equity share subject to approval of 
the shareholders and accordingly the shareholders 
are requested  to approve the dividend resolution 
of Rs.10/- per equity share.

4. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer 
books of the Company will remain closed from 
11.09.2019 to 17.09.2019 (date of AGM) (both 
days inclusive) for annual closing and payment of 
dividend.

5. Company has appointed M/S Maheshwari Data-
matics Private Limited, 23, R N Mukherjee Road, 5th 
Floor, Kolkata – 700 001, as its Registrar and Transfer 
Agents (RTA) for both physical and demat segment 
of equity shares. Members are requested to send all 
their correspondence at the above address of RTA. 
For any communication, the shareholders may also 

send requests to email ids: mdpldc@yahoo.com 
and secretary@dil-india.com. 

6. Members holding shares in the same name under 
different Ledger Folios are requested to apply for 
consolidation of such Folios and send relevant share 
certificates to the above referred Registrar for doing 
the needful.

7. Members holding physical share certificates are 
requested to get their shares demated by opening 
of a DP Account with a Depository Participant to 
facilitate corporate actions by the Company and 
also give a copy of the pan to the Registrar or the 
Company.

8. Members are requested to notify change in address, 
if any, immediately to the above referred Registrar 
quoting their Folio numbers.

9. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are 
advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company of any change in address or demise of 
any member as soon as possible. Members are 
also advised not to leave their demat account(s) 
dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 
should be obtained from the concerned Depository 
Participant and holdings should be verified. 

10. In terms of circulars issued by The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), it is now mandatory 
to furnish a copy of Permanent Account Number 
Card (PAN Card) to the company or its Registrars 
and Transfer Agents in cases of Transfer of shares, 
Deletion of name, Transmission of shares and 
Transposition of shares.  Shareholders are requested 
to furnish copy of PAN Card for all the above 
mentioned transactions.

11. Details under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 in 
respect of the Directors seeking appointment/
re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
forms integral part of the notice. The Directors 
have furnished the requisite declarations for their 
appointment/re-appointment.

12. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2018-
19 is being sent to all the members whose email 
IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 
Participants(s) for communication purposes unless 

deeds, maƩ ers and things, as it may in its absolute 
discreƟ on deem necessary, proper or desirable and 
to seƩ le any quesƟ on, diffi  culty or doubt that may 
arise in this regard.”

Place: Kolkata
Date:  29/05/2019

By Order of the Board
V D MALL

Company Secretary
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any member has requested for a physical copy of 
the same. For members who have not registered 
their email addresses, physical copy of the Annual 
Report for 2017-2018 is being sent in the permitted 
mode. 

13. Members are requested  to note that dividends, if 
not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years 
from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company are liable to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
Further, the shares in respect of such unclaimed 
dividends are also liable to be transferred to the 
demat account of the IEPF Authority.  In view of this, 
Members / Claimants are requested to claim their 
dividends from the Company within the stipulated 
timeline

14. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (uploading of information 
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with 
companies ) Rules , 2012 the company has uploaded 
details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend amounts 
lying with the Company as on 14th September, 2018 ( 
the date of the last Annual General Meeting ) on the 
website of the company www.dil-india.com and also 
on the website of the Ministry of corporate affairs.

15. Electronic copy of the Notice of the General Meetings 
of the Company inter alia indicating the process 
and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip 
and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members 
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants(s) for communication 
purposes unless any member has requested for a 
physical copy of the same. For members who have 
not registered their email address, physical copies 
of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company inter alia indicating the process and 
manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and 
Proxy Form is being sent by the permitted mode.

16. Members may also note that the Notice of the  
Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 
for 2018-19  is also be available on the Company’s 
website www.dil-india.com for their download. 
The physical copies of the aforesaid documents 
will also be available at the Company’s Registered 
Office for inspection during normal business 
hours on working days. Even after registering for 
e-communication, members are entitled to receive 
such communication in physical form, upon making 
a request for the same, by post free of cost.

17. Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice 
and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during normal business hours (11.00 am to 5.00 
pm) on all working days except Saturdays  upto and 
including the date of the Annual General Meeting of 

the Company.
18. Institutional Members/Bodies Corporate (i.e, other 

than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution /Attorney letter etc. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote through 
e-mail at secretary@dil-india.com with a copy 
marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or  
before 16.09.2019 upto 5.00 p.m. without which 
the  vote shall not be treated as valid.

19. The Company has appointed Shri Pravin Kumar 
Drolia, practising Company Secretary (Certificate of 
Practice No. 1362) as Scrutinizer for conducting the 
remote e-voting and voting process at the AGM in a 
fair and transparent manner.

20. The Company has connectivity with both NSDL and 
CDSL under ISIN No INE485J01016.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS
Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 
2015, the Company is pleased to provide its members the 
facility of “remote (e-voting from a place other than the 
venue at AGM) to exercise their right to vote at the AGM 
by electronic means. The business may be transacted 
through e-voting services rendered by Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
The facility through remote e-voting shall also be made 
available at the venue of the AGM. Only those members 
attending the meeting, who have not already cast their 
vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 
their voting rights at the meeting. The members who 
have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may 
attend the meeting but shall not be able to cast their vote 
again at the AGM.
The Company has appointed Shri Pravin Kumar Drolia, 
practising Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 
1362) as Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting 
and voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent 
manner.
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are 
as under:
(i) The remote E-voting period begins on 14.09.2019  

at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 16.09.2019 at 5.00 
p.m. During this period, shareholders of the 
Company holding shares either in physical form 
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 
(record date) of 10/09/2019 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by CDSL after 5.00 p.m. on 16.09.2019. 

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting 
website www.evotingindia.com 
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(iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(iv) Now Enter your User ID
 a. For CDSL : 16 digits beneficiary ID,
 b. For  NSDL : 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
 c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company, excluding 

the special characters.
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting 

of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below :

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric * PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository ParƟ cipant are 
requested to use the fi rst two characters of their name and the eight digit sequence number in 
the  PAN fi eld.  

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the 
number aŌ er the fi rst two characters in CAPITAL leƩ ers. Eg. if your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN fi eld.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said demat 
account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 

Bank Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 
said demat account or folio.

Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If  both details are not recorded with 
the depository or company please enter the member id/folio number in the Dividend Bank details fi eld 
as menƟ oned in instrucƟ on (vii)

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will 
then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form 
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their 
login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the 
demat holders for voting for resolutions of any 
other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided  that company opts for e-voting through 
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, 
the details can be used only for e voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant “Deepak Industries 
Limited” on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO 

as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option No  implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTION FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to 
vote on, click on “SUBMIT” A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on “OK” else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by 
you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same 
password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s 
mobile app m-Voting available for android based 
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded 
from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone 



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

5

users can download the app from the App Store and 
the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 
30th June 2016. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile.

(xix) Note for Institutional Shareholders :
 • Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF,NRI etc.) are required to 
log on to https:/www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves as Corporates.    

 • A scanned copy of the Registration Form 
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

 • After receiving the login details they have to 
create compliance user using the admin login 
and password. The Compliance user would be 
able to link the account(s) for which they wish 
to vote on.

 • The list of accounts should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able 
to cast their vote.

 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
and Power of Attorney(POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if 
any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(xxi) The Scrutinizer will submit his report on 19.09.2019 
before 12.00 p.m. and the result will be announced 
on 19.09.2019 before 3.00 p.m. by any director. 
The request will be placed on the website of the 
Company www.dil-india.com and the website of 
CDSL and communicated to The Calcutta  Stock 
Exchange Limited where the equity shares of the 
Company are listed.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

RelaƟ ng to item No.4

Under the provisions of secƟ on 148(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Cos (Audit & Auditors) 
rules, 2014 the remuneraƟ on of the cost auditors 
is required to be raƟ fi ed by the shareholders of the 
Company and your directors recommend the resoluƟ ons 
for approval of the members by Ordinary resoluƟ ons.

None of the Directors and Key Management Personnel of 
the Company and their relaƟ ves is concerned or interested 
in this resoluƟ on fi nancially or otherwise.

RelaƟ ng to item No.5

Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ , Independent Non-execuƟ ve Director 
of the company was appointed as an Independent Director 
in the Annual General MeeƟ ng held on 25/09/2014 for 
a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years from 01/10/2014 Ɵ ll 
30/09/2019. 

Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ   more than 75 years of age is a  merit 
listed Chartered Accountant , Cost and Management 
Accountant, M. Com. ReƟ red as Chairman and Managing 
Director of M/s. Andrew Yule & Co. Ltd. (a Group Company) 
aŌ er serving the Company for 22 years. He served the 6 
years as Chairman and Managing Director and prior to that 
as Director (Finance) for 7 years. He was also the Chairman 
of the Group and had an excellent service career. Served as 
Chairman of other Group companies like Tide Water Oil (I) 
Co. Ltd., DPSC, DESCON, Phoenix Yule Co. Ltd. etc A well-
known professional in corporate management, strategic 
planning and fi nance, Life Fellow Member of the Council 
of ArbitraƟ on (FICA), also and Associate Member of Indian 
Chamber of Commerce, served as Nominee Director of 
IDBI, IIBI, UTI etc. in number of companies. ReƟ red as an 
Independent Director of a large Central Govt. PSU selected 
by PSEB. Served as members of the Board in 6 companies 
of which in 2 as non-execuƟ ve Chairman of companies. 
He served as member / chairman of several commiƩ ees 
of the Board. He also serves as the Senior Partner of an 
Audit fi rm. He also serves as Arbitrator and Management 
Consultant. 

His advice and in depth knowledge parƟ cularly in 
Engineering Company has always been benefi cial to the 
Company. During his tenure, the Company has immensely 
been benefi Ʃ ed from his advice and guidance. Despite of 

his aƩ aining 75 years he is in good health and is regular 
in aƩ ending to his job as independent director. He has 
aƩ ended all the meeƟ ng of the Board and CommiƩ ee of 
which he is a member.

Upon consideraƟ on of the benefi ts received by the 
company from his good advices Ɵ me to Ɵ me, the Board 
is of the opinion that his conƟ nuaƟ on as Independent 
Director of the Company for the another term of fi ve 
consecuƟ ve years will be immensely benefi cial to all 
stakeholders, and recommend the shareholders passing of 
this resoluƟ on as special resoluƟ on.

None of the Directors, KMPs and their relaƟ ves are 
concerned or interested fi nancially or otherwise in this 
resoluƟ on except the appointee and his relaƟ ve.

RelaƟ ng to item No.6

Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla., Independent Non-
execuƟ ve Director of the company was appointed as an 
Independent Director in the Annual General MeeƟ ng held 
on 25/09/2014 for a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years from 
01/10/2014 Ɵ ll 30/09/2019. 

Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, a Solicitor and Advocate, is a 
well known Advocate in Kolkata.  He is associated with the 
Company as director since 30/03/2002.

His advice and in depth knowledge parƟ cularly in law and 
administraƟ on has always been benefi cial to the Company. 
During his tenure, the Company has immensely been 
benefi Ʃ ed from his advice and guidance. He is in good 
health and is regular in aƩ ending to his job as independent 
director. He has aƩ ended all the meeƟ ng of the Board and 
CommiƩ ee of which he is a member.

Upon consideraƟ on of the benefi ts received by the 
company from his good advices Ɵ me to Ɵ me, the Board 
is of the opinion that his conƟ nuaƟ on as Independent 
Director of the Company for the another term of fi ve 
consecuƟ ve years will be immensely benefi cial to all 
stakeholders, and  recommend the shareholders passing 
of this resoluƟ on as special resoluƟ on.

None of the Directors, KMPs and their relaƟ ves are 
concerned or interested fi nancially or otherwise in this 
resoluƟ on except the appointee and his relaƟ ve.

RelaƟ ng to item No.7

In order to reward the non-execuƟ ve directors, the 
Company has a pracƟ ce to remunerate them by way of 
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commission within the limits laid down under secƟ on 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 besides siƫ  ng fess for 
aƩ ending the meeƟ ngs of the Board and CommiƩ ee. The 
last enabling resoluƟ on for such payment was passed in 
the Annual General MeeƟ ng held on 29/09/2015 valid 
form 01/04/2014 for 5 years.

The Board recommend passing of the resoluƟ on by the 
shareholders as special resoluƟ on.

All the non-execuƟ ve directors of the Company and their 
relaƟ ve are concerned or interested in this resoluƟ on 
fi nancially or otherwise. No other execuƟ ve directors and 
KMPs and their relaƟ ves are interested or concerned in 
this resoluƟ on fi nancially or otherwise.

By Order of the Board
Place: Kolkata V D MALL
Date: 29/05/2019. Company Secretary
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InformaƟ on required to be furnished under SEBI(LODR), 2015  in respect of the Appointment/Re-appointment of the 
Directors

Name of the Director Shri Pradip Kumar  Daga Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla
DIN No 00040692 00066344 00312652
Date of Appointment 16/12/2008 30/10/2007 30/03/2002
Date of Birth 24/04/1937 13/09/1943 05/11/1951
Age 82 Years 75 Years 68 years
Qualifi caƟ on B. Com. , (Hons) M.Com, FCA, FCMA B A LLB
Experience in specifi c funcƟ onal 
areas

Tea, Spinning, Engineering and  
Solar and Hydro Power

Engineering and Tea Law , Finance and 
AdministraƟ on 

Number of MeeƟ ngs of the 
Board AƩ ended during the 
fi nancial year commenced from 
01/04/2018

Four Four Four

Directorship in other Companies  
excluding foreign Companies, 
Companies under secƟ on 8 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and 
private Companies 

1) Longview Tea company 
Limited

2) Century TexƟ les and 
Industries Limited

3) Deepak Spinners Limited

1) Duroply Industries Limited
2) Durgapur Chemicals Ltd-

Unlisted Govt Company.
3) Infusions (India) Ltd
4) WEBFIL Ltd

nil

Chairmanship / Membership/
of CommiƩ ees of  Other 
Public Companies  (Only Audit 
CommiƩ ee and Stakeholders 
RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee 
considered)

Longview Tea Company 
Limited-Member of Audit 
CommiƩ ee

Century TexƟ les & Industries 
Limited-Member of Audit 
and Stakeholders relaƟ onship 
CommiƩ ee

Chairman of the Audit 
CommiƩ ee of Duroply 
Industries Limited

Chairman of the Audit 
CommiƩ ee and Stakeholders 
relaƟ onship commiƩ ee of 
Webfi l Ltd

nil

Shareholding in the Company 207700 nil nil
RelaƟ onship with other directors Father  of Shri Yashwant Kumar 

Daga, VCJMD
No No

Terms and condiƟ ons of 
appointment/re-appointment 
along with details of 
remuneraƟ on last drawn by such 
person

As per the  resoluƟ on passed in 
the AGM Held on 14/09/2018 
and last remuneraƟ on-Rs. Nil.

Re-appointment  and 
conƟ nuaƟ on as an 
Independent Director of the 
Company for another term of 
fi ve consecuƟ ve fi ve years from 
01/10/2019 to 30/09/2024. 
RemuneraƟ on for F Y 2018-19 
is Rs. 325000/-by way of siƫ  ng 
fees and Commission.

Re-appointment as an 
Independent Director of 
the Company for another 
term of fi ve consecuƟ ve fi ve 
years from 01/10/2019 to 
30/09/2024. RemuneraƟ on 
for F Y 2018-19 is Rs. 
333000/-by way of siƫ  ng 
fees and Commission.
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BOARD’S  REPORT
Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2019.

Financial Results

ParƟ culars
` in lakhs

31st March, 2019
Profi t before Finance Cost, depreciaƟ on and amorƟ zaƟ on & Tax 10318.35
Less\Finance Cost 1020.27
DepreciaƟ on and AmorƟ zaƟ on 2179.45
Profi t before Tax 7118.63
Current Tax 2430.00
TaxaƟ on related to earlier years -
Deferred Tax 18.91
Total Tax 2448.91
Profi t for the year 4669.72
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be classifi ed to Profi t and Loss Account 8.59
(ii)    Income tax relaƟ ng to items that will not be reclassifi ed to Profi t and Loss (3.00)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 5.59
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 4675.31
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 118.03

The Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 
2019  have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 
prescribed under SecƟ on 133 of the Companies Act 2013

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture

The Company has no Subsidiary, Associate and Joint 
Venture.

Dividend

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of 
100% that is, ` 10/-(Rupees Ten only) per share of the face 
value of ` 10/- each for the approval of shareholders. The 
dividend will be paid when declared by the shareholders 
in accordance with law. The Company will pay dividend 
distribuƟ on tax plus applicable surcharge, applicable on 
the dividend distribuƟ on tax. 

General Review

Your directors are pleased  to inform that the Company 
has for the fi rst Ɵ me crossed the turnover of ` 500 Crores 
at `519.94 Crores which has been possible with your 
consistent support and encouragement to the Board to 
excel.

Your company was able to achieve the all around 
improvement which has been possible through the 
judicious capex in the past. The management conƟ nues to 
lay emphasis on the capex for conƟ nuous growth in the 
business of your company.

Revenues with other income for fi nancial year ended 
31st March, 2019 stood at ` 53164.62 lakhs, profi t before 
fi nance cost, depreciaƟ on and amorƟ zaƟ on, and tax 
` 10318.35 lakhs, and profi t aŌ er tax for the year was 
` 4669.72 lakhs and Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year was ` 4675.31 Lakhs.
During the year under review, automobile and tractor 
gear segment performed well despite adverse market 
condiƟ ons and the performance of the industrial gear 
segment was beƩ er compared to the previous year in 
terms of containing the losses. 
GeneraƟ on from solar power plant was saƟ sfactory 
followed by improved realizaƟ on of the REC cerƟ fi cates.
DelisƟ ng of the Company
Your Board has considered the proposal of the promoters 
of the Company to delist the Company from The CalcuƩ a 
Stock Exchange Limited on which the Company is only 
listed and in this connecƟ on has appointed a merchant 
Banker to carry out the due diligence. 
Internal Financial Control Systems 
The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial 
Control System commensurate with the size, scale and 
nature of its operaƟ ons.  During the year such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weakness 
in the operaƟ ons has been observed. The Company 
has appropriate policies and procedures in place for 
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ensuring proper and effi  cient conduct of its business, 
the safeguarding of its assets, prevenƟ on and detecƟ on 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounƟ ng records and Ɵ mely preparaƟ on of reliable 
fi nancial informaƟ on.  During the year under review, the 
Company has not come across any incidence of fraud. 
The Company has adopted accounƟ ng policies, which are 
in line with the applicable accounƟ ng standards and the 
companies Act, 2013. 
Internal Audit is conducted by independent Chartered 
Accountants, on quarterly basis. The  Internal Auditors 
monitor and evaluate the effi  cacy and adequacy of internal 
control systems in the company. Based on the reports of the 
Internal Auditors, the respecƟ ve departments undertake 
correcƟ ve acƟ ons in their respecƟ ve areas and thereby 
strengthen the controls. Signifi cant audit observaƟ ons and 
correcƟ ve acƟ on in thereon are presented to the Audit 
commiƩ ee of the Board of Directors. 
Statutory Auditors
Pursuant to  SecƟ on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
members of the Company in its Annual General MeeƟ ng 
held on 10th  August 2017 approved appointment of M/s.  
Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants  (ICAI RegistraƟ on no. 
301051E)  as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
an iniƟ al term of 5 consecuƟ ve year subject to raƟ fi caƟ on 
of such appointment at every subsequent meeƟ ng during 
their tenure.  
As per the noƟ fi caƟ on dated 7th May 2018, issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Aff airs, the appointment of Statutory 
Auditors,  is  not required to be raƟ fi ed by members of the 
Company in every Annual General MeeƟ ng. 
Auditors’ Report 
The Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders does not contain 
any reservaƟ on, qualifi caƟ on or adverse remark. During 
the year under review, the Auditors have not reported 
any maƩ er under SecƟ on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013, therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under 
SecƟ on 134(3)(ca) of the Act.
Secretarial Audit  and Secretarial Auditor
Pursuant to SecƟ on 204 of the Companies Act 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial 
Audit was carried out by Binay Kumar Pandey,  PracƟ sing 
Company Secretary (CP no.12074) for the fi nancial year 
2018-19.  The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as 
‘Annexure – I’, to this Report.  
There has been no qualifi caƟ on, reservaƟ on or adverse 
remark or disclaimer in the report.  During the year under 
review, the Auditors have not reported any maƩ er under 
SecƟ on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, no 
detail is required to be disclosed under SecƟ on 134(3)(ca) 
of the Act.
The Company has appointed Binay Kumar Pandey (CP 
No.12074) to hold the offi  ce of the secretarial Auditors 
and to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the fi nancial year 

2019-20. 
Cost Audit
Pursuant to SecƟ on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 
Rules, 2014, the cost records maintained by the Company 
in respect of its manufacturing acƟ viƟ es, are required to 
be audited. 
The Board of Directors have on the recommendaƟ on of 
the Audit CommiƩ ee, appointed, M/s SPK Associates, Cost 
Accountants (ICWAI Firm’s RegistraƟ on no. 000040), as 
Cost  Auditors of the Company, to carry out cost audit of 
the products manufactured by the Company for the year 
2019-20.   The Company has received their wriƩ en consent 
that the appointment is in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act and rules framed there under. 
The remuneraƟ on of the Cost Auditor has been approved 
by the Board of Directors on the recommendaƟ on of 
Audit CommiƩ ee.  As required under the Companies Act, 
2013, read with rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  the remuneraƟ on payable 
to the Cost Auditor is required to be placed before the 
members in a general meeƟ ng for their raƟ fi caƟ on.  
Accordingly, a resoluƟ on seeking members’ raƟ fi caƟ on 
for the remuneraƟ on payable to M/s SPK Associates, Cost 
Auditors is included in the NoƟ ce of 64th Annual General 
MeeƟ ng.
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
a. ReƟ rement of Directors
 Pursuant to SecƟ on 152 of Companies Act, 2013 and 

ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company, Shri Pradip 
Kumar Daga (DIN 00040632), reƟ res by rotaƟ on at 
the forthcoming Annual General MeeƟ ng and being 
eligible, off ers himself for re-appointment.  The 
Board recommends his re-appointment.  The brief 
resume and other details as required under the 
LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons are provided in the NoƟ ce of the 
64th Annual General MeeƟ ng.

b. Re-appointment of Independent Directors for 
another term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the shareholders in the Annual General 
MeeƟ ng of the Company, held on 25th September 
2014 had appointed Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ  (DIN 
00291966) as an Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director to hold offi  ce with eff ect from 1.10.2014 
for a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years up to 30th 
September 2019.   Shri ChakravorƟ   is eligible for 
re-appointment as an Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director for a second term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years.  
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and based on the recommendaƟ on of the 
NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, his re-
appointment is proposed at the ensuing 64th Annual 
General MeeƟ ng. 
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 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the shareholders in the Annual General 
MeeƟ ng of the Company, held on 25th September 
2014 had appointed Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla 
(DIN 00312652) as an Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director to hold offi  ce with eff ect from 1.10.2014 
for a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years up to 30th 
September 2019.   Shri Agarwalla  is eligible for 
re-appointment as an Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director for a second term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years.  
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and based on the recommendaƟ on of the 
NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, his re-
appointment is proposed at the ensuing 64th Annual 
General MeeƟ ng

 There were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company.

c. Statement on declaraƟ on given by Independent 
Directors  

 DeclaraƟ ons have been received from all 
Independent Directors confi rming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under 
SecƟ on 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and 
LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons.

d. MeeƟ ngs 
 During the year, four Board MeeƟ ngs and four 

Audit CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs were convened and 
held, the details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report. The intervening gap between 
any two consecuƟ ve meeƟ ngs did not exceed the 
gap prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and 
LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons.

e. Board EvaluaƟ on
 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 the Board 
has carried out an annual evaluaƟ on of its own 
performance, the Directors individually, as well 
as the evaluaƟ on of the working of its various 
CommiƩ ees.  The Board on the recommendaƟ ons 
of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee 
lays down the evaluaƟ on criteria for evaluaƟ on. All 
the relevant factors that are material for evaluaƟ ng 
the performance of the CommiƩ ees and of the 
Board and the directors individually were discussed 
in detail by the Board of Directors.

 A structured quesƟ onnaire for evaluaƟ on of the 
Board  and its various CommiƩ ees and individual 
Directors was prepared and recommended to 
the Board by the NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee for doing the required evaluaƟ on  aŌ er 
taking into consideraƟ on the inputs received from 
the Directors, covering various aspects of the 
Board’s funcƟ oning.  

 A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate 
the performance of individual Directors who 
were evaluated on parameters such as level of 
engagement and contribuƟ on, independence of 
judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company 
and its minority shareholders, etc.  The performance 
evaluaƟ on of the Independent Directors was carried 
out by the enƟ re Board excluding the Director 
being evaluated. The performance evaluaƟ on of 
the Chairman and non-independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The 
Directors expressed their saƟ sfacƟ on with the 
evaluaƟ on process.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confi rm as under –
a) That in the preparaƟ on of the annual accounts, the 

applicable accounƟ ng standards had been followed 
along with proper explanaƟ on relaƟ ng to material 
departures;

b) That the Directors had selected such accounƟ ng 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and esƟ mates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of aff airs of the Company at the end of the fi nancial 
year and of the profi t and loss of the Company for 
that period;

c) That the Directors had taken proper and suffi  cient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng fraud and other 
irregulariƟ es;

d) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis; and 

e) That the Directors, had laid down internal fi nancial 
controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal fi nancial controls are adequate and 
were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely.

f) That the Directors had devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate 
and operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
In accordance with the requirements of SecƟ on 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has a Corporate 
Social Responsibility CommiƩ ee, the terms of reference 
and other details of which are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report. The CSR Policy has been framed and 
posted on the website of the Company, www.dil-india.
com.
 As required by SecƟ on 134(3)(o) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
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Responsibility) Rules, 2014, Annual Report on CSR 
acƟ viƟ es is annexed as ‘Annexure – II’ to form part of this 
report.
Vigil Mechanism 
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism for Directors 
and employees of the Company to report genuine 
concerns of any wrongful conduct with respect to the 
Company or its business or aff airs. The policy covers 
malpracƟ ces, fraud, violaƟ on of company’s policies or 
rules, misappropriaƟ ons of monies and other maƩ ers on 
account of which interest of the Company is aff ected or is 
likely to be aff ected.  The policy provides thal all protected 
disclosures can be addressed on a confi denƟ al basis to the 
Vigil Offi  cer or the Chairman of Audit CommiƩ ee in certain 
cases. The policy of Vigil Mechanism is an internal policy, 
to make protected disclosures in good faith and to raise 
concerns to be appropriately dealt with.
It also provides for adequate safeguards against the 
vicƟ mizaƟ on of employees who avail of the mechanism.  
Complaints received by Vigil Offi  cer are to be invesƟ gated 
by the Vigil Offi  cer and a report thereon is to be submiƩ ed 
to the Audit CommiƩ ee.  It is affi  rmed that no person was 
denied access to the Vigil Offi  cer and the Audit CommiƩ ee; 
and no complaints were received during the fi nancial year 
2018-19.  
The Policy on Vigil Mechanism is also posted on the 
website of the Company www.dil-india.com.
Risk Management Policy 
Several factors such as advancement in technology, 
prevalent geo-poliƟ cal environment, stringent regulatory 
and environmental requirements have consequenƟ al 
impacts across the value chain of a business. The Company 
has an effi  cient Risk Management framework to idenƟ fy 
and evaluate business risks and opportuniƟ es.  The Audit 
CommiƩ ee has been delegated the responsibility for 
monitoring and reviewing risk management, assessment 
and minimizaƟ on procedures. On the recommendaƟ ons of 
Audit CommiƩ ee, Board of Directors has formulated a Risk 
Management Policy for dealing with diff erent kinds of risks 
which it faces in day to day operaƟ ons of the Company.  
The Company has adequate internal control systems 
and procedures to combat risks. The risk management 
procedures are reviewed by the Audit CommiƩ ee and 
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis at the Ɵ me of 
review of the quarterly fi nancial results of the Company.
NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on Policy
The Board has on the recommendaƟ ons of the NominaƟ on 
and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee framed a policy for 
selecƟ on and appointment of Directors, KMP and Senior 
Management personnel and their remuneraƟ on. The 
details of Company’s RemuneraƟ on Policy is annexed as 
‘Annexure–III’ and forms part of this report of the Board 
of Directors.

Related Party TransacƟ ons
All related party transacƟ ons that were entered into 
during the fi nancial year were on an arm’s length pricing 
basis and were in the ordinary course of business and do 
not aƩ ract the provisions of SecƟ on 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013
There were no materially signifi cant transacƟ ons with 
related parƟ es during the fi nancial year which were in 
confl ict with the interest of the Company and hence, 
enclosing of Form AOC 2 is not required. Suitable 
disclosures as required by the AccounƟ ng Standard (Ind 
AS - 24) has been made in the notes to the Financial 
Statements.
All related party transacƟ ons are placed before the Audit 
CommiƩ ee as also before the Board for approval.  Prior 
omnibus approval of the Audit CommiƩ ee is obtained on 
yearly basis for transacƟ ons which are of foreseen and 
repeƟ Ɵ ve nature for a period of one year.  The transacƟ ons 
entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted 
are placed before the Audit CommiƩ ee on a quarterly 
basis.
The Policy on Related Party TransacƟ ons, as approved by 
the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.
dil-india.com. None of the Directors has any pecuniary 
relaƟ onship or transacƟ on vis-à-vis the Company except 
the salary and professional services at arm’s length basis.
Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, Independent Director of 
the Company is a solicitor and advocate and he provides 
legal professional services to the Company Ɵ me to Ɵ me 
as required by the Company. The transacƟ on with the 
said director and his advocate son for legal services are on 
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.
Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga, VCJMD of the Company who is 
one of the promoter of the Company and holds more than 
10%  share in the company has been paid remuneraƟ on 
during the year ` 77.28 Lakhs 
Disclosures regarding Employees
a) The Statement of Details of RemuneraƟ on as 

required under SecƟ on 197 and Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is aƩ ached as 
‘Annexure – IV’ and forms a part of this Board’s 
Report.

b) There has been no employee in the Company 
drawing remuneraƟ on as prescribed under rule 5(2) 
of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.There are 
no employees posted and working in a country 
outside India drawing the specifi ed remuneraƟ on  
in a fi nancial year.  However, the name of the top 10 
employees in terms of the remuneraƟ on drawn is 
not being annexed to this report and such parƟ culars 
shall be made available upon request from the 
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shareholders before the date of the forthcoming 
annual general meeƟ ng. 

c) No employee, other than the Managing Director 
by himself or along with his spouse and dependent 
children holds 2% or more of the equity shares of 
the Company. 

d) The Company has not received any complaint under 
‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(ProhibiƟ on, PrevenƟ on and Redressal) Act, 2013, 
during the year.

Public Deposits
During the year, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits from the public and as such, there are no 
outstanding deposits in terms of the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
Loans, Guarantees and Investments
The Company has not given loans, directly or indirectly to 
any person or other body corporate or given guarantee 
or provided any security in connecƟ on with a loan to any 
other body corporate or person.  The investments made 
by the Company  are stated in the fi nancial statement of 
the Company. 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
A report for the year under review as required under 
RegulaƟ on 34 and as sƟ pulated under Part B of Schedule 
V of LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, of the said regulaƟ ons is annexed 
herewith as Annexure-V and forms part of this report.
Corporate Governance :
A report on Corporate Governance and Management 
Discussion and Analysis as required under RegulaƟ on 34 
of SEBI(LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements)
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 (‘LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons’)  and as sƟ pulated 
in part C of schedule V is annexed herewith and forms 
part of this report.  Compliance CerƟ fi cate issued by 
PracƟ sing Company Secretary, regarding compliance of 
Corporate Governance is also annexed with this report as 
Annexure-VI
Abstract  of Annual Return
The abstract of annual return for the year ended 
31/03/2019 in Form MGT-9 as per the provisions of 
SecƟ on 92 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014  
is annexed with this report as ‘Annexure – VII’.
Energy ConservaƟ on, Technology AbsorpƟ on and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo.
As required by SecƟ on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, informaƟ on with regard to ConservaƟ on of energy, 
technology absorpƟ on and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo are annexed as ‘Annexure – VIII’ to form part of this 
report.
Signifi cant and material orders passed by the regulators 
or courts 
There are no signifi cant material orders passed by the 
regulators / courts which would impact the going concern 
status of the Company and its future operaƟ ons.
Compliance with Secretarial Standards 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 
issued by the InsƟ tute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Your Directors place on record their appreciaƟ on for 
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CauƟ onary Statement
Statements in the Board Report and Management 
Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s 
objecƟ ves, expectaƟ ons or forecasts may be forward-
looking within the meaning of the applicable securiƟ es 
laws and regulaƟ ons. Actual results may diff er materially 
from those expressed in the statement. Important factors 
that could infl uence the Company’s operaƟ ons include 
global and domesƟ c demand and supply condiƟ ons 
aff ecƟ ng selling prices of fi nished goods, input availability 
and prices, changes in government regulaƟ ons, tax laws, 
economic developments within the country and other 
factors such as liƟ gaƟ on and industrial relaƟ ons.
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CS BINAY KUMAR PANDEY M/s  B K P & ASSOCIATES
PracƟ sing Company Secretary Company Secretaries

4th Floor, Room No. 426,
City Centre Building

19, Synagogue Street
Kolkata 700001

To,
The Members,
Deepak Industries Limited
16, Hare Street,
Kolkata 700 001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩ er.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express as opinion on these secretarial records based on out audit.
2. We have followed the audit pracƟ ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifi caƟ on was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are refl ected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and pracƟ ces, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verifi ed the correctness and appropriateness of fi nancial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4. Wherever required. We have obtained the management representaƟ on about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulaƟ ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟ ons, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examinaƟ on was limited to verifi caƟ on of procedures on test basis. 

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the effi  cacy or 
eff ecƟ veness with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata  For B K P & ASSOCIATES
Dated:May 29, 2019. Company Secretaries

(CS Binay Kumar Pandey, ACS)
Membership No. FCS 9830

C.P. No. 12074

ANNEXUREͳI
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to secƟ on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Deepak Industries Limited
16, Hare Street,
Kolkata 700 001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate pracƟ ces by Deepak Industries Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluaƟ ng the corporate conducts/statutory pracƟ ces and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verifi caƟ on of the Deepak Industries Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and 
other records maintained by the Company  and also the informaƟ on provided by the Company, its offi  cers , agents and 
authorized representaƟ on during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the fi nancial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟ ng made hereinaŌ er:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the 
Company for the fi nancial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to  the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The SecuriƟ es Contracts (RegulaƟ on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟ ons and Bye-laws framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟ ons made there under to the   extent of import 

and export of goods and services;
(v) The following regulaƟ ons and guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):-
 (a) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟ al AcquisiƟ on of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟ ons. 

2011;
 (b) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) RegulaƟ ons, 1992;
 (c) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2009;
 (d) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements  RegulaƟ ons, 

2015;
 (e) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟ es) RegulaƟ ons, 1998;
 (f) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟ ons, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
 The following RegulaƟ ons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(SEBI Act) were not applicable to the Company for the fi nancial year ended March 31, 2019.
 (a) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock OpƟ on Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
 (b) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟ ng of Debt SecuriƟ es) RegulaƟ ons, 2008;
 (c) The SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟ ng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟ ons, 2009;
(vi) Other laws as menƟ oned in the Annexure aƩ ached herewith and as may be applicable to the company.
 We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
 (a) Secretarial Standards issued by the InsƟ tute of Company Secretaries of India.
 (b) The LisƟ ng Agreements entered into by the Company with the CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange Limited.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟ ons, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. menƟ oned above.
We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟ tuted with proper balance of ExecuƟ ve Directors, Non–ExecuƟ ve 
Directors and Independent Directors. The Company has a woman director on it Board. There was no change in the 
composiƟ on of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 
Adequate noƟ ce is given to all Directors to schedule the Board MeeƟ ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advanceand a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟ on and clarifi caƟ ons on the 
agenda items before the meeƟ ng and for meaningful parƟ cipaƟ on at the meeƟ ng.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenƟ ng members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. We have however not observed any dissenƟ ng member’s views.
We further report thaƩ here are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operaƟ ons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟ ons and guidelines.
We further report thatduring the audit period the Company has –
(a) not alloƩ ed any share or other securiƟ es during the period.
(b) not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of AssociaƟ on or the ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on.
(c) not taken any major decision at the last Annual General MeeƟ ng held in the year 2018.
(d) no merger / amalgamaƟ on / reconstrucƟ on etc.
(e) no foreign technical collaboraƟ ons.

Place: Kolkata  For B K P & ASSOCIATES
Dated:May 29, 2019. Company Secretaries

(CS Binay Kumar Pandey, ACS)
Membership No. FCS 9830

C.P. No. 12074
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ANNEXURE
LIST OF OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

1. Air (PrevenƟ on and Control of PolluƟ on) Act, 1981
2. ApprenƟ ces Act, 1961
3. Consumer ProtecƟ on Act, 1986
4. Indian Contract Act, 1872
5. Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
6. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948
7. Environment ProtecƟ on Act, 1986
8. Factories Act, 1948
9. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
10. Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
11. Industries (Development and RegulaƟ on) Act, 1951
12. Maternity Benefi t Act, 1961
13. Minimum Wages Act, 1948.
14. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace ( PrevenƟ on, ProhibiƟ on and Redressal ) Act, 2013
15. NegoƟ able Instruments Act, 1881
16. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
17. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
18. Payment of Wages Act, 1936
19. RegistraƟ on Act, 1908
20. Sale of Goods Act, 1930
21. Water (PrevenƟ on and Control of PolluƟ on) Act, 1974
22. Workmen’s CompensaƟ on Act, 1923
23. Income-Tax Act, 1961
24. The Companies Act, 2013
25. The Customs Act, 1962
26. The Motor Vehicles Act, 1988
27. Boiler Act, 1923
28. The Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017.
29. Shops and Establishment Act, Profession Tax Act, and other Commercial Acts of respecƟ ve states.
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ANNEXURE-II
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE 

BOARD’S REPORT for 2018-19
1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs to be undertaken and a 

reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and Projects or programs.
 The Company has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy stated in the link menƟ oned below 

pursuant to SecƟ on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and NoƟ fi caƟ on dated 27th February, 2014 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Aff airs under the said SecƟ on. The policy is framed for undertaking acƟ viƟ es as may be 
found benefi cial and feasible for beƩ erment of criƟ cal social environmental of the weaker secƟ ons of the society, 
preferably locally, near to the factory sites of the Company. This CSR policy relates to the acƟ viƟ es to be undertaken 
by the Company as specifi ed in Schedule VII of the Act and the expenditure thereon and focuses on addressing 
criƟ cal social, environmental and economic needs of marginalised/underprivileged secƟ ons of the society. The CSR 
policy is hoisted on the web link www.dil-india.com under the Investors secƟ on of the site. 

2. The ComposiƟ on of the CSR CommiƩ ee:

The composiƟ on of the CSR CommiƩ ee is as follows:
Name of the Director Chairman/Member Promoter/  Independent Director
Shri Pradip Kumar Daga, Chairman Promoter CMD of the Company
Shari Anand Prasad Agarwalla Member Independent Director
Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ  Member Independent Director

3. Average net Profi t of the company for last three years: ` 3131.32  lakhs
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): ` 62.63  lakhs
5. Details of CSR spent during the fi nancial year:
 (a) Total amount to be spent for the fi nancial year; `.62.63 lakhs
 (b) Amount unspent, if any; ` 60.24  lakhs.  
 (c) Manner in which the amount spent during the fi nancial year is detailed below: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. 
No

CSR Project or acƟ vity 
idenƟ fi ed

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programmes 
(1) Local area 
or other  (2) 
Specify the 
State and 
district where 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
projects or 
programs 
wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs
Sub-heads
(1)Direct 
expenditure 
on projects or 
programs 
(2)Overheads 
(`)

CumulaƟ ve 
expenditure 
up to the 
reporƟ ng 
period (`)

Amount spent:
Direct or 
through 
implemenƟ ng 
agency

1 Provision of Medical aid 
to the under privileged , 
disabled and other needy 
persons

PromoƟ ng health 
care  including 
prevenƟ ve health 
care

West Bengal, 
Kolkata

Not set 239500/- 239500/- Direct

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profi t of the last three fi nancial years 
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report:  The 
Company is making eff orts to spend the amount through the various programmes undertaken by the Company.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR CommiƩ ee that the implementaƟ on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objecƟ viƟ es and Policy of the company. 

Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga
(Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer or Managing 

Director or Director)

Shri Pradip Kumar Daga
(Chairman of CSR CommiƩ ee)

N.A
(Person specifi ed under clause (d) of sub-
secƟ on (1) of secƟ on 380 of the Act)

(wherever applicable)
Place: Kolkata
Date: 29/05/2018
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INTRODUCTION:
In compliance with the provisions of SecƟ on 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules 
thereto and the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India 
( LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 ( hereinaŌ er referred to as the SEBI 
LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons) as amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me and 
in pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human 
resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable 
remuneraƟ on to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and employees of the Company, to harmonize 
the aspiraƟ ons of human resources consistent with the 
goals of the Company this policy on nominaƟ on and 
remuneraƟ on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management has been formulated by the 
CommiƩ ee and approved by the Board of Directors. 
OBJECTIVE AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY:
The objecƟ ve and purpose of this policy are:
• To lay down criteria and terms and condiƟ ons with 

regard to idenƟ fying persons who are qualifi ed to 
become Directors (ExecuƟ ve and Non-ExecuƟ ve) 
and persons who may be appointed in Senior 
Management and Key Managerial posiƟ ons and to 
determine their remuneraƟ on.

• To determine remuneraƟ on based on the Company’s 
size and fi nancial posiƟ on and trends and pracƟ ces 
on remuneraƟ on prevailing in peer companies, in 
the industry to which the Company belongs.

• To carry out evaluaƟ on of the performance of 
Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior 
Management Personnel.

• To provide them reward linked directly to their 
eff ort, performance, dedicaƟ on and achievement 
relaƟ ng to the Company’s operaƟ ons.

• To retain, moƟ vate and promote talent and to ensure 
long term sustainability of talented managerial 
persons and create compeƟ Ɵ ve advantage.

ConsƟ tuƟ on of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee:
The Board has consƟ tuted NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee on 30th May 2014. The Board has the power to 
reconsƟ tute the CommiƩ ee consistent with the Company’s 
policy and applicable statutory requirements.
Defi niƟ ons:

ANNEXUREͳIII

DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

(Amended by Board  w.e.f 1st April, 2019)

• ‘Board’ means Board of Directors of the Company.
• ‘Directors’ means Directors of the Company.
• ‘CommiƩ ee’ means NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on 

CommiƩ ee of the Company as consƟ tuted or 
reconsƟ tuted by the Board. In accordance with 
provisions of SecƟ on 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons

• ‘Company’ means Deepak Industries Limited.
• ‘Independent Director’ means a director referred to 

in SecƟ on 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. and 
in RegulaƟ on 16 of SEBI LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons

• ‘Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)’ means-
 (i) Chief ExecuƟ ve offi  cer or the Managing 

Director or the Manager
 (ii) Whole-Ɵ me Director
 (iii) Chief Financial Offi  cer;
 (iv) Company Secretary;  
 (v) Such other offi  cer, not more than one level 

below the directors who is in whole-Ɵ me 
employment, designated as key managerial 
personnel by the Board;

 (vi) Such other offi  cer as may be prescribed 
under the applicable statutory provisions / 
regulaƟ ons.

• ‘Senior Management Personnel’ means personnel 
of the Company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors 
comprising all members of management one 
level below the chief execuƟ ve offi  cer/managing 
director/whole Ɵ me director/manager (including 
chief execuƟ ve offi  cer/manager, in case they are 
not part of the board) and shall specifi cally include 
company secretary and chief fi nancial offi  cer

 Unless the context otherwise requires, words and 
expressions used in this policy and not defi ned 
herein but defi ned in the Companies Act, 2013 as 
may be amended from Ɵ me to Ɵ me shall have the 
meaning respecƟ vely assigned to them therein. 

Applicability:
The Policy is applicable to -
• Directors (ExecuƟ ve and Non ExecuƟ ve)
• Key Managerial Personnel
• Senior Management Personnel
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General :
• This Policy is divided in three parts: 
 (i) Part – A covers the maƩ ers to be dealt with 

and recommended by the CommiƩ ee to    the 
Board, 

 (ii) Part – B covers the appointment, nominaƟ on 
and removal and 

 (iii) Part – C covers remuneraƟ on and perquisites 
etc.

PART – A
MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND 
RECOMMENDED TO THE BOARD BY THE NOMINATION 
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The CommiƩ ee shall:
• Formulate the criteria for determining qualifi caƟ ons, 

posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of a director.
• IdenƟ fy persons who are qualifi ed to become 

Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 
Managerial and Senior Management posiƟ ons in 
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

• Carry out the evaluaƟ on of performance of 
Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
and recommend to the Board, their appointment 
and removal.

• Recommend to the Board a policy relaƟ ng to 
remuneraƟ on for the directors, KMP and other 
employees and recommend to the Board, 
amendments to such policy as and when required.

• Recommend to the board , all remuneraƟ on, in 
whatever form, payable to senior management

PART – B
POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, 
KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  
• Guiding Principles
 - RemuneraƟ on policy and arrangements for 

Directors, KMPs and Senior Management 
Personnel, shall be determined by the 
CommiƩ ee on the basis of Company’s 
fi nancial posiƟ on, pay and employment 
condiƟ ons prevailing in peer companies or 
elsewhere in compeƟ Ɵ ve market to ensure 
that the remuneraƟ on and the other terms of 
employment shall be compeƟ Ɵ ve to ensure 
that the Company can aƩ ract, retain and 
moƟ vate competent execuƟ ves.

 - RemuneraƟ on packages may be composed 
of fi xed and incenƟ ve pay depending on 
short and long term performance objecƟ ves 
appropriate to the working of the Company.

 - The CommiƩ ee considers that a successful 
remuneraƟ on policy must ensure that a 
signifi cant part of the remuneraƟ on package 
is linked to the achievement of corporate 
performance targets and a strong alignment 
of interest with stakeholders.

• Appointment criteria and qualifi caƟ ons:
 1. The CommiƩ ee shall idenƟ fy and ascertain 

the integrity, qualifi caƟ on, experƟ se and 
experience of the person for appointment 
as Director, KMP or at Senior Management 
level and recommend to the Board his / her 
appointment.

 2. A person should possess adequate 
qualifi caƟ on, experƟ se and experience 
for the posiƟ on he / she is considered for 
appointment. The CommiƩ ee has discreƟ on 
to decide whether qualifi caƟ on, experƟ se and 
experience possessed by a person is suffi  cient 
/ saƟ sfactory for the concerned posiƟ on.

 3. The Company may appoint or conƟ nue the 
employment of any person as Managing 
Director/Whole-Ɵ me Director/ Manager who 
has aƩ ained the age of seventy years and 
the term of the person holding this posiƟ on 
may be extended beyond the age of seventy 
years with the approval of shareholders by 
passing a special resoluƟ on based on the 
explanatory statement annexed to the noƟ ce 
for such moƟ on indicaƟ ng the jusƟ fi caƟ on for 
extension of appointment beyond seventy 
years. 

 4. Every whole-Ɵ me Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company shall be appointed by means 
of a resoluƟ on of the Board containing the 
terms and condiƟ ons of the appointment, 
including the remuneraƟ on.  Provided that 
the appointment of managing director/whole 
Ɵ me director/ manager shall require approval 
of shareholders as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

 5. A whole Ɵ me KMP shall not hold offi  ce 
in more than one company except in its 
subsidiary company, if any, at the same Ɵ me.  
However, such KMP can be a director of any 
Company with the permission of the Board.

 6. The Managing Director or Manager of the 
Company may be the Managing Director or 
Manager of one and not of not more than 
one other Company and such appointment 
should be approved by a resoluƟ on passed at 
a meeƟ ng of the Board with the consent of 
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all the directors present at the meeƟ ng and 
of which meeƟ ng, and of the resoluƟ on to be 
moved thereat, specifi c noƟ ce has been given 
to all the directors then in India.  

• Term / Tenure:
 1. Managing Director/Whole-Ɵ me Director:
  -  The Company shall appoint or re-

appoint any person as its Managing 
Director or Whole Time Director for 
a term not exceeding fi ve years at a 
Ɵ me. No re-appointment shall be made 
earlier than one year before the expiry 
of term.

 2. Independent Director:
  - An Independent Director shall hold 

offi  ce for a term up to fi ve consecuƟ ve 
years on the Board of the Company 
and will be eligible for re-appointment 
on passing of a special resoluƟ on by 
the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report.

  - No Independent Director shall hold 
offi  ce for more than two consecuƟ ve 
terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for appointment 
aŌ er expiry of three years of ceasing 
to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated 
with the Company in any other 
capacity, either directly or indirectly. 
However, if a person who has already 
served as an Independent Director for 
5 years or more in the Company as on 
1st October, 2014 or such other date as 
may be determined by the CommiƩ ee 
as per regulatory requirement, he / she 
shall be eligible for appointment for 
one more term of 5 years only.

  - At the Ɵ me of appointment of 
Independent Director it should be 
ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves 
is restricted to seven listed companies 
as an Independent Director and three 
listed companies as an Independent 
Director in case such person is serving 
as a Whole-Ɵ me Director of a listed 
company. 

 3. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)-

  If the offi  ce of any whole Ɵ me KMP is vacated, 
the resulƟ ng vacancy shall be fi lled up by 
the Board at a meeƟ ng of the Board within 
a period of six months from the date of such 
vacancy.

• EvaluaƟ on:
 The CommiƩ ee shall carry out evaluaƟ on of 

performance of every Director, at regular interval 
(yearly).

• Removal:
 Due to reasons for disqualifi caƟ on menƟ oned in 

the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder 
or under any other applicable Act, rules and 
regulaƟ ons, the CommiƩ ee may recommend, to the 
Board with reasons recorded in wriƟ ng, removal of 
a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel 
subject to the provisions and compliance of any 
Act, rules and regulaƟ ons, their service contract or 
evaluaƟ on of their performance.

• ReƟ rement:
 The Director, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel shall reƟ re as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will 
have the discreƟ on to retain the Director, KMP, 
Senior Management Personnel in the same posiƟ on 
/ remuneraƟ on or otherwise even aŌ er aƩ aining 
the reƟ rement age, for the benefi t of the Company 
subject to such approvals, as may be required in this 
regard.

PART – C
POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE 
WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS, DIRECTORS, KMP AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
1. The remuneraƟ on / compensaƟ on / commission 

etc. to the Managing Director/Whole-Ɵ me Directors 
and Directors will be determined by the CommiƩ ee. 
It shall be fi xed as per the statutory provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013  and the rules made there under 
for the Ɵ me being in force and in accordance with 
and subject to the relevant provisions of the ArƟ cles 
of AssociaƟ on of the Company. The CommiƩ ee shall 
recommend the remuneraƟ on / compensaƟ on / 
commission etc. to be paid the Managing Director/
Whole-Ɵ me Director and Directors to the Board 
for approval. The remuneraƟ on / compensaƟ on / 
commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post 
approval of the shareholders of the Company and 
Central Government, wherever required.

2. Increments to the exisƟ ng remuneraƟ on / 
compensaƟ on structure of Whole Ɵ me Director 
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and Directors may be recommended by the 
CommiƩ ee to the Board which should be within the 
slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
managerial person.

3. The Non- ExecuƟ ve / Independent Directors may 
receive remuneraƟ on by way of siƫ  ng fees for 
aƩ ending meeƟ ngs of Board or CommiƩ ee thereof. 
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not 
exceed such amount as may be prescribed by the 
Central Government from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

4. Commission to Non-execuƟ ve Directors may be paid 
within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, 
as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

5. The remuneraƟ on / compensaƟ on / commission etc. 
to the KMP and Senior Management Personnel will 

be determined based on the Company’s fi nancial 
posiƟ on, trends and pracƟ ces on remuneraƟ on 
prevailing in peer companies, in the industry to 
which the company belongs and performance of 
such KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

6. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on 
behalf of its Whole-Ɵ me Director, Chief ExecuƟ ve 
Offi  cer, Chief Financial Offi  cer, the Company 
Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying 
them against any liability, the premium paid on 
such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneraƟ on payable to any such personnel.

7.  An Independent Director shall not be enƟ tled to any 
stock opƟ on of the Company.

 The full or key features of this policy shall be 
included in the Board’s Report.
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ANNEXUREͳIV

Deepak Industries Limited
Disclosure pursuant to rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of 

managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
Sr. No. Requirement of Rule 5(1) for the Financial Year 2018-19 Details

i. The raƟ o of remuneraƟ on of each director to the median 
remuneraƟ on of the employee of the company for the 
fi nancial year.

Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga: 28.70
Other Directors-N A (as they do not receive monthly 
remuneraƟ on)

ii. The Percentage increase in remuneraƟ on of each director, 
Chief Financial Offi  cer, Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer, Company 
Secretary or manager, if any, in the fi nancial year

Director
Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga, VCJMD- 10.93%
Other Directors- N.A (as they do not receive monthly 
remuneraƟ on)
Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Maneesh Khanna, CFO-Nil
Shri Vithal Das Mall, Company Secretary- Nil
Manager: Not applicable as the company does not 
have a Manager.

iii. The Percentage increase in the median remuneraƟ on of 
employee in the fi nancial year.

2.22%

iv. The Number of permanent employee on the roll of the 
Company.

986 as on 31/03/2019.

v. Average percenƟ le increase already made in the salaries 
of employees other than the Managerial Personnel 
in the last Financial year and its comparison with 
percenƟ le increase in the managerial remuneraƟ on 
and jusƟ fi caƟ on thereof and point out if there are any 
excepƟ onal circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneraƟ on.

Average salary increase of non-managerial 
employees is 13.13%, Average salary increase in 
managerial personnel is about 5.68% There are no 
excepƟ onal circumstances in increase in managerial 
remuneraƟ on.

vi. Affi  rmaƟ on that the remuneraƟ on is as per the 
remuneraƟ on policy of the Company.

RemuneraƟ on paid during the year ended 
31/03/2019 is as per the RemuneraƟ on Policy of the 
Company.
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OVERALL REVIEW AND INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT.

Indian economy has grown at about 7.1% in the year 2018-19 and the same was stagnant as per the previous year. 
Although the fi scal defi cit has been contained to the target of 3.4%  of the gross GDP but the collecƟ on of the direct tax 
and GST has been lower than projected by a good margin for Rs.90000 crores respecƟ vely. The government has iniƟ ated 
several measures for ease of doing business in India by which the Indian ranking has improved which is currently 73 as 
per the DBR Report of the World Bank. Make in India iniƟ aƟ ve of the current government is showing result but there is 
lack of bulk capacity green fi eld projects parƟ cularly in producƟ on and manufacturing sector. There has been some relief 
to the banks under the Bankruptcy code in terms of recovery but the bank had to undertake a good amount of write off s 
eroding their capital which has been partly made good by the recent capitalisaƟ on by the government.  

The metal, power, road, construcƟ on, infra, rail, informaƟ on technology, etc have not shown encouraging growth. The 
reform in the agri sector is yet to materialise in terms of benefi ts to the farmers.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

There has been some relief to the Industrial gear segment being largely dependent on establishment of infra sector 
projects, expansion of core industries such as power, metal, infra etc. 

The auto gear industry dependent on the automobile and tractor manufacturing has shown some growth which will 
improve with the reforms in the agri sector. However, forecast of lower monsoon in the year 2019-20 is a concern. 

OPPORTUNITY AND THREATS

Expected re-elecƟ on of incumbent government at the centre is being seen as a good news world-wide for the policy 
stability and raising of the business confi dence. India is the largest producer of the tractors in the world followed by china 
and Indian tractor market is expected to grow at about 10% in the fi nancial year 2019-20. However the growth in the 
commercial vehicles is expected to be poor due to higher fuel prices. The replacement market in the auto gear segment 
conƟ nues to grow. Your company’s investments in manufacturing capacity made in the recent years is reaping benefi ts. 

GeneraƟ on of solar power staƟ on is saƟ sfactory. However, the purchase of RECs, is not reviving as in last year. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

This has already been discussed in the Board Report and further segment performance can be looked in the segment 
informaƟ on part of the notes to the accounts. 

OUT LOOK

It is expected that the core sectors will show improvement and investments in power and infra sectors will receive a fresh 
momentum. The current policy of allocaƟ on of coal and gas will have encouraging response.

RISK AND CONCERNS

The company has made suffi  cient investment in both the segments and requires skilled man power to operate the latest 
technology machines. Increased power cost, higher transacƟ on cost, high cost of labour conƟ nues to hinder the progress.  
CompeƟ Ɵ on from peers conƟ nues to be intensifying. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY.

The Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures commensurate with the size and nature of business 
ensuring that the assets and resources are used reasonably and are adequately protected and all the internal policies and 
statutory guidelines are complied with.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATION

The industrial relaƟ ons conƟ nue to be cordial as the Company conƟ nues to lay emphasis on employee’s development at 
all levels. There are 986 employees in the Company as on 31.03.2019.

ANNEXUREͳV
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

This report forms the part of Board Report for the year ended 31st March, 2019.
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Details of the signifi cant changes (i,e the change of 25% or more as compared to immediately previous fi nancial year) in 
the key fi nancial raƟ os along with the detailed explanaƟ ons thereof.

RaƟ os 2018-19 2017-18 % Change Detailed explanaƟ on if more than 25%
Interest covering raƟ o 7.98 5.52 44.53 This raƟ o has improved due to  increase in profi t in the 

current fi nancial year
Debt Equity raƟ o 0.40 0.71 (-)43.82 This raƟ o has improved by more than 25% due to increase 

in the retained earnings in the current fi nancial year.

CauƟ onary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objecƟ ves, projecƟ ons, esƟ mates, 
and expectaƟ ons may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securiƟ es laws and regulaƟ ons. 
Actual results could diff er materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a diff erence to 
the Company’s operaƟ ons include economic condiƟ ons aff ecƟ ng demand/supply and price condiƟ ons in the domesƟ c 
and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the Governments regulaƟ ons, tax laws and other 
incidental factors. The Company assumes no responsibility   in respect of forward looking statements that may be revised 
or modifi ed in the future on the basis of subsequent developments, informaƟ on of events.
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ANNEXUREͳVI

REPORT ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
A Report pursuant to RegulaƟ on 34(3) read with of Schedule V of the SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 (hereinaŌ er referred to as ‘LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons’) in compliance with the Corporate 
Governance requirements is set out below.
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The essence of Corporate Governance is about maintaining the right balance between economic, social, individual and 
community goals. The Company is commiƩ ed to implement sound corporate governance pracƟ ces with a view to promote 
transparency and to create value for consumers, shareholders employees and naƟ onal economy. It is our responsibility 
to protect the rights of our shareholders and disclose Ɵ mely, adequate and accurate informaƟ on regarding our fi nancials 
and performance, as well as the governance of the Company.
(I) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 COMPOSITION, OUTSIDE DIRECTORSHIPS, AND ATTENDANCE AT THE BOARD MEETING
 As on 31st March 2019, in compliance with the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, the Company’s Board of Directors headed by 

ExecuƟ ve Chairman, Shri Pradip Kumar Daga, comprised and an ExecuƟ ve Vice Chairman cum Joint Managing 
Director (VCJMD) and three other Independent Non-execuƟ ve Directors, including a woman Independent Director. 
In compliance with LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, more than fi Ō y percent of the total numbers of Directors are Independent 
Directors.

 The informaƟ on with regard to ComposiƟ on and aƩ endance of Board  of Directors in Board MeeƟ ngs and the last 
Annual General MeeƟ ng, outside Directorships and other Memberships of Board CommiƩ ees as on 31st March 
2019 as applicable is given hereunder –

Name of Director
[DIN]

Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Directorship 

in other 
Companies*

No of CommiƩ ees 
Membership(s)/ 

Chairmanship(s) in Board 
CommiƩ ees of other 

Companies@

Names of the listed company 
where the person is a Director 
and category of Directorship

 No of Shares and 
converƟ ble instruments 

held in the Company.
(The Company 

has no converƟ ble 
instruments)As a Member As a Chairman

Shri Pradip  Kumar 
Daga Chairman-
cum-Managing 
Director
[00040692]

Promoter 
Non-
Independent   
ExecuƟ ve 
Director

4 3 Nil 1.Deepak Industries Limited-
(CMD)
2.Deepak Spinners Limited-
(CMD)
3.Longview Tea Company 
Limited-(Non ExecuƟ ve)
4.Century TexƟ les and Industries 
Limited-( Independent)

207700

Shri  Yashwant 
Kumar Daga, Vice-
Chairman-cum- 
Joint Managing 
Director
[00040632]

Promoter 
Non-
Independent 
ExecuƟ ve 
Director

10 9 Nil 1.Deepak Industries Limited-
(VCJMD)
2.Deepak Spinners Limited-( 
Non ExecuƟ ve)
3.Longview Tea company 
Limited (Non ExecuƟ ve)
4.Magadh Sugar & Energy 
Limited ( Independent)
5.HGI Industries Limited 
(Independent)
6.Mint Investments Limited-
(Independent)

524313
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Name of Director
[DIN]

Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Directorship 

in other 
Companies*

No of CommiƩ ees 
Membership(s)/ 

Chairmanship(s) in Board 
CommiƩ ees of other 

Companies@

Names of the listed company 
where the person is a Director 
and category of Directorship

 No of Shares and 
converƟ ble instruments 

held in the Company.
(The Company 

has no converƟ ble 
instruments)As a Member As a Chairman

Shri  Sujit 
ChakravorƟ 
[00066344]

Independent 
Non- 
ExecuƟ ve 
Director

5 0 3 1.Deepak Industries Limited-
(Independent)
2.Duroply Industries Limited 
(Independent)
3.Webfi l Limited(Non ExecuƟ ve)

Nil

Shri Anand Prasad 
Agarwalla
[00312652]

Independent 
Non- 
ExecuƟ ve 
Director

Nil Nil Nil 1.Deepak Industries Limited( 
Independent)

Nil

Smt Meera Dokania
[07094376]

Independent 
Non- 
ExecuƟ ve 
Director

Nil Nil Nil 1.Deepak Industries Limited ( 
Independent)

Nil

• *Excludes Directorship in Deepak Industries Limited, alternate Directorship, Directorship in foreign Companies and 
Companies formed under secƟ on 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

• @CommiƩ ee posiƟ ons only of Audit CommiƩ ee and Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee in Listed Public 
Companies have been considered (excluding Deepak Industries Limited).

• The board is consƟ tuted of the two Promoters ExecuƟ ve Directors and three Non-ExecuƟ ve Independent Directors. 
• None of the Directors held Directorship in more than 20 Indian companies, with not more than 10 public limited 

companies.
• None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 commiƩ ees or chairperson of more than 5 commiƩ ees across 

all the public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. As per LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, only memberships of 
Audit CommiƩ ee and Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee have been taken into consideraƟ on for the purpose of 
ascertaining the limit.

• All the Independent Directors except Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ  are below the age of seventy fi ve years.
• In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors fulfi l the condiƟ ons specifi ed in the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons 

and are Independent of the Management.
• Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga is son of Shri Pradip Kumar Daga.
• FamiliarisaƟ on programme inducted to the Independent Director are disclosed on the website of the Company in 

the Investors relaƟ on secƟ on at hƩ p://www.dil-india.com/familarisaƟ on.html.
CORE SKILLS/ EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN THE CONTEXT OF ITS BUSINESSES AND 
SECTORS
The Company requires skill in the engineering for the gear transmission equipments for manufacture of various types of 
gears required in Steel. Power, sugar, cement and other heavy engineering units and automobile gears and solar power 
generaƟ on followed by accounts, markeƟ ng, legal and administraƟ on and all of these skills are available to the Board 
through the fi ve experienced members of the Board. 

Skills / experƟ se /
competencies

DescripƟ on Availability

Strategy and planning - Ability to think strategically,
-  idenƟ fy and assess opportuniƟ es and threats
- Develop strategies in the context of the company’s objecƟ ves, policies 

and prioriƟ es 

Yes
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Skills / experƟ se /
competencies

DescripƟ on Availability

Policy Development - Ability to idenƟ fy key issues and opportuniƟ es for the Company and
- develop policies to guide operaƟ ons of the Company

Yes

Governance, Risk and 
Compliance

- Experience in the applicaƟ on of corporate governance principles in a 
Company,

- Ability to idenƟ fy key risks to the Company in diff erent areas including 
legal and regulatory compliance

Yes

Financial Performance - Qualifi caƟ ons and experience in accounƟ ng and/or fi nance and 
- the ability to analyze key fi nancial statements, criƟ cally assess fi nancial 

viability and performance
- ability to contribute to strategic fi nancial planning 

Yes

Government RelaƟ ons 
(policy & process)

- Experience in managing government relaƟ ons and industry advocacy 
strategies

Yes

Commercial Experience - A broad range of commercial / business experience, preferably in the 
small to medium enterprise context, in areas including communicaƟ ons, 
markeƟ ng, business systems, pracƟ ces and improvement.

Yes

MarkeƟ ng and 
communicaƟ ons

- Experience in and thorough understanding of communicaƟ on with 
industry groups and end users.

Yes

• The Board hereby confi rms that in its opinion the three Independent Directors fulfi l the condiƟ ons specifi ed in 
these regulaƟ ons and are independent of the management.

• No Independent Director resigned during the year.
• The Company does not have any stock opƟ on scheme.
BOARD MEETINGS
Dates for the Board meeƟ ng are decided well in advance and communicated to the Directors.  The Agenda along with the 
notes are sent at least seven days in advance to the each Board Member.
The Board of Directors met four Ɵ mes during the year on 30/05/2018, 13/08/2018, 14/11/2018, and 13/02/2019 
respecƟ vely.

Name of the  Director No. of Board MeeƟ ng AƩ ended AƩ ended last AGM held on 14/09/2018
Shri  Pradip Kumar Daga 4 No
Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga 4 Yes
Shri  Sujit ChakravorƟ 4 Yes
Shri  Anand Prasad Agarwalla 4 Yes
Smt Meera Dokania 4 Yes

Shareholding of the Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors in the Company as on 31st March, 2019:

Name of the Director No of equity shares held as on 31st March, 2019
Shri  Sujit ChakravorƟ Nil
Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla Nil
Smt Meera Dokania Nil

The informaƟ on as required under Schedule-II of SEBI (LODR), RegulaƟ ons, 2015 as amended is made available to the 
Board.
The Board periodically reviews Compliance Report of all laws applicable to the Company. Steps are taken by the Company 
to recƟ fy instances of non-compliance, if any.
The Company has adopted Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. 
The said Code of Conduct is available on the website of company in the Investors RelaƟ ons secƟ on. The Company has 
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received confi rmaƟ ons from the Directors as well as Senior Management Personnel regarding Compliance of Code of 
Conduct and Ethics during the year under review. In addiƟ on to this a separate Code of Conduct for dealing in equity 
shares in the Company is also in place and has been complied with.

Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga, Vice Chairman-cum- Joint Managing Director has given a cerƟ fi cate to the Board of Directors 
in pursuance of SEBI(LODR) RegulaƟ ons, 2015

DECLARATION BY THE CEO UNDER SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS,2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE OF THE 
CODE OF CONDUCT.

In accordance with SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟ ons 2015, I hereby confi rm that all the Directors, KMP  and the Senior 
Management personnel of Deepak Industries Limited have affi  rmed compliance to Code of Conduct and Ethics framed 
by the Company for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2019.

Yashwant Kumar Daga
Kolkata, 29/05/2019  Vice-Chairman-cum- Joint Managing Director

(II) AUDIT COMMITTEE
 The Audit CommiƩ ee comprises of three Directors, namely Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, Chairman, Shri Yashwant 

Kumar Daga, VCJMD and Smt Meera Dokania, as Members. The Members have adequate knowledge of accounts 
and fi nancial maƩ ers.  The Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary of the CommiƩ ee.

 The role of Audit CommiƩ ee includes –
 -  oversight of Company’s fi nancial reporƟ ng process and disclosure of fi nancial informaƟ on to ensure that the 

fi nancial statements are correct, suffi  cient and credible;  
 - recommending the appointment, re-appointment, remuneraƟ on and terms of appointment of auditors and 

approval of payment for any other services rendered by statutory auditors ;  
 - reviewing with the management quarterly results and annual fi nancial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval;  
 - approval or any subsequent modifi caƟ on of any transacƟ ons of the Company with related parƟ es;  
 - review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and eff ecƟ veness of audit process; 
 - evaluaƟ on of internal fi nancial controls and risk management system;  scruƟ ny of inter corporate loans and 

investments, if any and 
 - reviewing of funcƟ oning of Vigil Mechanism. 
 The terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩ ee are in conformity with the requirements with the /SEBI(LODR) 

RegulaƟ ons, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. The audit commiƩ ee inter-alia reviews annual and quarterly 
fi nancial statements, accounƟ ng policies, system of internal controls, reports of internal auditors, Related party 
transacƟ ons, recommend the appointment of statutory auditors, internal auditors, appointment of Chief Financial 
Offi  cer, and ensuring of compliance with stock exchanges and other legal requirements.

 The Audit CommiƩ ee met four Ɵ mes during the year respecƟ vely on 30/05/2018, 13/08/2018, 14/11/2018 and 
13/02/2019. The aƩ endance of each members of the commiƩ ee is given below. Statutory and Internal Auditors 
also aƩ ended the meeƟ ng on the invitaƟ on of the Chairman of the meeƟ ng.

Name of the Member No of   MeeƟ ngs held No of MeeƟ ngs aƩ ended
Shri A.P. Agarwalla 4 4
Shri Yashwant Kumar Daga 4 4
Smt Meera Dokania 4 4

(III)  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
 The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee comprises of three Directors, namely Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, 

Chairman, Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ , and Smt Meera Dokania, as Members. 
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 The powers, role and terms of reference of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee cover the maƩ ers 
specifi ed under RegulaƟ on 19 of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons as well as SecƟ on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The role of NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee includes –
 - FormulaƟ on of criteria for determining qualifi caƟ ons, posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of a Director ;
 - Recommending to the Board a policy relaƟ ng to the remuneraƟ on for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and other employees;
 - FormulaƟ on of criteria for evaluaƟ on of Independent Directors and the Board;
 - Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
 - IdenƟ fying persons who are qualifi ed to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of their appointment and removal.
 - Whether to extend or conƟ nue the term of appointment of the Independent Director on the basis of the 

report of performance evaluaƟ on of Independent Directors.
 - Recommend to the Board, all remuneraƟ on, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
 The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on commiƩ ee inter-alia  formulates the criteria for determining qualifi caƟ on, 

posiƟ ve aƩ ributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relaƟ ng to the remuneraƟ on 
for the Directors, key managerial personnel and Senior Management Personnel and other employees, idenƟ fy 
persons who are qualifi ed to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry evaluaƟ on of 
every Director’s performance.

 The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee met two Ɵ mes during the year on 30/05/2018 and 13/02/2019. 
The aƩ endance of each members of the commiƩ ee is given below. 

Name of the Member No of   MeeƟ ngs held No of MeeƟ ngs aƩ ended
Shri A.P. Agarwalla 2 2
Shri S. ChakravorƟ  2 2
Smt Meera Dokania 2 2

 The RemuneraƟ on policy of the Company is annexed with the Board’s report which may please be referred to. 
Chairman of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee aƩ ended the last AGM.

 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
 The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee lays down the framework for performance evaluaƟ on of 

Independent Directors.  The framework used for performance evaluaƟ on of the Independent Directors covers 
the areas relevant to their funcƟ oning as Independent Directors and is based on the expectaƟ on that they are 
performing their duƟ es in a manner which should create and conƟ nue to build sustainable value for shareholders 
and in accordance with the duƟ es and obligaƟ ons imposed upon them.

 The performance evaluaƟ on of Independent Directors was done by the enƟ re Board of Directors and in the 
evaluaƟ on of the Directors, the Director subject to evaluaƟ on, had not parƟ cipated.

(IV) DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS (01/04/2017 to 31/03/2019)
 The ExecuƟ ve Vice-Chairman-cum-Joint Managing Director is paid remuneraƟ on approved by the Board and 

shareholders and other Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors are paid siƫ  ng fees for aƩ ending the meeƟ ngs of the Board and 
CommiƩ ee and also commission approved by the Board of Directors from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

Name of Director Salary Benefi ts Total (`)

Yashwant Kumar 
Daga, (Vice-
Chairman-cum-Joint 
Managing Director  

6720000 1008460 7728460 ExecuƟ ve CompensaƟ on consists of fi xed salary; no 
variable payment is made to the Director.
The iniƟ al contract is for a period of fi ve years with eff ect 
from 15/11/2014 to 14/11/2019 which has since been 
renewed for another term of fi ve years from 15/11/2019 
to 14/11/2024.
The noƟ ce period is three months
No stock opƟ on has been issued
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Siƫ  ng Fees Commission paid during  
the year (for  FY 2017-

18) (Provided for FY 
2018-19)

Board 
MeeƟ ng

Audit 
CommiƩ ee 

MeeƟ ng

Stakeholders 
RelaƟ onship 
commiƩ ee

NominaƟ on and 
RemuneraƟ on 

CommiƩ ee

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

CommiƩ ee
Smt Meera 
Dokania

40000 8000 2000 4000 - 275000
(350000)

Shri A.P. 
Agarwalla

40000 8,000 2000 4000 4000 275000
(350000)

Shri S. 
ChakravorƟ 

40000 - 2000 4000 4000 275000
(350000)

• Non-execuƟ ve Directors are paid Siƫ  ng fees of Rs. 10000/-for aƩ ending each meeƟ ng of the Board and Rs.2000/- 
for aƩ ending each meeƟ ng of  CommiƩ ee and commission on net profi ts of the Company as recommended by the 
NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee and approved by the Board.

• No stock opƟ on is available to any of the Directors.
• The service contract of the ExecuƟ ve Director is iniƟ ally for fi ve years and noƟ ce period is three months without 

any severance fees except the reƟ rement benefi ts as may be determined by the Board at the Ɵ me of reƟ rement. 
There is only fi xed components of the salary for ExecuƟ ve Directors.

• During the year the Company has paid Rs 92000/- as professional fees to  Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, Advocate, 
Director of the Company and Rs.39000/- to his son Shri Niraj Agarwalla, Advocate,. The payments to them were at 
arm’s length price and in the ordinary course of business. There were no other than above pecuniary relaƟ onships 
or transacƟ ons of the ExecuƟ ve and Non -ExecuƟ ve Directors vis-a-vis the Company. 

(V) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
 The CommiƩ ee comprises of three Non-ExecuƟ ve Independent Directors namely, Smt Meera Dokania as Chairman, 

Shri Sujit ChakravorƟ , Shri A.P. Agarwalla as members and. Shri Vithal Das Mall, Secretary of the Company acts as 
the secretary of the commiƩ ee. The Compliance Offi  cer of the Company is Shri Vithal Das Mall, Company Secretary.  

 The CommiƩ ee deals with the shareholder’s complaints and grievances etc. As per the CerƟ fi cates furnished by 
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents M/S Maheshwari DatamaƟ cs Private Limited, the Company did not receive 
any Investors complaints during the year ended 31st March, 2019 and there were no pending complaints as on 31st 
March, 2019.

 The commiƩ ee met one Ɵ me during the year on 13/02/2019 in which all the CommiƩ ee members were present.
(VI) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
 The Board of Directors of the Company have consƟ tuted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) CommiƩ ee of the 

Board comprising three  Directors Shri Pradip Kumar Daga as  Chairman, Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, and Shri Sujit 
ChakravorƟ  as members and Shri Vithal Das Mall acts as Secretary of the CommiƩ ee.

 The Board on the recommendaƟ on of the CommiƩ ee has framed a CSR policy which has been hosted on the 
company website in the Investors RelaƟ on secƟ on at hƩ p://www.dil-india.com/investors/CSR%20POLICY%20DIL.
pdf

 The CommiƩ ee held two meeƟ ng on 30/05/2018 and 13/02/2019 in which all the commiƩ ee members were 
present.

(VII) MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
 One separate meeƟ ng of the Independent Directors was held on 18/01/2019 in which all the Independent Directors 

were present to review the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole with the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company and also to assess the quality, quanƟ ty and Ɵ meliness of fl ow of 
informaƟ on between the Company management and the Board as per Para VII of schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(VIII) SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM
 Share transfer documents are registered and cerƟ fi cate returned within prescribed Ɵ me from the date of receipt, 

if the documents are clear in all respects as per provisions of LODR. The transfers are approved by the Secretary/
Director of the Company in consultaƟ on with the Managing Director and/or by the Board. 

 There was no pending request for share transfer etc. as on 31st March, 2019.
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(IX) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture company.
(X) FAMILARISATION PROGRAMME
 The Board has framed a familiarisaƟ on programme  to familiarise the Independent Directors their roles, rights, 

responsibiliƟ es in the Company, nature of industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company 
etc through the various programmes..

 The FamiliarisaƟ on programmes have been disclosed on the company’s website in the Investors RelaƟ ons secƟ on 
at hƩ p://www.dil-india.com/familarisaƟ on.html.

(XI) ANNUAL GENERAL  MEETINGS
 LocaƟ on, date and Ɵ me for last three Annual General MeeƟ ngs were as follows:

Year LocaƟ on Date Time No. of Special 
ResoluƟ on Passed

2016-17 16, Hare Street, Kolkata-700 001 29/09/2016 2.00 P M Nil
2017-18 -do- 10/08/2017 1.00 P.M 1
2018-19 -do- 14/09/2018 2.00 P M 4

 i) Five Special ResoluƟ ons were passed during last three Annual General MeeƟ ngs.

Date Special ResoluƟ on MaƩ er
10/08/2017 Removal of the promoter enƟ ty from promoter category in the shareholding paƩ ern
14/09/2018 Special resoluƟ on to borrow in excess of the paid up capital and free reserves and share premium 

account by ` 300 crores
14/09/2018 Special resoluƟ on for mortgaging and /or charging all or any of the moveable and immovable 

properƟ es both present and future upto the amount lent by the lenders
14/09/2018 Special ResoluƟ on for re-classifi caƟ on of the promoters
14/09/2018 Special resoluƟ on for re-appointment of Shri Pradip Kumar Daga as Chairman-cum managing Director 

of the Company

 ii) Two special resoluƟ ons were passed in the EGM held on 28/03/2019, one on for the re-appointment of Shri 
Yashwant Kumar Daga, as Vice-Chairman-cum-Joint Managing Director and other for the conƟ nuaƟ on of Shri 
Sujit ChakravorƟ  as non-execuƟ ve Director of the Company despite aƩ aining the age of 75 years.

 iii) No Special ResoluƟ on was passed through the postal ballot during the year.
 iv) No Special ResoluƟ on is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot in the ensuing Annual General 

MeeƟ ng of the Company.  However, for other special resoluƟ ons, if any, in the future, the same will be 
decided at the relevant Ɵ me.

 v) Procedure for postal ballot, if any,  is as per the provisions contained in this behalf in the Companies Act, 
2013 and rule made there under namely The Companies (management and AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, are followed.

(XII) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
 There is no pracƟ ce to send half-yearly report to each shareholder. Company is regularly publishing all its quarterly, 

half yearly and yearly results in print media in English Business Standard and local language in Sukhabar which are 
widely circulated in West Bengal as well as naƟ onally.

 The Company has a website www.dil-india.com to display the quarterly results and other informaƟ on as required 
under the lisƟ ng agreement.  No presentaƟ on have been made to Investors RelaƟ ons/Analysts and stakeholders of 
the Company.

(XIII) GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

i) Date, Ɵ me and venue of forthcoming 
AGM

Tuesday, the 17th September, 2019 at 2.00 P M at 
16, Hare Street, Kolkata-700 001 

ii) Financial Calendar 2019-2020 (TentaƟ ve) 
First  unaudited Quarterly Results Middle of August, 2019
Second unaudited Quarterly Results Middle of November, 2019
Third unaudited Quarterly Results Middle of February, 2020
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Audited yearly Results for the year 
ended 31st March,2020.

Before end of May, 2020

iii)  Annual Book Closure dates 11.06.2019 to 17.09.2019 (both days inclusive) 
iv)  Payment of Dividend ` 10/- per share for the year 2018-19
v) LisƟ ng on Stock Exchanges The CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange  Limited

7, Lyons Range, Murgighata, Dalhousie, Kolkata, West Bengal 700001
vi) Annual lisƟ ng fee LisƟ ng fee has been paid upto and for the year 2019-2020.
vii)  ISIN No. of the Company : INE 485J01016
viii) Stock Code in CalcuƩ a Stock 

Exchange
10014084

MARKET PRICE DATA
There has been no trading of the Company’s share during the year on The CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange.
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT 
The Company has appointed M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟ cs Pvt. Ltd., Kolkata, as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for 
Company’s securiƟ es held in physical as well as in electronic mode.
The address and contact details of RTA are as below: 
Maheshwari DatamaƟ cs Pvt.Ltd, 5th fl oor, 23, R N Mukherjee Road, Kolkata – 700 001, Phone: 033-2243-5809; 2243-
5029, 2248-2248 Fax: 033-2248-4787 E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com Website: www.mdpl.in
SHAREHOLDING DETAILS OF COMPANY
Shareholding PaƩ ern of Company as on 31st March, 2019

Category No. of Shares Held % of Total Paid up Capital
Promoters & Promoters Group 2732044 69.05
Financial InsƟ tuƟ ons & Banks 142188 3.59
Bodies Corporate including clearing Member 689858 17.44
Resident Individual 392343 9.92
Mutual Funds NIL NIL
NRIs/OCBs NIL NIL
Insurance Companies NIL NIL
TOTAL 3956433 100.00

DistribuƟ on of Shareholding by category as on 31st March, 2019

From To No of Shares held % of total paid-up 
capital

No of 
Shareholders

% of Total No of 
Shareholders

Up to 500 3575 32.3077 21 32.3077
501 1000 12318 26.1538 17 26.1538

1001 2000 8723 12.3077 8 12.3077
3001 4000 3596 1.5385 1 1.5385
5001 10000 24577 6.1538 4 6.15.8

Above 10000 3903644 21.5385 14 21.5385
Total 3956433 100.0000 65 100.0000

DEMATERIALIZATION AND TRADING OF SHARE ON STOCK EXCHANGE 
The Company is pleased to inform that shares of the Company are available for dematerializaƟ on with NSDL as well 
as with CDSL. The equity shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading for all categories of Investors 
RelaƟ ons.  As on 31st March, 2019, 3771355 comprising 95.32% of the equity capital stood dematerialized.
The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs/ Warrants or any ConverƟ ble instruments, which may have likely impact 
on Equity shares of the Company.
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COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES.
There is basically no commodity price risk as the same is taken care of at the Ɵ me of quotaƟ on of the enquiry of the order 
and also the Company does not take long period supply orders. Foreign exchange risk and hedging acƟ viƟ es are taken 
care of by forward contracts.
PLANT LOCATION
i)  62, Hazra Road, Kolkata-700 019
ii) 14/7, Mathura Road, Faridabad (Haryana)
iii) Plot no. 62, Sector -11, Rudrapur Dist Udham Singh Nagar, UƩ ranchal.
iv) Village: Rojhani, Dist: Shajapur, MP. (Solar Plant)
v) Plot. No. 292, Sarve 75 & 80, Belur Industrial Area, Dharward, Karnataka
vi) Village-Bhagola, Bhagola Delvi Road, Tehsil & district-Palwal-121 102
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
Deepak Industries Limited, 16, Hare Street, Kolkata-700 001 Phone Numbers:  033-2248-2391/2/3, Fax: 033-2248-9382 
E-mail: secretary@dil-india.com Website:  www.dil-india.com.
ALL CREDIT RATINGS OBTAINED BY THE ENTITY
The company has not issued any debt instruments or raised any fi xed deposits and the Company has no proposal to 
mobilise funds through such schemes whether in India or abroad.  The Credit raƟ ng obtained by the company from ICRA 
for working capital and term loan is [ICRA].AA-Stable as on 21/09/2018
(XIV) DISCLOSURES
 i) All related party transacƟ ons have been entered into the ordinary course of business and were placed 

periodically before the audit commiƩ ee in summary form including transacƟ ons for which omnibus approval 
of the Audit CommiƩ ee was taken. There were no material individual transacƟ ons with related parƟ es which 
were not in the normal course of business required to be placed before the audit commiƩ ee and that may 
have potenƟ al confl ict with the interest of the Company at large. All individual transacƟ ons with related 
parƟ es or others were on arm’s length basis. Details of related party transacƟ ons during the year ended the 
31st March, 2019 have been set out under an appropriate note in  Schedule to the  Annual Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

 ii) All AccounƟ ng Standards mandatorily required have been followed without excepƟ on in preparaƟ on of the 
fi nancial statements.

 iii) Procedure for assessment of risk and its minimisaƟ on have been laid down by the Company and reviewed 
by the Board. These procedures are periodically reassessed to ensure that execuƟ ve management controls 
risks through means of a properly defi ned framework.

 iv)  The Company has fully complied with all the requirements of regulatory authoriƟ es on Capital Markets and 
consequently, no penalƟ es/ strictures have been imposed against it during the last three years.

 v) The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy which has been put on the website of the Company 
in the Investors RelaƟ ons secƟ on at hƩ p://www.dil-india.com/investors/DIL_Vigil_Mechanism.pdf and no 
personnel have been denied access to the Audit CommiƩ ee. Shri Vithal Das Mall, Company Secretary has 
been appointed as Vigil Offi  cer under the said policy. 

 vi) There has been no non-compliance by the Company during the year and no penalƟ es, strictures imposed 
on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any maƩ er relaƟ ng to the capital 
markets during the last three years.

 vii) Management Discussion and Analysis is a part of Annual Report. Shareholders informaƟ on secƟ on forms 
part of the Annual Report

 viii) There were no fi nancial and commercial transacƟ ons by Senior management as defi ned in SEBI (LODR) 
RegulaƟ ons, 2015 where they have any personal interest that may have a potenƟ al confl ict with the interests 
of the Company at large requiring disclosure by them to the Board of Directors of the Company and that the 
same has been confi rmed by all the Senior Management.

 ix) ReconciliaƟ on of Share Capital Audit is carried out by PracƟ cing Company Secretaries on quarterly basis 
to reconcile the total admiƩ ed paid-up capital with NaƟ onal securiƟ es Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) with the total issued and paid-up capital. The reconciliaƟ on audit 
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confi rms that the total issued and paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical 
form and total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

 x) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirement of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 e.g., 
ConsƟ tuƟ on of the Board, Audit CommiƩ ee, Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee, NominaƟ on and 
RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee, and a report on the Compliance report on the Corporate Governance is submiƩ ed 
to the stock Exchange every quarter. The Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements of 
SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

 xi) The Company has obtained a cerƟ fi cate from  Shri Pravin Kumar Drolia, PracƟ sing Company Secretary that 
none of the Directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualifi ed from being appointed 
or conƟ nuing as Directors of companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Aff airs or any such authority.

 xii) No complaints have been fi led under the Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (PrevenƟ on, ProhibiƟ on 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the fi nancial year and no complaints are pending as on the end of the 
fi nancial year.

 xiii) Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors
 The details of total fees for all services paid by the listed enƟ ty and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 

statutory auditor and all enƟ Ɵ es in the network fi rm/network enƟ ty of which the statutory auditor is a part are as 
follows:

Type of Service For FY 2018-19 Remarks
Audit Fees 10,00,000

The Company has no subsidiaries.Others 6,75,000
Total 16,75,000

(XV) DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT.
 There were no undelivered shares with the Company to be eligible for transfer to the demat suspense account or 

unclaimed suspense account and no report thereon is required to be given by the Company/
(XVI) NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENT
 1. The Board
  The Company has an execuƟ ve Chairman
 2. Shareholders’ Right
  Half yearly fi nancial results including summary of the signifi cant events in the last six months are presently 

not being sent to shareholders of the Company.
 3. Audit Qualifi caƟ on
  There are no qualifi caƟ ons in the Auditor’s report on the fi nancial statements to the Shareholders of the 

Company.
 4. Separate Post for Chairman and CEO
  Presently, the Company has a execuƟ ve Chairman.
 5. ReporƟ ng of Internal Auditor
  Internal Auditors are invited to the meeƟ ng of Audit CommiƩ ee wherein they interact directly with   the 

CommiƩ ee.
(XVII) DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCES SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES  (b) TO (i) OF SUB 

REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 OF SEBI(LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015
 The Company is in compliance with all the regulaƟ ons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulaƟ on (2) of 

regulaƟ on 46 except the regulaƟ on 24 which is not applicable to the Company as the Company has no subsidiary.
(XVIII) CEO  AND CFO CERTIFICATION
 The Vice Chairman –cum- Joint Managing Director, that is, the Chief ExecuƟ ve Offi  cer (CEO) and CFO gives the annual 

cerƟ fi caƟ on on the fi nancial reporƟ ng and internal controls to the Board in terms of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.  
The CEO and CFO also give quarterly cerƟ fi caƟ on on the fi nancial results while placing the fi nancial results before 
the Board in terms of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

 The Board of Directors at their MeeƟ ng held on 29th May 2019 adopted the above Report
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DROLIA & COMPANY
3rd FLOOR, ROOM NO.19, 9, CROOKED LANE, KOLKATA-700069
MOBILE NO.- 9831196869,EMAIL ID: droliapravin@yahoo.co.in

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Members,
Deepak Industries Ltd,
16, Hare Street,
Ko lkata 700 001

I have examined the revelant records of M/s. Deepak Industries Limited (“The Company”) having registered office at 16, 
Hare Street, Kolkata - 700 001 for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance 
under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019. I have obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. My examination was 
limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of the Corporate governance. This certificate is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness; with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
In my opinion to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stated in the aforesaid regulations, 2015. 

For Drolia & Company
(Company Secretaries)

Place: 9, Crooked Lane, (Pravin Kumar Drolia)
Kolkata 700069 Proprietor
Date: 29th May, 2019 CP 1362

FCS 2366
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ANNEXUREͳVII

FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the fi nancial year ended on 31st March, 2019.
[Pursuant to secƟ on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

AdministraƟ on) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L63022WB1954PLC021638
ii) RegistraƟ on Date 08TH MAY, 1954
iii) Name of the Company DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
v) Address of the Registered offi  ce and contact details 16, HARE STREET, KOLKATA-700001
vi) Whether listed company Yes / No YES
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any
MAHESHWARI DATAMATICS PVT LTD
23, R.N.MUKHERJEE ROAD, 5th FLOOR, KOLKATA-700001
PHONE: 033-2248-2248, 2231-6389, FAX: 2248-4787
EMAIL: info@mdpl.in; mdpldc@yahoo.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business acƟ viƟ es contribuƟ ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and DescripƟ on of main products/ 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Industrial Gears 3563 84.43%

2 Automobile Gears 3563 13.80%

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S. No NAME AND 
ADDRESS OF THE

COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of shares held Applicable 
SecƟ on

NIL

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[As on 01/Apr/2018]

No of Shares held at the end of the year [As 
on 31/Mar/2019]

% change 
during 

the Year Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters          
(1) Indian          
a) Individual/ HUF 2207444 0 2207444 55.7938 2207444 0 2207444 55.7938 0.0000
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. 524600 0 524600 13.2594 524600 0 524600 13.2594 0.0000
e) Banks/Fi - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A)(1) 2732044 0 2732044 69.0532 2732044 0 2732044 69.0532 0.0000
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Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[As on 01/Apr/2018]

No of Shares held at the end of the year [As 
on 31/Mar/2019]

% change 
during 

the Year Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

(2) Foreign          
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

2732044 0 2732044 69.0532 2732044 0 2732044 69.0532 0.0000

B. Public Shareholding          
1. InsƟ tuƟ ons          
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks/FI 142188 0 142188 3.5938 142188 0 142188 3.5938 0.0000
c)Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Alternate Investment Funds - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Porƞ olio Investors - - - - - - - - -
Provident Funds / Pension 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

Qualifi ed Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total(B)(1):- 142188 0 142188 3.5938 142188 0 142188 3.3598 0.0000
2. Non-InsƟ tuƟ ons          
a) Bodies Corp.          
i) Indian 688858 364325 1053183 26.6195 689858 0 689858 17.4364 -9.1831
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals          
i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

9990 19028 29018 0.7334 9990 13578 23568 0.5957 -0.1378

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of  Rs. 1 lakh

0 0 0 0.0000 197275 171500 368775 9.3209 9.3209

c) Others (Specify)          
Non Resident Indians - - - - - - - - -
Qualifi ed Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
Custodian of Enemy Property - - - - - - - - -
Foreign NaƟ onals - - - - - - - - -
Clearing Members - - - - - - - - -
Trusts - - - - - - - - -
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Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[As on 01/Apr/2018]

No of Shares held at the end of the year [As 
on 31/Mar/2019]

% change 
during 

the Year Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Foreign Bodies-D R - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Porƞ olio Investors - - - - - - - - -
NBFCs registered with RBI - - - - - - - - -
Employee Trusts - - - - - - - - -
DomesƟ c Corporate Unclaimed 
Shares Account

- - - - - - - - -

Sub-total(B)(2):- 698848 383353 1082201 27.3529 897123 185078 1082201 27.3529 0.0000
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

841036 383353 1224389 30.9467 1039311 185078 1224389 30.9468 0.0000

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3573080 383353 3956433 100.0000 3771355 185078 3956433 100.0000 0.0000

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl No Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year [As on 01/Apr/2018]

Shareholding at the end of the year [As 
on 31/Mar/2019]

% 
change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the Year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 ASHA DEVI DAGA 604806 15.2866 0.0000 604806 15.2866 0.0000 0.0000
2 NANDINI DAGA 870625 22.0053 0.0000 870625 22.0053 0.0000 0.0000
3 YASHWANT KUMAR DAGA 524313 13.2522 0.0000 524313 13.2522 0.0000 0.0000
4 PRADIP KUMAR DAGA 207700 5.2497 0.0000 207700 5.2497 0.0000 0.0000
5 COPLAMA PRODUCTS 

PRIVATE LIMITED
524600 13.2594 0.0000 524600 13.2594 0.0000 0.0000

TOTAL 2732044 69.0532 0.0000 2732044 69.0532 0.0000 0.0000

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl 
No

Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year [01/Apr/18]/ 

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding during 
the year [01/Apr/18 to 31/Mar/19]

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

1 ASHA DEVI DAGA
01/04/2018 604806 15.2866
31/03/2019 604806 15.2866 604806 15.2866

2 NANDINI DAGA
01/04/2018 870625 22.0053
31/03/2019 870625 22.0053 870625 22.0053

3 YASHWANT KUMAR DAGA
01/04/2018 524313 13.2522
31/03/2019 524313 13.2522 524313 13.2522

4 PRADIP KUMAR DAGA
01/04/2018 207700 5.2497
31/03/2019 207700 5.2497 207700 5.2497
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Sl 
No

Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year [01/Apr/18]/ 

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding during 
the year [01/Apr/18 to 31/Mar/19]

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

5 COPLAMA PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
01/04/2018 542600 13.2594
31/03/2019 524600 13.2594 524600 13.2594

(iv) Shareholding PaƩ ern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl 
No

Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year [01/Apr/18]

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding during the 
year [01/Apr/18 to 31/Mar/19]

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1 JALPAIGURI HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 
01/04/2018 618312 15.6280
31/03/2019 618312 15.6280 618312 15.6280

2 NAVIN AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.
01/04/2018 200525 5.0683
31/08/2018-Transfer -200525 5.0683 0 0.0000

3 NAVIN UDYOG PROMOTIONS LTD.
01/04/2018 162500 4.1072
31/08/2018-Transfer -162500 4.1072 0 0.0000

4 ICICI BANK LTD 
01/04/2018 142188 3.5958
31/03/2019 142188 3.5958 142188 3.5958

5 KARIKISH VYAPAAR PRIVATE LIMITED 
01/04/2018 5250 0.1327
31/03/2019 5250 0.1327 5250 0.1327

6 KNITWORTH LEAE FINANCE LTD.
01/04/2018 6236 0.1576
31/03/2019 6236 0.1576 6236 0.1576

7 PNC CAPITAL TRUST LTD. 
01/04/2018 13362 0.3377
31/03/2019 13362 0.3377 13362 0.3377

8 ARIDHI VANIJYA PRIVATE LIMITED
01/04/2018 7127 0.1801
31/03/2019 7127 0.1801 7127 0.1801

9 Bhawani Freight And forwarders Pvt Ltd
01/04/2018 5964 0.1507
31/03/2018 5964 0.1507 5964 0.1507

10 PRJ FINANCE PVT.LTD. 
01/04/2018 15601 0.3943
31/03/2019 15601 0.3943 15601 0.3943
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Sl 
No

Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year [01/Apr/18]

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding during the 
year [01/Apr/18 to 31/Mar/19]

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

11 RISORGIMENTO INDUSTRIAL COMPANY 
LIMITED 
01/04/2018 13362 0.3377
31/03/2019 13362 0.3377 13362 0.3377

12 Achhay lal Yadav
01/04/2018 0 0.000
12/10/2018-Transfer 80500 2.0347 80500 2.0347

13 Shantanu Daga
01/04/2018 0 0.0000
29/09/2018 99850 2.2537 99850 2.2537

14 Ramesh Kumar Poddar
01/04/2018 0 0.0000
12/10/2018-Transfer 91000 2.3001 91000 2.3001

15 Amritesh  Daga
01/04/2018 0 0.0000
29/09/2018-Transfer 97425 2.4624 97425 2.4624

(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl No Name Shareholding at the beginning 
[01/Apr/17]/end of the year [31/

Mar/18]

CumulaƟ ve Shareholding during the 
year [01/Apr/18 to 31/Mar/19]

No. of 
shares

% of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company

Directors
1 PRADIP KUMAR DAGA

01/04/2018 207700 5.2497
31/03/2019 207700 5.2497 207700 5.2497

2 YASHWANT KUMAR DAGA
01/04/2018 524313 13.2522
31/03/2019 524313 13.2522 524313 13.2522

3 Other Directors
01/04/2018 NIL NIL
31/03/2019 NIL NIL NIL NIL

Key Managerial Personnel
1 Vithal Das Mall

01/04/2018 0 0
31/03/2019 0 0 0 0.0000
Other Key Managerial personnel
01/04/2018 NIL NIL
31/03/2019 NIL NIL NIL NIL



DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN No. L63022WB1954PLC021638

42

V.  INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

` Lakhs
Indebtedness at the beginning of the fi nancial 
year
i) Principal Amount 12233.81 3433.98 - 15667.79
ii) Interest due but not paid 38.54 - - 38.54
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.53 - - 0.53
Total (i+ii+iii) 12272.88 3433.98 - 15706.86
Change in Indebtedness during the fi nancial year
• AddiƟ on
• ReducƟ on 1723.65 3266.20 4989.85
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the fi nancial year
i) Principal Amount 10520.98 167.78 - 10688.76
ii) Interest due but not paid 28.03 - - 28.03
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.22 - - 0.22
Total (i+ii+iii) 10549.23 167.78 - 10717.01

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A.  RemuneraƟ on to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵ me Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. 
no.

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on Amount in `
Yashwant Kumar Daga, VDJMD

1. Gross salary
6722060(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟ on 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 1008460

(c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under secƟ on 17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961

2. Stock OpƟ on NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL

4. Commission NIL

- as % of profi t

- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify NIL

Total (A) 7728460

Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the net profi t of the Company 
computed as per sec 197 and 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

43

B.  RemuneraƟ on to other directors:

Sl. 
no.

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on Name of Directors Total 
Amount (`)

Anand Prasad 
Agarwalla

Sujit ChakravorƟ Meera 
Dokania

1. Independent Directors
• Fee for aƩ ending board and  commiƩ ee 

meeƟ ngs
58000 50000 54000 162000

• Commission 275000 275000 275000 825000
• Others, please specify

Total (1) 333000 325000 329000 987000
2. Other Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors

• Fee for aƩ ending board commiƩ ee 
meeƟ ngs

NIL

• Commission NIL
• Others, please specify NIL
Total (2) NIL
Total (B) = (1 + 2) 333000 325000 329000 987000
Total Managerial RemuneraƟ on 333000 325000 329000 987000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 1% of the net profi ts of the Company computed under secƟ on 197 

and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 excluding Siƫ  ng fees within 
the prescribed ceiling under secƟ on 197(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 
no.

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on Key Managerial Personnel (`)
Company Secretary 

Vithal Das Mall
CFO 

Manish Khanna
Total

1. Gross salary 540000 798000 1338000

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟ on 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 110000 612340 722340

(c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under secƟ on 17(3) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

2. Stock OpƟ on NIL NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL

4. Commission
NIL NIL NIL

-  as % of profi t

-  Others, specify...

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL

Total 650000 1410340 2060340
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VII.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type SecƟ on of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
DescripƟ on

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Punishment NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Compounding NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Punishment NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Compounding NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Punishment NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Compounding NIL Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
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Annexure-VIII

InformaƟ on as required under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 on 
conservaƟ on of Energy

(i) Step Taken or Impact on ConservaƟ on of Energy during the year 2018-19
 The company conƟ nues to give high priority to conservaƟ on of energy to conserve and opƟ mize energy 

wherever pracƟ cable by economizing on fuel and power on a conƟ nuous basis by renovaƟ on/up/gradaƟ on in 
high consumpƟ on areas like lighƟ ng, Air CondiƟ oning, heat treatment, supply power factor through addiƟ onal 
condensers. The new machines installed and put to use are highly energy effi  cient

 We append energy conservaƟ on measures implemented in our various units during the above period:
Faridabad Plant
1. Energy saving team of senior and experienced offi  cials of company along with outside Energy consultaƟ on agencies 

Interact Ɵ me to Ɵ me for exploring the new possibiliƟ es of Energy conservaƟ on Projects and working on its Projects.
2. Maintaining the power factor of Electric supply near unity by APFCR Panels.
3. Provided Electric BaƩ ery operated ForkliŌ  -03 Tons in place of Diesel ForkliŌ  and E-Rickshaw for Material movement. 
4. AŌ er commissioning of Servo voltage stabilizer of 3000 KVA at Main HT Electricity Board supply for stabilizing 

voltage, removed around 30 Nos. 25KVA/30 KVA individual LT Servo stabilizers from the machines.
5.  Made the system for Machine procurement with Energy Effi  cient Motors only.
6. Replaced T-5 Tube lights and Overhead 250 WaƩ  Metal halide lights with LED Energy Effi  cient Over head mid bay 

72 WaƩ  lights 
7. Replaced machine lamps from 60 WaƩ  to LED Bulbs of 09 WaƩ .
8. Replaced CFL with LED lights in  Admn. Block offi  ce.
9. In house team done Extensive work for compressed air leakage detecƟ on and prevenƟ on.
10.  Increased the number of natural lighƟ ng in all shop fl oors by fi xing Polycarbonate transparent sheets in the roof.
Rudrapur Plant
11. LED Lamps used against HPMV Lamps:
 1- 250 waƩ s street lamp replaced with 45 waƩ s, Qty-7 No’s
 2- 250 waƩ s plant lamps replaced with 85 waƩ s, Qty-5 No’s
 3- 250 WaƩ s plant lamps replaced with 45 WaƩ s, Qty-3 No’s
12. ConƟ nuously maintain unity power factor with help of automaƟ c power factor control relay panel.
13. Drilling machines coolant pump (0.5kw) running conƟ nuously, circuit modifi ed to protect conƟ nuous running .At 

present coolant motor run only at the Ɵ me of operaƟ on.
14. Changed Conference room CFL lights with LED lights.
Bhagola Plant
15. Maintaining power factor equal to 1 by automaƟ c power factor control Relay Panel Banks.
 Replaced LED lights 
 (I) Led light 30 waƩ  qty-43 nos.
 (ii) Led light 36 waƩ  qty-20 nos. 
 (iii) Led light 118 waƩ  qty-5 nos.
16. Provided UPS 40 Kva for quenching operaƟ on of sqf-5th & 6th to avoid the running of DG set during quenching 

operaƟ on.
17. InstallaƟ on & Commissioning of SQF-5th & 6th PNG fi red instead of Electric Heated Furnaces.
18. Provide Electric BaƩ ery operated forkliŌ  Linde make for material movement instead of diesel ForkliŌ .
19. InstallaƟ on & Commissioning of PNG fi red Endo Gas Generator of SQF-5th & 6th instead of Electric Heated.
20. InstallaƟ on & Commissioning of HT Transformer with OLTC -2500kva,11kv/415v
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B). Technology absorpƟ on
i) The Eff orts Made Towards Technology AbsorpƟ on;
 Company had introduced following technology in last few years for the product quality improvement, Faster 

producƟ on Development, Cost reducƟ on
 1. Straitening of ShaŌ s, 
 2. Shot Peening
 3. Hard Tuning
 4. Gear Teeth Grinding
 5. Marking
 6. CNC Teeth Chamfering(with Auto Part Load/Unload)
 7.  Quality Checking Equipment
 8.  CNC HOB Resharpening
 9. Provided Energy effi  cient Bin washing machine of Karcher make.
 10. Use of Robots on Turn mill centre machines.
 11. Oil spinning system for oil conservaƟ on.
 12. Use of mulƟ  gauging system.
 13. IntroducƟ on of in process gauge with feedback system for off set correcƟ on, to get consistent quality.
ii) Benefi t derived
 1) AutomaƟ on in Process
 2) EliminaƟ on of operator skill dependency
 3) MulƟ ple machining operaƟ ons in one setup
 4) UƟ lizing Latest cuƫ  ng TML technology for cycle Ɵ me improvement
 5) Quality Assurance
iii) Imported Cases

2017-18
AutomaƟ c Staightner  Pas/50-500kn, Cesare Galdabini s.p.a
Reneshaw Equitor 300 Guaging Syste, Reni Shaw PLC.
2016-17
Roughness Tester Make: Mahr, Model-Marsurf Xr1
AMS-CNC VerƟ cal Machining Center
Gear Chamfering & Deburring  m/c 
Precision Slant Bed CNC Chucker Model
Machine/Technology DescripƟ on
Gear Grinding Machine, Viper 500W(HOFLER)
Horizontal machining Centre (BFW)
2015-16
Machine Turning Centre, Make Toshiba, Japan
200 xrf Analyzer & Accessories, Make Bruker, USA
External Cylindrical Grinding Machine, Make MICROMATIC
Double Ended Facing & Centering Machine, Make HMT
Heavy Duty CNC Gear Hobbing Machine, Make HMT
Carl Zeiss Micro Scope  Model:Axio Imager M2M
CNC GeneraƟ ng & Profi le Grinding Machine Model:Lcs/300, Make: Liebherr
Hv3100 AutomaƟ c Hardness Tester Wilsion Make 
Motorized Upright Metallurgical Microcope

 a) Whether the technology been fully uƟ lized: Yes
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 b) If not fully absorbed: NA
iv) Expenditure incurred on R & D (In house  only, not on imported case in Last FY)

  The research and development is being carried out in house by qualifi ed professional for development, 
technology up gradaƟ on.

(C) Foreign Exchange earning and outgo
 The Company is making an all out eff ort of the products and expects improved performance in export in the coming 

year.
(D) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual infl ows during the year and the foreign exchange outgo during 

the year in terms of actual fi gures

Earnings & Expenditures in Foreign Currency: Rs. In lakhs
a) Earnings 

Export 901.95

Tooling Advances (Other Income) 4.81

b) Expenditure 

Travelling 7.57

Repairs & Maintenance 59.14

Others 85.41

Raw Materials (CIF) 75.51

Stores and Spares parts (CIF) 258.48

Capital Goods (CIF) 1502.34
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Deepak Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Deepak Industries Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profi t and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a summary of signifi cant accounƟ ng policies and Other Explanatory Notes for the year ended on 
that date (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the aforesaid  Financial 
Statements give the informaƟ on required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟ ng Standards prescribed under secƟ on 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and the accounƟ ng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and profi t, changes in equity and 
its cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟ ng (SAs), as specifi ed under secƟ on 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibiliƟ es under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’ ResponsibiliƟ es for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements secƟ on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfi lled our 
other ethical responsibiliƟ es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Key Audit MaƩ ers
Key audit maƩ ers are those maƩ ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifi cance in our audit of the 
Financial Statements of the current period. These maƩ ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩ ers. 
We have considered the maƩ ers described below to be the Key Audit MaƩ ers for incorporaƟ on in our Report.

Key audit MaƩ ers Addressing the Key Audit MaƩ ers
Provisions and ConƟ ngencies
RecogniƟ on of provision and/or disclosure for conƟ ngencies 
are based on esƟ mates requiring applicaƟ on of judgement 
with respect to exisƟ ng facts and circumstances which are 
subject to variaƟ on on actual crystallizaƟ on.
The Company has long outstanding maƩ ers involving direct 
and indirect taxes which are pending before appropriate 
authoriƟ es. (Note 39 of Financial Statements)
Management judgment for esƟ maƟ ng the possible ouƞ low 
of resources, if any, in respect of conƟ ngencies/claim/
liƟ gaƟ ons/ against the Company is essenƟ al as it is not 
possible to predict the outcome of pending maƩ ers with 
accuracy.

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived at the 
conclusion regarding reasonableness of the ConƟ ngent 
LiabiliƟ es include the following: 
• We tested the eff ecƟ veness of controls for 

esƟ maƟ ng the possible eff ect of maƩ ers keeping 
in view the provisions of the relevant laws and 
regulaƟ ons;

• We discussed with management the recent 
developments and the status of the maƩ ers having 
signifi cant applicaƟ on;
We reviewed Management’s judgements relaƟ ng 
to the esƟ mates keeping in view the expected 
outcome thereof;

•  Due consideraƟ on has been given to experts’ view 
and opinion on the maƩ ers of signifi cance;
Reviewed the appropriateness and adequacy of 
amounts involved, as required in terms of the 
requirement of IND AS 37 “Provisions, ConƟ ngent 
LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent Assets”.
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Key audit MaƩ ers Addressing the Key Audit MaƩ ers
Impairment Allowances on Trade Receivables 

Gross Trade Receivable of the Company is ` 10762.36 Lakhs 
as on 31st March 2019. This includes signifi cant amounts, 
which have fallen due for payment and are lying outstanding 
for a considerable period of Ɵ me. Management has carried 
impairment allowances of ` 153.13 Lakhs. (Note No. 11 of 
the Financial Statements)
The Company evaluates whether there is any objecƟ ve 
evidence that trade receivables are impaired and 
determines the amount of impairment allowance as a 
result of the inability of the customers to make required 
payments. The Company bases the esƟ mates on the ageing 
of the trade receivables balance, credit worthiness of the 
trade receivables and historical write-off  experience.

Our audit procedures based on which we arrived at 
the conclusion regarding the carrying amount of Trade 
Receivables include the following: 

We obtained an understanding from the 
Management, assessed and tested the design 
and operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of the Company’s key 
controls over the recoveries against the outstanding 
amounts and resultant impairment assessment of 
material Trade Receivables;
We reviewed Management’s assessment and 
evaluaƟ on on the credit worthiness of the major 
trade receivables and historical trends and current 
dealing with the customers;
We further discussed with the Management the 
adequacy of the allowance for impairment as 
recorded and reviewed the supporƟ ng documents 
provided in relaƟ on to such assessment.

InformaƟ on other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaƟ on. The other informaƟ on comprises the 
informaƟ on included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Directors’ Report, Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report, Business Responsibility Report and Report on Corporate Governance, but does not include the Financial 
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other informaƟ on and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connecƟ on with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟ on and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other informaƟ on is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informaƟ on, 
we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.
ResponsibiliƟ es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩ ers stated in secƟ on 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparaƟ on of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs (fi nancial posiƟ on), Profi t or 
Loss (fi nancial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounƟ ng Standards 
specifi ed under secƟ on 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng frauds and other irregulariƟ es; selecƟ on 
and applicaƟ on of appropriate accounƟ ng policies; making judgments and esƟ mates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng records, relevant to the preparaƟ on and presentaƟ on of the 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟ nue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩ ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounƟ ng 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟ ons, or has no realisƟ c alternaƟ ve but 
to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s fi nancial reporƟ ng process.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objecƟ ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standard on AudiƟ ng (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infl uence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepƟ cism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

IdenƟ fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffi  cient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟ ng a material misstatement resulƟ ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resulƟ ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟ onal omissions, 
misrepresentaƟ ons, or the override of internal control;
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟ on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal fi nancial controls system with reference to Financial 
Statements in place and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such controls;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟ ng esƟ mates and 
related disclosures made by management;
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟ ng and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟ ons that may 
cast signifi cant doubt on the Company’s ability to conƟ nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩ enƟ on in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or condiƟ ons may 
cause the Company to cease to conƟ nue as a going concern; and
Evaluate the overall presentaƟ on, structure and content of the fi nancial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the fi nancial statements represent the underlying transacƟ ons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentaƟ on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the fi nancial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the fi nancial statements may be infl uenced. 
We consider quanƟ taƟ ve materiality and qualitaƟ ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluaƟ ng 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the eff ect of any idenƟ fi ed misstatements in the fi nancial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩ ers, the planned scope and Ɵ ming 
of the audit and signifi cant audit fi ndings, including any signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that we idenƟ fy during 
our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟ onships and other maƩ ers that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the maƩ ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩ ers that were of most 
signifi cance in the audit of the fi nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit maƩ ers. We 
describe these maƩ ers in our auditors’ report unless law or regulaƟ on precludes public disclosure about the maƩ er or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maƩ er should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefi ts of such 
communicaƟ on.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-secƟ on (11) of SecƟ on 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the maƩ ers 
specifi ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

ii. As required by SecƟ on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examinaƟ on of those books;
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c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid fi nancial statements comply with the Indian AccounƟ ng Standards specifi ed under 
SecƟ on 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e) On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on March 31, 2019, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of SecƟ on 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements of the 
Company and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our 
report expresses an unmodifi ed opinion on the adequacy and operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of the Company’s internal 
control with reference to fi nancial statements; and

g) With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according 
to the explanaƟ ons given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟ gaƟ ons on its fi nancial posiƟ on in its fi nancial 
statements – Refer Note no. 39 of the fi nancial statements;

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivaƟ ve contracts, for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟ on and 
ProtecƟ on Fund by the Company.

 iii. With respect to the reporƟ ng under SecƟ on 197 (16) of the Act to be included in the Auditors’ Report, in 
our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the RemuneraƟ on ( including 
Siƫ  ng fees) paid by the Company to its Directors during the current year is in accordance with the 
provisions of SecƟ on 197 of the Act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein.

 
For Lodha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAI RegistraƟ on No. 301051E

H K Verma
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 29th May 2019  Membership Number: 055104



DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN No. L63022WB1954PLC021638

52

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE:
The Statement referred to in paragraph i with the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ of our 
Report of even date to the members of Deepak Industries Limited on the fi nancial statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31st March 2019, we report that:
i) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars, including quanƟ taƟ ve details and 

situaƟ on of fi xed assets.
 b. There is a phased programme of verifi caƟ on of such assets, based on which physical verifi caƟ on of fi xed 

assets is being carried out by the management. Discrepancies in respect of fi xed assets verifi ed during the 
year were not material.

 c. Based on verifi caƟ on of Ɵ tle deeds/ lease deeds produced to us by the management and according to 
the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, in our opinion, the Ɵ tle deeds/ lease deeds of immovable 
properƟ es are held in the name of the company.

ii) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verifi ed during the year at reasonable intervals by the 
management. As far as ascertained, discrepancies noƟ ced on verifi caƟ on between the physical stocks and the 
book records were not material and the same has been properly dealt with in the books of account.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, fi rms, limited liability partnership or 
other parƟ es listed in the register maintained under SecƟ on 189 of the Act. Hence clause 3(iii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of secƟ on 186 of the Act, with respect to the investments made. The Company has neither issued 
any guarantee, given any loan nor has provided any security on behalf of any party. Further according to the 
informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the company has not entered into any transacƟ ons as referred to in 
secƟ on 185 of the Act.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits. Consequently, the direcƟ ves issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 
the provisions of secƟ ons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed 
there under, are not applicable to the Company.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by 
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under SecƟ on 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the 
Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the 
prescribed records have been maintained. We have however not made a detailed examinaƟ on of the said records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) a. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, during the year, the Company has generally 
been regular in deposiƟ ng with appropriate authoriƟ es undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Duty of Custom ,Duty 
of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it. However, according to 
the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there is no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these 
which were in arrears as on March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

 b. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the details of disputed dues of income tax, sales 
tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, and Value added Tax, if any, as at March 31, 2019, not deposited 
on account of any dispute are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount Forum Where dispute is Pending
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2000-01) 27.90 Revision pending before Kolkata High Court.
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2002-03) 36.08 Revision pending before Tribunal & High 

Court.
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2005-06) 56.46 Pending before Kolkata High Court.
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2006-07) 63.57 Revision pending before Revision Board 

(State maƩ er seƩ led under SOD Scheme).
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2010-11) 21.33 Revision pending before Revision Board.
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount Forum Where dispute is Pending
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2011-12) 30.75 Revision pending before Revision Board.
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y.2012-13) 20.88 Revision pending before Revision Board.
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Central Sales Tax (F.Y 2014-15) 90.75 Revision pending before Revision Board.
W.B. Sales Tax Act, 1944 W.B. Sales Tax (F.Y 2002-03) 24.21 Revision pending before Tribunal & High 

Court.
W.B. Sales Tax Act, 1944 W.B. Sales Tax (F.Y. 2010-11) 0.88 Revision pending before Revision Board.
Central Excise Act, 1944(Rule 
14 of CENVAT Credit Rule)

CENVAT for Service Tax on Rent 
(F.Y. 2009-10)

4.19 Punjab and Haryana High Court, Chandigarh.

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 6.40 Commissioner of Income Tax VI (Appeals)/
Kolkata.

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax (Assessment Year 
2013-14)

0.26 Commissioner of Income Tax VI (Appeals)/
Kolkata.

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax (Assessment Year 
2015-16)

83.11 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 2/
Kolkata.

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax (Assessment Year 
2016-17)

145.37 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 2/
Kolkata.

viii) In our opinion and on the basis of informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and governments. As explained, the 
company does not have any loan or borrowings from any fi nancial insƟ tuƟ on or any dues to debenture holders.

xi) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company did not raise any money 
by way of iniƟ al public off er or further public off er (including debt instruments). In our opinion and according to the 
informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were 
raised.

x) During the course of our examinaƟ on of books of account carried out in accordance with generally accepted 
audiƟ ng pracƟ ces in India, we have neither come across any incidence of fraud by the Company or on the Company 
by its offi  cers or employees nor have we been informed of any such cases by the management.

xi) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and based on our examinaƟ on of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneraƟ on in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of secƟ on 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

xii) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and based on our examinaƟ on of the records of the 
Company, transacƟ ons with the related parƟ es are in compliance with secƟ ons 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transacƟ ons have been disclosed in the fi nancial statements as required by the 
applicable accounƟ ng standards.

xvi) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and based on our examinaƟ on of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferenƟ al allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
converƟ ble debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and based on our examinaƟ on of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transacƟ ons with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under secƟ on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
For Lodha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAI RegistraƟ on No. 301051E

H K Verma
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 29th May 2019  Membership Number: 055104
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph ii (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to fi nancial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-secƟ on 3 of 
SecƟ on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
We have audited the internal fi nancial controls with reference to the fi nancial statements of Deepak Industries Limited 
(“the Company”) as at March 31, 2019 in conjuncƟ on with our audit of the fi nancial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal fi nancial controls based on the 
internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essenƟ al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
ReporƟ ng (the “Guidance Note”)  issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiliƟ es include 
the design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls that were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for 
ensuring the orderly and effi  cient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevenƟ on and detecƟ on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng records, 
and the Ɵ mely preparaƟ on of reliable fi nancial informaƟ on, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the InsƟ tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on AudiƟ ng prescribed under SecƟ on 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal fi nancial controls with reference to the fi nancial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal fi nancial control with reference to fi nancial statements were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated eff ecƟ vely in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls 
with reference to fi nancial statements and their operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness. Our audit of internal fi nancial controls with 
reference to fi nancial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal fi nancial controls with reference 
to fi nancial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟ ng and evaluaƟ ng the design and 
operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to fi nancial statements
A Company’s internal fi nancial control with reference to fi nancial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporƟ ng and the preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles. A Company’s internal fi nancial control with reference to 
fi nancial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the transacƟ ons and disposiƟ ons of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transacƟ ons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟ on of  fi nancial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisaƟ ons of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevenƟ on or Ɵ mely detecƟ on of unauthorised acquisiƟ on, use, or disposiƟ on of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material eff ect on the  fi nancial statements.
Inherent LimitaƟ ons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to fi nancial statements
Because of the inherent limitaƟ ons of internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projecƟ ons of any evaluaƟ on of the internal fi nancial controls with reference to 
fi nancial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal fi nancial control with reference to fi nancial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟ ons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements and such internal 
fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely as at March 31, 2019, based on the 
internal fi nancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essenƟ al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s ICAI RegistraƟ on No. 301051E

H K Verma
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 29th May 2019  Membership Number: 055104
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019
(` In lakhs)

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 2019   As at March 31, 2018 
ASSETS
(1) Non–current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 16,146.36 13,913.10 
(b) Capital work–in–progress 18.07 455.37 
(c) Intangible Assets 6 56.50 98.76 
(d)  Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 7 100.85 91.04 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 8 186.62 109.33 
(e) Other non–current assets 9 1,392.94 1,553.29 
Total Non Current Assets 17,901.34 16,220.89 
(2) Current assets 
(a) Inventories 10 8,304.25 6,909.30 
(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Trade receivables 11 10,609.23 9,505.34 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 241.86 195.32 
(iii) Other Bank Balances 13 8,517.40 14,307.02 
(iv) Other fi nancial assets 14 344.42 629.34 
(c) Other current assets 15 731.31 605.81 
Total Current Assets 28,748.47 32,152.13 
Total Assets 46,649.81 48,373.02 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital 16 395.64 395.64 
(b) Other Equity 17 26,543.00 21,867.69 
Total Equity 26,938.64 22,263.33 
LiabiliƟ es
(1) Non–current liabiliƟ es
(a) Financial LiabiliƟ es
(i) Borrowings 18 2,249.90 3,060.30 
(ii) Other fi nancial liabiliƟ es 19 438.88 433.13 
(b) Provisions 20 179.19 164.55 
(c) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es (Net) 21 1,104.69 1,082.79 
(d) Other Non–current LiabiliƟ es 22 0.51 1.83 
Total Non Current LiabiliƟ es 3,973.17 4,742.60 
(2) Current liabiliƟ es
(a) Financial LiabiliƟ es
(i) Borrowings 23 7,555.84 11,446.37 
(ii) Trade payables 24
(a) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 471.14 –   
(b) Total Outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

4,155.54 5,407.90 

(iii) Other fi nancial liabiliƟ es 25 1,901.53 1,894.09 
(b) Other current liabiliƟ es 26 1,407.30 2,345.95 
(c) Provisions 27 221.67 272.78 
(d) Current Tax LiabiliƟ es 28 24.98 –   
Total Current LiabiliƟ es 15,738.00 21,367.09 
Total  LiabiliƟ es 19,711.17 26,109.69 
Total Equity and LiabiliƟ es 46,649.81 48,373.02 

Accompanying Notes on Financial Statements 1-48
These notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date P K Daga  Y K Daga
For  Lodha & Co.  (DIN: 00040692)  (DIN: 00040632)
Chartered Accountants Chairman-Cum-Managing Director  Vice Chairman-Cum-joint-Managing Director
Firm Regn No. 301051E
H K  Verma S ChakravorƟ  A P Agarwalla  Meera Dokania
Partner  (DIN: 00066344) (DIN: 00312652)  (DIN: 07094376) 
Membership No. 055104
Kolkata Maneesh Khanna  V D Mall
May 29, 2019 Chief Financial Offi  cer  Company Secretary
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(` In lakhs)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

Accompanying Notes on Financial Statements 1-48
These notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date P K Daga  Y K Daga
For  Lodha & Co.  (DIN: 00040692)  (DIN: 00040632)
Chartered Accountants Chairman-Cum-Managing Director  Vice Chairman-Cum-joint-Managing Director
Firm Regn No. 301051E
H K  Verma S ChakravorƟ  A P Agarwalla  Meera Dokania
Partner  (DIN: 00066344) (DIN: 00312652)  (DIN: 07094376) 
Membership No. 055104
Kolkata Maneesh Khanna  V D Mall
May 29, 2019 Chief Financial Offi  cer  Company Secretary

ParƟ culars  Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Revenue From OperaƟ ons 29 51,994.35 41,232.78 
Other Income 30 1,170.57 1,635.07 
Total income 53,164.92 42,867.85 
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials consumed 31 25,119.50 18,082.01 
Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods,  Stock-in-Trade and work-in 
progress

32 (1,508.00) (497.64)

Employee benefi ts expense 33 5,911.04 5,235.18 
Finance costs 34 1,020.27 1,118.45 
DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ saƟ on expense 35 2,179.45 2,235.63 
Other expenses 36 13,324.03 11,639.45 
Total expenses 46,046.29 37,813.08 
Profi t before tax 7,118.63 5,054.77 
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 38 2,430.00 1,624.74 
(2) Deferred tax 38.1 18.91 164.73 
Profi t for the year 4,669.72 3,265.30 
Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss 8.59 (49.30)
(ii) Income tax relaƟ ng to items that will not be reclassifi ed to profi t 
or loss

38.3 (3.00) 17.06 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 38.4 5.59 (32.24)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 4,675.31 3,233.06 
Earnings per equity share of value of ` 10 each. 43
(1) Basic (`) 118.03 82.53 
(2) Diluted (`) 118.03 82.53 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(A) Equity Share Capital

ParƟ culars Note No. (` in lakhs)
Balance as at April 1,2017 505.61
Changes during the year 16.2.1  (109.97)
Balance as at March 31,2018  395.64 
Changes during the year  –   
Balance as at March 31,2019  395.64 

(B) Other Equity (` in lakhs)

ParƟ culars Reserves and Surplus

 TotalCapital 
Reserve

 Capital 
RedempƟ on 

Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at April 1, 2017  35.36  24.20  21,873.96  21,933.52 

UƟ lisaƟ on for buy back of equity shares  –    –    (3,298.89)  (3,298.89)

Transfer to Capital RedempƟ on Reserve  –    109.97  (109.97)  –   

Profi t for the year  –    –    3,265.30  3,265.30 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year arising from 
Re–measurement of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on (net of 
income tax)

 –    –    (32.24)  (32.24)

Balance as at March 31, 2018  35.36  134.17  21,698.16  21,867.69 

Profi t for the year  –    –    4,669.72  4,669.72 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year arising from 
Re–measurement of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on (net of 
income tax)

 –    –    5.59  5.59 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  35.36  134.17  26,373.47  26,543.00 

Refer Note no. 17 for nature and purpose of reserves
Accompanying Notes on Financial Statements 1–48
These notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For  Lodha & Co. P K Daga  Y K Daga
Chartered Accountants (DIN: 00040692)  (DIN: 00040632)
Firm Regn No. 301051E Chairman-Cum-Managing Director  Vice Chairman-Cum-joint-Managing Director

H K  Verma S ChakravorƟ  A P Agarwalla  Meera Dokania
Partner  (DIN: 00066344) (DIN: 00312652)  (DIN: 07094376) 
Membership No. 055104
Kolkata Maneesh Khanna  V D Mall
May 29, 2019 Chief Financial Offi  cer  Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
(` In lakhs)

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 `  `  `  ` 
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7,118.63 5,054.77 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR –
DepreciaƟ on 2,179.45 2,235.63 
(Profi t)/Loss on sale/ discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (3.26) (152.03)
Interest Income (665.82) (1,062.12)
LiabiliƟ es no longer required wriƩ en back (214.19) (117.60)
Finance costs 1,020.27 1,118.45 
AmorƟ saƟ on of Deferred fi nancial instruments 23.41 46.74 

2,339.86 2,069.07 
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 9,458.49 7,123.84 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR –
Trade and other receivables (1,103.89) (2,075.35)
Inventories (1,394.95) (421.81)
Loans and advances (170.03) (331.93)
Trade Payables and other liabiliƟ es (1,478.40) (4,147.27) 1,809.36 (1,019.73)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 5,311.22 6,104.11 
Direct Taxes Paid (2,245.68) (1,629.30)
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,065.54 4,474.81 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Deposits with Bank (original maturity more than three months) 5,789.62 (8,100.97)
Interest Income 955.70 1,062.12 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,758.45) (2,104.71)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.15 186.48 

2,998.02 (8,957.08)
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 2,998.02 (8,957.08)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Paid (1,031.09) (1,123.39)
Payment for Buy back of Equity Shares –   (3,408.85)
Repayment of Long term Borrowings from Bank (1,072.30) (897.54)
Repayment of Sales Tax Deferment Loan (23.10) (23.11)
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings from Bank (3,840.53) –   
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings from Bodies Corporate (50.00) –   
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings from Bank –   3,359.84 
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings from Bodies Corporate –   80.00 

(6,017.02) (2,013.05)
NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (6,017.02) (2,013.05)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 46.54 (6,495.32)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the Year 195.32 6,690.64 
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note 12) 241.86 195.32 
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Note:
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents consists of cash on hand and Bank balances in Current Account, Dividend Account and 

Short Term Deposits with original maturity of less than three months. The details of cash and cash equivalents as 
per note 12 of the balance sheet is as under:

(` In lakhs)

ParƟ culars As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Balances with banks
In current account 84.73 34.99
In Dividend account 145.77 145.77
In Fixed Deposits (having original maturity of less than 3 months) 0.22 0
Cash on hand 11.14 14.56
Total cash and cash equivalents 241.86 195.32

2. ReconciliaƟ on of LiabiliƟ es arising from Financing acƟ viƟ es (` In lakhs)

ParƟ culars As at March 
31, 2018

 Proceeds 
raised/ 

Adjustments 

Repayment/ 
adjustments

As at March 
31, 2019

Long Term Borrowings from Bank 4,067.44 –   (1,072.30) 2,995.14 
Sales Tax Deferment Loan 92.43 –   (23.10) 69.33 
Long Term maturiƟ es of fi nance lease 1.74 –   –   1.74 
Short Term Borrowings from Bank 11,366.37 –   (3,840.53) 7,525.84 
Short Term Borrowings from Bodies Corporate 80.00 –   (50.00) 30.00 
Total 15,607.98 –   (4,985.93) 10,622.05 

3. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared  under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian AccounƟ ng 
Standard – 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

4. The Company has incurred ` 2.40 lakhs in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure 
during the year ended March 31,2019 (Previous year `1.40 lakhs)
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1 Corporate InformaƟ on
 Deepak Industries Limited (‘the company’) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India having 

its registered offi  ce in Kolkata in the State of West Bengal. The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing 
and selling of Industrial and Automobile gears of various capaciƟ es and generaƟ on of solar power. The Company’s 
shares are listed on The CalcuƩ a Stock Exchange Limited.

 The fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of 
the company on May 29,2019 and are subject to the adopƟ on by the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
MeeƟ ng.

2 Statement of compliance and Recent AccounƟ ng Pronouncement
 2.1 Statement of compliance 
  These  fi nancial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounƟ ng and 

comply with the Indian AccounƟ ng Standards (Ind AS) noƟ fi ed under the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent 
noƟ fi ed and applicable.

  AccounƟ ng polices have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Indian AccounƟ ng Standard is 
iniƟ ally adopted or a revision to when exsiƟ ng main accounƟ ng standard requires a change in the accounƟ ng 
policies hitherto in use.

 2.2 ApplicaƟ on of new and revised standards
  (i) Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers: With eff ect from 1st April, 2018, the Company 

has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulaƟ ve catch-up 
method.

  (ii) Appendix B to Ind AS 21- “Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons and Advance ConsideraƟ on and Ind AS 12- 
Income Taxes have been revised with eff ect from 1st April, 2018. 

   The applicaƟ on of Ind AS 115 and revisions/amendments in other standards do not have any material 
impact on the fi nancial statements.

 2.3 Recent AccounƟ ng Pronouncements
  On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Aff airs (“MCA”) has issued Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 noƟ fying Ind AS 116, Leases and Appendix C, ‘Uncertainty over Income 
Tax Treatments’ to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, which are applicable with eff ect from fi nancial period ending 
on or aŌ er April 1, 2019.

  Standards issued but not yet eff ecƟ ve: 
  (I) Ind As 116 - Leases
   Ind AS 116 will aff ect the accounƟ ng of lessees primarily by removing the current disƟ ncƟ on between 

operaƟ ng and fi nance leases. This requires recogniƟ on of an asset (the right-of-use the leased item) 
and a fi nancial liability to pay rentals over the period all lease contracts. An opƟ onal exempƟ on exists 
for short-term and low-value leases.

   The statement of profi t and loss will also be aff ected because the expense in the earlier years of a lease 
is expected to be higher.

   Presently, the Company is in the process of evaluaƟ ng the impact that applicaƟ on of Ind AS 116 is 
expected to have on its fi nancial statements.

  (II)  Appendix C, ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’
   The appendix explains the recogniƟ on and measurement of deferred and current income tax assets 

and liabiliƟ es where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.
   Presently, the Company is in the process of evaluaƟ ng the impact that applicaƟ on of this appendix is 

expected to have on its fi nancial statements.
3 Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies
 3.1 Basis of PreparaƟ on
  The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenƟ on on accrual basis excepƟ ng 

certain fi nancial instruments which are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value/ amorƟ zed costs 
at the end of each reporƟ ng period.

  Historical cost convenƟ on is generally based on the fair value of the consideraƟ on given in exchange for 
goods and services.

  As the operaƟ ng cycle cannot be idenƟ fi ed in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duraƟ on 
of 12 months. All Assets and LiabiliƟ es have been classifi ed as current or non-current as per the operaƟ ng 
cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘PresentaƟ on of Financial Statements’ and Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

  The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off  to the nearest two 
decimal lakhs except otherwise stated.
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 3.2 Fair Value Measurement
  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transacƟ on between market parƟ cipants at the measurement date under current market condiƟ ons.
  The Company categorizes assets and liabiliƟ es measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on 

the ability to observe inputs employed for such measurement:
  a) Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟ ve markets for idenƟ cal assets or liabiliƟ es.
  b) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or 

indirectly for the asset or liability.
   c) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs).
  The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This 

includes a fi nance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all signifi cant fair value measurements 
and regularly reviews signifi cant unobservable inputs, valuaƟ on adjustments and fair value hierarchy under 
which the valuaƟ on should be classifi ed.

 3.3 Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
  Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisiƟ on, construcƟ on and subsequent improvements 

thereto less accumulated depreciaƟ on and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose cost include deemed 
cost on the date of transiƟ on and comprises purchase price of assets or its construcƟ on cost including 
duƟ es and taxes, inward freight and other expenses incidental to acquisiƟ on or installaƟ on and adjustment 
for exchange diff erences wherever applicable and any cost directly aƩ ributable to bring the asset into the 
locaƟ on and condiƟ on necessary for it to be capable of operaƟ ng in the manner intended for its use. Interest 
on Borrowings uƟ lised to fi nance the construcƟ on of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of the 
asset unƟ ll such Ɵ me that the asset is ready for its intended use.

  Parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment  having diff erent useful lives and material value and 
subsequent expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement or 
other factors are accounted for as separate components.

  Property, Plant and Equipment includes spare, stand by equipments and servicing equipments which 
are expected to be used for a period of more than twelve months and meet the recogniƟ on criteria of 
Plant,Property and Equipment. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefi ts embodied 
within the part will fl ow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of servicing and 
repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profi t and loss 
when incurred.

  Capital work in progress includes purchase price, import duty and any directly aƩ ributable cost of bringing 
the assets to their working condiƟ on, trial run expenses and interest aƩ ributable up to the date of 
installaƟ on. Such items are classifi ed to the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment when 
gets completed and are ready for intended use.

 3.4 DepreciaƟ on methods, esƟ mated useful lives and residual value
  DepreciaƟ on on Property, Plant and equipment commences when the assets are ready for their intended 

use.
  DepreciaƟ on on Property, Plant and Equipment  is provided as per the useful life specifi ed under Schedule II 

of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight line method except at Rudrapur unit where depreciaƟ on is provided 
on wriƩ en down value method. Subsequent addiƟ ons to the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment are 
depreciated over the remaining life of mother asset. 

  Leasehold Land held under fi nance lease are depreciated on a straight line basis over their lease terms.
  No depreciaƟ on is charged on Freehold land.
  The esƟ mated useful life of the tangible assets considered for providing depreciaƟ on are as follows:

Category Useful Life in years
Factory Buildings 30
Other than factory Building 60
Plant and Equipment 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8-10
Offi  ce Equipment 5

  The residual value of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has been kept at 5 percent or less of the cost 
of the respecƟ ve assets.
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  DepreciaƟ on methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
reporƟ ng date.

 3.5 Intangible Assets
  Intangible assets are stated at cost comprising of purchase price inclusive of duƟ es and taxes less accumulated 

amount of amorƟ zaƟ on and impairment losses. Such assets, are amorƟ sed over the useful life using straight 
line method and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indicaƟ on of the same.

  Accordingly, cost of computer soŌ ware packages are amorƟ zed over a period of 5 years on a straight line 
basis.

  AmorƟ saƟ on methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
reporƟ ng date.

 3.6 DerecogniƟ on of Tangible and Intangible assets
  An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible assets is de-recognised upon disposal or 

when no future economic benefi ts are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or reƟ rement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment  is determined as the diff erence between 
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profi t and 
Loss.

 3.7 Leases
  Leases are classifi ed as fi nance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanƟ ally all the risks and 

rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company. All other leases are classifi ed as operaƟ ng 
leases.

  Finance leases are capitalized at the incepƟ on of the lease at lower of its fair value and the present value of 
the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount. Any iniƟ al direct costs of 
the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset.  Each lease payments are apporƟ oned between 
fi nance charge and reducƟ on of the lease liability. The fi nance charge is allocated to each period during the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding amount of the liabiliƟ es.

  Payments made under operaƟ ng leases are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease unless the lease arrangements are structured to increase in line with expected general infl aƟ on or 
another systemaƟ c basis which is more representaƟ ve of the Ɵ me paƩ ern of the benefi ts availed. ConƟ ngent 
rentals, if any, arising under operaƟ ng leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

 3.8 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets
  Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. In case events and 

circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss 
is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging 
to Cash GeneraƟ ng Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of assets fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the esƟ mated 
future cash fl ows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.

  Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment 
at each reporƟ ng period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. 
In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the 
carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciaƟ on, had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years.

 3.9 Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟ es
  Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟ es (fi nancial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
  Financial assets and fi nancial liabiliƟ es are iniƟ ally measured at fair value. TransacƟ on costs that are directly 

aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on or issue of fi nancial assets and fi nancial LiabiliƟ es (other than fi nancial assets 
and fi nancial liabiliƟ es at fair value through profi t or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 
the fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabiliƟ es, as appropriate, on iniƟ al recogniƟ on. TransacƟ on costs directly 
aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on of fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabiliƟ es at fair value through profi t or loss are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profi t and Loss.

  The classifi caƟ on of fi nancial instruments whether to be measured at AmorƟ zed Cost, at Fair Value through 
Profi t and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the 
objecƟ ve and contractual terms to which they relate. Classifi caƟ on of fi nancial instruments are determined 
on iniƟ al recogniƟ on.

  (i) Cash and cash equivalents 
   All highly liquid fi nancial instruments, which are readily converƟ ble into determinable amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignifi cant risk of change in value and are having original maturiƟ es 
of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash 
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equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
  (ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
   Financial Assets held within a business whose objecƟ ve is to hold these assets in order to collect 

contractual cash fl ows and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specifi ed dates to 
cash fl ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are 
measured at amorƟ zed cost.

   The above Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟ es subsequent to iniƟ al recogniƟ on are measured at 
amorƟ zed cost using Eff ecƟ ve Interest Rate (EIR) method.

   The eff ecƟ ve interest rate is the rate that discounts esƟ mated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the Financial instruments or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

  (iii) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
   Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these fi nancial 

assets are held within a business whose objecƟ ve is achieved by both collecƟ ng contractual cash fl ows 
and selling fi nancial assets and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specifi ed dates 
to cash fl ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
Subsequent to iniƟ al recogniƟ on, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income. 

  (iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the fi nancial asset at iniƟ al 
recogniƟ on and interest consists of consideraƟ on for the Ɵ me value of money and associated credit 
risk.

  (v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
   Financial Instruments which do not meet the criteria of amorƟ sed cost or fair value through other 

comprehensive income are classifi ed as Fair Value through Profi t or loss. These are recognised at fair 
value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

  (vi) Impairment of financial assets
   A fi nancial asset is assessed for impairment at each Balance Sheet date. A fi nancial asset is considered 

to be impaired if objecƟ ve evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negaƟ ve eff ect on 
the esƟ mated future cash fl ows of that asset.

   The company measures the loss allowance for a fi nancial asset at an amount equal to the lifeƟ me 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that fi nancial instrument has increased signifi cantly since 
iniƟ al recogniƟ on. If the credit risk on a fi nancial instrument has not increased signifi cantly since iniƟ al 
recogniƟ on, the company measures the loss allowance for that fi nancial instrument at an amount 
equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

   However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relaƟ on to revenue from contracts with 
customers, the company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifeƟ me expected credit 
losses.

  (vii) Derecognition of financial instruments
   The Company derecognizes a fi nancial asset or a group of fi nancial assets when the contractual rights 

to the cash fl ows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the fi nancial asset and substanƟ ally all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

   On derecogniƟ on of a fi nancial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the 
diff erence between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideraƟ on received and 
receivable are recognized in statement of profi t and loss.

   On derecogniƟ on of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulaƟ ve gain or loss previously recognised 
in other comprehensive income is reclassifi ed from equity to profi t or loss as a reclassifi caƟ on 
adjustment.

   Financial liabiliƟ es are derecognized if the Company’s obligaƟ ons specifi ed in the contract expire or 
are discharged or cancelled. The diff erence between the carrying amount of the fi nancial liability 
derecognized and the consideraƟ on paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profi t and Loss.

 3.10 Inventories
  Inventories are valued at lower of the cost or esƟ mated net realisable value. Cost of Inventories is ascertained 

on weighted average/FIFO basis. Materials and other supplies held for use in the producƟ on of inventories 
are not wriƩ en down below cost, if the fi nished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to 
be sold at or above cost.

  Cost in respect of raw materials and stores and spares includes expenses incidental to procurement of the 
same. Cost of inventory comprises of purchase price, cost of conversion and other directly aƩ ributable 
costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their respecƟ ve present locaƟ on and condiƟ on. 
Borrowing costs are not included in the value of inventories.

  Inventories of scrap are valued at their respecƟ ve net realisable value.
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 3.11 Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons
  PresentaƟ on currency
  These fi nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the naƟ onal currency of India, which is the 

funcƟ onal currency of the company.
  TransacƟ ons and Balances:
  TransacƟ ons in foreign currencies are translated into the funcƟ onal currency at the exchange rates prevailing 

on the date of the transacƟ ons. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabiliƟ es at the year-end are 
translated at the year-end exchange rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate as at the date of transacƟ on. The 
loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange diff erences on seƩ lement of the foreign currency transacƟ ons 
during the year are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profi t and loss.

 3.12 Equity Share Capital
  An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company aŌ er 

deducƟ ng all of its liabiliƟ es. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount 
received in excess of par value is classifi ed as SecuriƟ es Premium.

  Costs directly aƩ ributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deducƟ on from equity, net of 
any tax eff ects.

 3.13 Provisions, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent Assets
  Provisions involving substanƟ al degree of esƟ maƟ on in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or 

construcƟ ve obligaƟ on as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an ouƞ low of resources 
and a reliable esƟ mate can be made of the amount of obligaƟ on. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operaƟ ng losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best esƟ mate of the consideraƟ on required to 
seƩ le the present obligaƟ on at the end of the reporƟ ng period, taking into account the risks and uncertainƟ es 
surrounding the obligaƟ on.

  ConƟ ngent liabiliƟ es are not recognized but are disclosed by way of notes to the fi nancial statements when 
there is a possible obligaƟ on arising from past events, the existence of which will be confi rmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or when there is a present obligaƟ on that arises from past events where it is either not probable 
that an ouƞ low of resources will be required to seƩ le the same or a reliable esƟ mate of the amount in this 
respect cannot be made.

  ConƟ ngent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts 
when an infl ow of economic benefi ts is probable.

  3.14 Employee Benefi ts
  Short term Employee benefi ts are accrued in the year services are rendered by the employees.
  Provident and Family Pension Fund:In accordance with the provisions of the Employee Provident Funds and 

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the company are enƟ tled to receive benefi ts with 
respect to provident fund, a defi ned contribuƟ on plan, in which both the company and employee contribute 
monthly to Provident Fund Scheme the Central Government/Trust at a determined rate.  The Company’s 
contribuƟ on is charged off  to the Statement of Profi t and Loss.

  Gratuity: Employee benefi ts under defi ned benefi t plans are determined at the close of each year at the 
present value of the amount payable by actuarial valuaƟ on techniques using the projected unit credit 
method. ContribuƟ ons under the scheme for defi ned benefi t under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, 
is determined on the basis of actuarial valuaƟ on and are funded to Deepak Industries Gratuity Fund and 
are recognized as year’s expenditure. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumpƟ ons are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements are 
not classifi ed to the statement of Profi t and Loss in subsequent periods. Other costs are recognized in the 
Statement of Profi t or Loss. BifurcaƟ on of liabiliƟ es into Current and Non current are done based on actuarial 
valuaƟ on report.

  Leave Encashment Benefi ts: Leave encashment benefi ts are payable to employees while in service, 
reƟ rement and on death while in service or on terminaƟ on of employment. With respect to accumulated 
leaves outstanding at the year-end, liability for leave are accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuaƟ on 
at the balance sheet date. The present value of such obligaƟ on is determined by the projected unit credit 
method as at the Balance Sheet date through which the obligaƟ ons are seƩ led. The resultant actuarial gains 
or losses on change in present value of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on or change in return of the plan assets is 
recognized as an income or expense in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. BifurcaƟ on of liabiliƟ es into Current 
and Non-current are done based on actuarial valuaƟ on report.



DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN No. L63022WB1954PLC021638

66

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

 3.15 Revenue RecogniƟ on
  a. Revenue from Operations
   Revenue is measured based on the consideraƟ ons specifi ed in a contract with a customer and excludes 

amounts collected on behalf of third parƟ es. The revenue from sales is recognised when control  
over a product or service has been transferred and /or products/services are delivered/provided to 
the customers. The delivery occurs when the product has been shipped or delivered to the specifi c 
locaƟ on as the case may be and the customer has either accepted the products in accordance with 
contract or the company has suffi  cient evidence that all the criteria for acceptance has been saƟ sfi ed. 
Returns, discounts and rebates collected, if any, are deducted there from sales.

   Sale of electricity is accounted for on delivery of electricity to grid/ Customers .
   Other Operating Revenue-Export Benefits :
   Export benefi ts arising on account of enƟ tlement for duty free imports are accounted for through 

import of materials. Other export benefi ts are accounted for as and when the ulƟ mate realisability of 
such benefi ts are established

  b. Other Income
   Interest, Dividend and Claims :
   Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Interest has been 

accounted using eff ecƟ ve interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted for as 
and when admiƩ ed or realised. Interest on overdue bills are accounted for on certainty of realisaƟ on.

 3.16 Borrowing Costs
  Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in connecƟ on with the borrowing of the funds. 

All borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss using the eff ecƟ ve interest method 
except to the extent aƩ ributable to qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE) which are capitalized to the 
cost of the related assets.

  A qualifying PPE is an asset, that necessarily takes a substanƟ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended 
use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange diff erences to the extent considered as an adjustment to 
the borrowing costs.

 3.17 Taxes on Income
  Income tax expense represenƟ ng the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is 

recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity 
or other comprehensive income.

  Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or 
recovered from the tax authoriƟ es, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substanƟ vely 
enacted by the end of the reporƟ ng period. 

  Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diff erences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliƟ es 
in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computaƟ on of taxable profi t. 
Deferred tax liabiliƟ es are generally recognized for all taxable temporary diff erences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognized for all deducƟ ble temporary diff erences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profi ts will be available against which those deducƟ ble temporary diff erences can be uƟ lized.

  Deferred tax liabiliƟ es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is seƩ led or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substanƟ vely enacted by the end of the reporƟ ng period.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporƟ ng period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that suffi  cient taxable profi ts will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be uƟ lized.

  Deferred tax assets include Minimum AlternaƟ ve Tax (MAT) measured in accordance with the tax laws in 
India, which is likely to give future economic benefi ts in the form of availability of set off  against future 
income tax liability and such benefi t can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic 
benefi t associated with same will be realized.

 3.18 Earnings Per Share
  Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profi t aƩ ributable to the equity holders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per share is computed by dividing the net profi t aƩ ributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all diluƟ ve 
potenƟ al equity shares.

 3.19 Segment ReporƟ ng
  OperaƟ ng segments are idenƟ fi ed and reported taking into account the diff erent risk and return, organisaƟ on 

structure and internal reporƟ ng system.
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4 CriƟ cal accounƟ ng judgments, assumpƟ ons and key sources of esƟ maƟ on and uncertainty
 The preparaƟ on of the fi nancial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires 

management to make esƟ mates, judgments and assumpƟ ons. These esƟ mates, judgments and assumpƟ ons 
aff ect the applicaƟ on of accounƟ ng policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟ es, the disclosures 
of conƟ ngent assets and liabiliƟ es at the date of the fi nancial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the period. AccounƟ ng esƟ mates could change from period to period. Actual results could diff er 
from those esƟ mates. Appropriate changes in esƟ mates are made as management becomes aware of changes in 
circumstances surrounding the esƟ mates. Diff erences between the actual results and esƟ mates are recognized in 
the year in which the results are known / materialized and, if material, their eff ects are disclosed in the notes to 
the fi nancial statements.

 ApplicaƟ on of accounƟ ng policies that require signifi cant areas of esƟ maƟ on, uncertainty and criƟ cal judgments 
and the use of assumpƟ ons in the fi nancial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumpƟ ons concerning 
the future and other key sources of esƟ maƟ on uncertainty at the Balance Sheet date, that have a signifi cant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabiliƟ es within the next fi nancial year are 
discussed below:

4.1 DepreciaƟ on / AmorƟ zaƟ on and Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible assets.
 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated/ amorƟ zed on Straight Line Basis/WriƩ en 

Down Value Basis over the esƟ mated useful lives (or lease term, if shorter) in accordance with Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013, taking into account the esƟ mated residual value, wherever applicable. The Company reviews 
the esƟ mated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciaƟ on / amorƟ zaƟ on 
and amount of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporƟ ng period. This reassessment may result in 
change esƟ mated in future periods.

 The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is objecƟ ve evidence 
that the assets are impaired. In such situaƟ on assets recoverable amount is esƟ mated which is higher of asset’s 
or cash generaƟ ng units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use the 
esƟ mated future cash fl ows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which refl ect the current assessment of 
Ɵ me value of money. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisaƟ ons are considered or 
otherwise in absence of such transacƟ ons appropriate valuaƟ ons are adopted. 

4.2 Arrangements containing leases and classifi caƟ on of leases
 The Company enters into service / hiring arrangements for various assets / services.  The determinaƟ on of lease and 

classifi caƟ on of the service /  hiring arrangement as a fi nance lease or operaƟ ng lease is based on an assessment 
of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s 
opƟ on to purchase and esƟ mated certainty of exercise of such opƟ on, proporƟ on of lease term to the asset’s 
economic life, proporƟ on of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of 
specialized nature of the leased asset.

4.3 Impairment allowances on trade receivables
 The Company evaluates whether there is any objecƟ ve evidence that trade receivables are impaired and 

determines the amount of impairment allowance as a result of the inability of the customers to make required 
payments. The Company bases the esƟ mates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of 
the trade receivables and historical write-off  experience. If the fi nancial condiƟ ons of the trade receivable were to 
deteriorate, actual write-off s would be higher than esƟ mated.

4.4 Income taxes
 Signifi cant judgment is required in determinaƟ on of taxability of certain income and deducƟ bility of certain 

expenses during the esƟ maƟ on of the provision for income taxes. 
4.5 Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on (DBO)
 CriƟ cal esƟ mate of the DBO involves a number of criƟ cal underlying assumpƟ ons such as standard rates of 

infl aƟ on, mortality, discount rate, anƟ cipaƟ on of future salary increases etc. as esƟ mated by Independent Actuary 
appointed for this purpose by the Management. VariaƟ on in these assumpƟ ons may signifi cantly impact the DBO 
amount and the annual defi ned benefi t expenses.

4.6 Provisions and ConƟ ngencies
 Provisions and liabiliƟ es are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future ouƞ low 

of funds resulƟ ng from past operaƟ ons or events and the amount of cash ouƞ low can be reliably esƟ mated. The 
Ɵ ming of recogniƟ on and quanƟ fi caƟ on of the liability requires the applicaƟ on of judgement to exisƟ ng facts and 
circumstances, which can be subject to change. 

 Management judgment is required for esƟ maƟ ng the possible ouƞ low of resources, if any, in respect of 
conƟ ngencies/claim/liƟ gaƟ ons/ against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending 
maƩ ers with accuracy.

 The carrying amounts of provisions and liabiliƟ es and esƟ maƟ on for conƟ ngencies are reviewed regularly and 
revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment

ParƟ culars Freehold 
Land

Leasehold 
Land 

(Refer 
Note No. 
5.1 and 
37.1 )

Factory 
Building

Plant and 
Equip-
ment

Furniture 
and Fix-

tures

Vehicles 
(Refer 

Note No. 
5. 2)

Offi  ce 
Equip-
ment 

Total

(A) Gross Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2017 1,994.51 119.24 1,111.03 12,943.77 62.73 149.64 108.66 16,489.58 
 AddiƟ on –   –   –   1,700.23 3.20 37.94 63.91 1,805.28 
 Disposals/Adjustments  –   –   –   102.07 –   4.79 –   106.86 
 As at March 31, 2018 1,994.51 119.24 1,111.03 14,541.93 65.93 182.79 172.57 18,188.00 
 AddiƟ on –   –   –   4,286.52 5.92 55.48 30.42 4,378.34 
 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   –   5.43 –   8.21 –   13.64 
 As at March 31, 2019 1,994.51 119.24 1,111.03 18,823.02 71.85 230.06 202.99 22,552.70 
(B) Accumulated DepreciaƟ on
As at March 31, 2017 –   1.49 56.75 2,030.73 9.96 23.83 25.39 2,148.15 
 Charge for the period –   1.49 54.15 2,079.35 9.19 25.09 29.89 2,199.16 
 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   –   71.08 –   1.33 –   72.41 
 As at March 31, 2018 –   2.98 110.90 4,039.00 19.15 47.59 55.28 4,274.90 
 Charge for the period –   1.49 51.80 2,009.25 9.42 28.18 37.05 2,137.19 
 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   –   0.61 –   5.14 –   5.75 
 As at March 31, 2019 –   4.47 162.70 6,047.64 28.57 70.63 92.33 6,406.34 
(C) Net Carrying Amount (A–B)
 As at March 31, 2018 1,994.51 116.26 1,000.13 10,502.93 46.78 135.20 117.29 13,913.10 
 As at March 31, 2019 1,994.51 114.77 948.33 12,775.38 43.28 159.43 110.66 16,146.36 

5.1 DepreciaƟ on with respect to Leasehold Land represent proporƟ onate amount amorƟ sed over the period of lease 
on a straight line basis.

5.2 Includes `174.30 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: ` 132.49 lakhs) acquired on Hire Purchase basis and under conƟ nued hire 
purchase agreement. Present liability for the same is ` 68.45 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: ` 61.55 lakhs) out of which 
` 29.85 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: ` 28.70 lakhs) is payable within one year.

5.3 Refer Note No. 18.1 and 23.1 to fi nancial statement in respect of charge created against borrowings.
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6 Intangible Assets

ParƟ culars  Computer SoŌ ware  Total 

(A) Gross carrying value

As at March 31, 2017 96.16 96.16 

 AddiƟ on 59.61 59.61 

 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   

 As at March 31, 2018 155.77 155.77 

 AddiƟ on –   –   

 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   

 As at March 31, 2019 155.77 155.77 

 (B) Accumulated AmorƟ saƟ on 

As at March 31, 2017 20.54 20.54 

 Charge for the period 36.47 36.47 

 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   

 As at March 31, 2018 57.01 57.01 

 Charge for the period 42.26 42.26 

 Disposals/Adjustments –   –   

 As at March 31, 2019 99.27 99.27 

 (C ) Net Block (A–B) –   –   

 As at 31st March 2018 98.76 98.76 

 As at 31st March 2019 56.50 56.50 

7. Non–current Investments

ParƟ culars Note 
No.

As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Investment in Preference Shares of Body Corporate
Designated at AmorƟ sed Cost, unquoted
50,00,000 Nos (March 31, 2018: 50,00,000 Nos)  3% Non-ConverƟ ble 
Non-cumulaƟ ve Redeemable Preference Share of `  10/- each fully  paid 
up of  M/s. Brua HydrowaƩ  Private Limited

100.85 91.04 

100.85 91.04 

7.1  Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment 100.85 91.04 

7.2 These Preference shares will have the maximum term of 20 years from the date of allotment (i.e. from 21st October 
2014 for fi rst 2000000 Preference Shares, 19th November 2014 for next 2000000 Preference Shares and 27th 
November 2014 for remaining 1000000 Preference Shares). However, these shares can be redeemed earlier at the 
opƟ on of the Company but not before 3 years from the date of allotment.

7.3 Refer Note 46 for informaƟ on about Fair Value Measurement.
7.4 ParƟ culars of investments as required in terms of secƟ on 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013, have been disclosed 

under note no. 7 above.
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8. Other Non Current Financial Assets

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
At AmorƟ sed Cost
Security Deposits

Considered Good 184.44 109.33 
Considered Doubƞ ul 0.88 1.41 
Less : Impairment allowances for doubƞ ul deposits 8.1 0.88 1.41 

Fixed Deposit with bank (having maturity more than one year) 8.2 2.10 –   
Interest Accrued on Deposits 0.08 –   

186.62 109.33 

8.1 Movement of Impairment allowances for doubƞ ul deposits

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.41 1.41 
Recognised/(Reversed) during the year (0.53) –   
Balance at the end of the year 0.88 1.41 

8.2 Includes amount kept as lien against:
ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 

2019 
 As at March 31, 

2018 
Bank Guarantee/LeƩ er of credit 2.10 -   

9. Other Non-current Assets

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Capital Advance 1,074.29 1,005.55 
Advance Tax including Tax Deducted at Source (Net of provisions) –   181.56 
Balance with Government AuthoriƟ es –   1.56 
Deferred loss on fair valuaƟ on of fi nancial instrument 318.65 364.62 

1,392.94 1,553.29 

10. Inventories (Valued at lower of cost or Net Realisable Value)

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Raw Materials  10.1 2,539.51 2,839.41 
Work in Progress 2,942.76 1,237.24 
Finished Goods  10.1 1,312.66 1,509.80 
Stores and Spares 1,507.75 1,320.90 
Scraps 1.57 1.95 

8,304.25 6,909.30 

ParƟ culars As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

10.1 Includes goods in transit in respect of
              -Finished Goods 8.50 –   
              -Raw Material 16.01 16.59 
10.2 Cost of inventories recognised as expense during the year 43,613.94 33,660.12 

10.3 Refer Note No. 18.1 and 23.1 to financial statement in respect of charge created against borrowings.
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11.  Current- Trade Receivables

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Trade Receivables-Unsecured 10,762.36 9,658.47 
Less: Allowance for bad and doubƞ ul trade receivables 11.2 153.13 153.13 

10,609.23 9,505.34 

11.1 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The ageing of trade 
receivables (Gross) are as follows:

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Within Credit Period 8,243.92 6,643.45 
1-180 days past due 1,037.05 1,507.74 
More than 180 days past due 1,481.39 1,507.28 
Total 10,762.36 9,658.47 

11.2 Movement of Impairment allowances for bad and doubƞ ul trade receivables

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Balance as at the beginning of the year 153.13 153.13 
Recognised/(Reversed) during the year –   –   
Balance at the end of the year 153.13 153.13 

11.3 Refer Note No.18.1 and 23.1 to fi nancial statement in respect of charge created against borrowings.
12.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
   (As cerƟ fi ed by the management)

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Balances with banks
In current account 84.73 34.99 
In Dividend account 12.1 145.77 145.77 
In Fixed Deposits (having original maturity of less than 3 months) 0.22 –   
Cash on hand 11.14 14.56 

241.86 195.32 

12.1 Represents amount credited  by Bank with respect to cancelled/unencashed demand draŌ  issued to shareholders 
in lieu of dividend declared in earlier years.

13. Other Bank Balances

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Fixed deposits with Banks (having maturity of more than 3 months 
and less than 12 months)

 13.1 8,517.40 14,307.02 

8,517.40 14,307.02 

13.1 Includes amount kept as lien against:

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Fixed deposits with Banks (having maturity of more than 3 months 
and less than 12 months)

 13.1 8,517.40 14,307.02 

8,517.40 14,307.02 
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13.1 Includes amount kept as lien against:

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Borrowings –   3,200.00 
Bank Guarantee/LeƩ er of credit 2.70 4.46 
Sales Tax/ VAT Authority 0.50 0.50 

14. Current- Other Financial Assets

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
At AmorƟ sed cost
Security Deposit
Considered good 52.31 45.19 
Considered doubƞ ul 0.53 –   
Less : Impairment allowances for doubƞ ul deposits 14.1 0.53 –   

52.31 45.19 
Interest accrued on deposits 273.18 562.00 
Advance to Employees 18.93 22.15 

344.42 629.34 
14.1 Movement of Impairment allowances for doubƞ ul Deposits

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Balance as at the beginning of the year –   –   
Recognised/(Reversed) during the year 0.53 –   
Balance at the end of the year 0.53 –   

15. Other Current Assets

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Advances other than capital advances
Advances against goods and services 432.47 434.67 
Balances with government authoriƟ es 255.48 130.66 
Prepaid expenses 20.76 40.48 
Deferred loss on fair valuaƟ on of fi nancial instruments 22.60 -   

731.31 605.81 
16. Equity Share Capital

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Authorised
53,00,000 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each 530.00 530.00 
(March 31, 2018: 53,00,000 Nos)
20,000 Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of   ` 100/- each 20.00 20.00 
(March 31, 2018: 20,000 Nos)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
39,56,433  Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 395.64 395.64 
(March 31, 2018: 39,56,433 Nos)

395.64 395.64 
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16.1  The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder 
of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. The dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, 
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of all preferen-
tial amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

16.2  The reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares and the amount of Equity Share Capital outstanding:

ParƟ culars Note No. Number of  
Equity Shares 

held

Equity Share 
Capital

(Amount in 
Lakhs) 

Balance as at April 1,2017  50,56,063  505.61 
Changes during the year 16.2.1  (10,99,630)  (109.97)
Balance as at March 31,2018  39,56,433  395.64 
Changes during the year  -   
Balance as at March 31,2019  39,56,433  395.64 

16.2.1The aggregate number of equitry shares bought back in immediately preceding last five years ended March 31 
2019: 1341662 equity shares (previous period of five years ended March 31 2018: 242032 equity shares).  

16.3  The Company does not have any Holding Company/Ultimate Holding Company.    

16.4  Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares:

ParƟ culars Note No. No. of Equity Shares held
 As at March 31, 

2019 
 As at March 31, 

2018 
Nandini Daga 8,70,625 8,70,625
Jalpaiguri Holdings Private Limited 6,18,312 6,18,312
Asha Devi Daga 6,04,806 6,04,806
Coplama Products Private Limited 5,24,600 5,24,600
Yashwant Kumar Daga 5,24,313 5,24,313
Pradip Kumar Daga 2,07,700 2,07,700
Navin Agro Industries Limited - 2,00,525

17. Other Equity

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Capital Reserve 17.2  35.36  35.36 
Capital RedempƟ on Reserve 17.3  134.17  134.17 
Retained earnings 17.4  26,373.47  21,698.16 

 26,543.00  21,867.69 

Note

17.1  Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in balances of reserve.

(` In lakhs)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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17.2 Capital Reserve

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Government Grant Received 35.36 35.36 
17.3 Capital RedempƟ on Reserve
 Capital RedempƟ on Reserve is created consequent to buy back of equity shares. This reserve shall be uƟ lised in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
17.4  Retained Earnings
 Retained earnings generally represent the undistributed profi t/amount of accumulated earnings of the company 

and includes remeasurement gain/losses on defi ned benefi t obligaƟ ons. This includes ` 77.42 Lakhs ( March 31, 
2018: ` 77.42 Lakhs) which is not available for distribuƟ on as these are represented by changes in carrying amount 
of Property, Plant and Equipment being measured at fair value in earlier years.

18. Borrowings
ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
At AmorƟ sed Cost
Secured 
Term Loan
From Banks  18.1  2,201.94 793.20 2,989.24 1,078.20 
Unsecured 
Sales Tax soŌ  loan  18.2 46.22 23.11 69.32 23.11 
Finance Lease ObligaƟ on
Liability for Lease  18.3 1.74 –   1.74 –   

2,249.90 816.31 3,060.30 1,101.31 

18.1 Term loan is secured by way of 1st hypothecaƟ on charge of on the enƟ re tangible fi xed assets of the company 
located at Kolkata and Rudrapur unit and also on plant and machinery purchased out of term loan for Kolkata, 
Faridabad and Bhagola unit and extension of equitable mortgage on factory land and buildings at Kolkata and 
Rudrapur unit of the company and is collaterally secured by 2nd hypothecaƟ on charge on enƟ re current assets 
(both exisƟ ng and future) of the company. Rate of interest being  1.15% above 1 year MCLR and is repayable at 
unamorƟ sed cost as follows:

Financial Year Amount in ` Lakhs
2019-2020 793.20 
2020-2021 1,003.20 
2021-2022 801.00 
2022-2023 406.00 
Total 3,003.40 

18.2 Unsecured Sales tax soŌ  loan at unamorƟ sed cost outstanding as on March 31, 2019 carries interest rate  9.25% 
with a rebate of 2% on Ɵ mely repayment and is repayable as follows:

Financial Year Amount in ` Lakhs
2019-2020 23.11 
2020-2021 23.11 
2021-2022 23.11 
Total 69.33 

18.3 As per the lease agreement, the Company is required to pay annual lease rental of ` 0.19 Lakhs Ɵ ll the lease 
period which is 90 years and contains renewal opƟ on. The fi nance lease obligaƟ on represents the present value of 
annualized lease payment over the lease period amounƟ ng to ` 1.74 lakhs (March 31 2018: ` 1.74 Lakhs)
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19. Other Non-Current Financial LiabiliƟ es

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

At AmorƟ sed Cost
External Development Charges 400.28 400.28 
Hire Purchase Liability - Secured 19.1 38.60 32.85 

438.88 433.13 
19.1 Secured by hypothecaƟ on of vehicles acquired there against. Current maturiƟ es of such Hire Purchase Liability is 

` 29.85 Lakhs (March 31 , 2018 Rs. 28.70 lakhs)
20. Non Current Provision

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Provision for employee benefi ts 45 179.19 164.55 
179.19 164.55 

21.  Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es
 The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabiliƟ es) presented in the Balance Sheet:

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Deferred tax assets 168.53 177.82 
Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (1,273.22) (1,260.60)
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(LiabiliƟ es) (1,104.69) (1,082.78)
21.1 Components of Deferred tax Assets/ (LiabiliƟ es) as at March 31, 2019 are given below:

ParƟ culars As at March 
31, 2018

 Charge/(credit) 
recognised in P/L 

 Charge/(Credit) 
recognised in Other 

Comprehensive Income 

As at March 
31, 2019

Deferred Tax Assets:
Fair valuaƟ on of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabiliƟ es (13.69) (6.31) –   (7.38)
Expense allowed on payment basis 191.51 15.60 –   175.91 
Total Deferred Tax Assets 177.82 9.29 –   168.53
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es:
Timing diff erence with respect to Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible assets

1259.27 10.33 1,269.60 

Remeasurement of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ ons 0.62 3.00 3.62 
Others 0.71 (0.71) –   
Total Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es 1260.60 9.62 3.00 1,273.22 
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) (1,082.78) 18.91 3.00 (1,104.69)

21.2 Components of Deferred tax Assets/ (LiabiliƟ es) as at March 31, 2018 are given below:

ParƟ culars As at 
April 1, 2017

 Charge/ (Credit) 
recognised in P/L 

 Charge/ (Credit) 
recognised in other 

comprehensive income 

 As at  
March 31, 

2018 
Deferred Tax Assets:
Fair valuaƟ on of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabiliƟ es (6.29) 7.40 (13.69)
Expense allowed on payment basis 189.48 (2.03) –   191.51 
MAT Credit EnƟ tlement 275.50 275.50 –   –   
Total Deferred Tax Assets 458.69 280.87 –   177.82 
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es:
Timing diff erence with respect to Property, Plant & 
Equipment and Intangible assets

1374.96 (115.69) –   1,259.27 

Remeasurement of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ ons 17.68 –   (17.06) 0.62 
Others 1.16 (0.45) 0.71 
Total Deferred Tax LiabiliƟ es 1393.80 (116.14) (17.06) 1,260.60 
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) (935.11) 164.73 (17.06) (1,082.78)
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22. Other Non-current LiabiliƟ es

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Liability for OperaƟ ng Lease 0.51 1.83 
0.51 1.83 

23. Current Borrowings

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Secured
From Banks
Working Capital Loan Repayable on demand 23.1 7,525.84 8,166.37 
Unsecured
Loan from Bodies Corporate 30.00 80.00 
Other Short term Borrowings(secured)(*) –   3,200.00 

7,555.84 11,446.37 

23.1 Secured on 1st pari-passu basis by way of hypothecaƟ on charge on enƟ re current assets including  Stocks and 
Receivables of the company and is collaterally secured on 2nd pari-passu basis by way of hypothecaƟ on on the 
enƟ re movable tangible fi xed assets of the company (both exisƟ ng and future) and also hypothecaƟ on on all 
mortgaged immovable properƟ es (factory land and building) of the company located at Kolkata, Faridabad and 
Rudrapur.

(*)From a bank (secured against pledge of fi xed deposits receipts) which has since been repaid.
24. Trade Payables

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 24.1 471.14 –   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and 
small enterprises

4,155.54 5,407.90 

24.2 4,626.68 5,407.90 

24.1 Disclosure of sundry creditors under Trade Payables is based on the informaƟ on available with the Company 
regarding the status of the suppliers as defi ned under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 
2006 (the Act). Disclosure requirement under SecƟ on 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 is given below:

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

(a) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounƟ ng year

471.14 –   
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(b)  The amount of the interest paid by the buyer in terms of secƟ on 
16 of MSMED Act (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
each accounƟ ng year.

–   –   

(c)  The amount of the interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment(which has been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specifi ed under the MSMED Act, 2006.

–   –   

(d)  The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of each accounƟ ng year.

–   –   

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, unƟ l such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose 
of disallowance of a deducƟ ble expenditure under secƟ on 23 of 
the MSMED, Act 2006.

–   –   

24.2 Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and condiƟ ons of the contract of purchase orders. The 
average credit period on purchases is 30 to 45 days.

25. Current- Other Financial LiabiliƟ es

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Financial LiabiliƟ es at amorƟ sed cost
Current maturiƟ es of Long-term debt 18 793.20 1,078.20 
Current maturiƟ es of Hire Purchase  Liability 19.1 29.85 28.70 
Current maturiƟ es of Sales Tax SoŌ  Loan 18 23.11 23.11 

Liability for capital goods
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 25.1
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprise and 
small enterprises

686.20 434.87 

Liability relaƟ ng to employees 195.15 144.37 
Unpaid Dividend 12.1 145.77 145.77 
Interest Accrued and  due 28.03 38.54 
Interest Accrued but not due 0.22 0.53 

1,901.53 1,894.09 

25.1  To the extent of informaƟ on available to the company, there are no outstanding balances with suppliers for capital 
goods as defi ned under “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” (the Act).

26.  Current- Other LiabiliƟ es

ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 
2019 

 As at March 31, 
2018 

Statutory dues (includes Goods and Services Tax, PF, ESI, Sales Tax/ 
VAT, CST etc.)

392.45 1,049.54 

Advance from Customers 936.12 1,140.73 
Others 78.73 155.68 

1,407.30 2,345.95 

27. Provisions
ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 

2019 
 As at March 31, 

2018 
Provision for employee benefi ts 45 221.67 272.78 
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221.67 272.78 

28. Current Tax LiabiliƟ es
ParƟ culars Note No.  As at March 31, 

2019 
 As at March 31, 

2018 
Provisions for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 24.98 –   

24.98 –   

29. Revenue From OperaƟ ons

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Sale of Products 51,314.54 40,776.47 
Other OperaƟ ng Revenue
Sale of Scrap 627.32 440.86 
Sale of Service 14.74 15.45 
Export IncenƟ ves 37.75 –   

51,994.35 41,232.78 

29.1 DisaggregaƟ on of Revenue
Revenue based on Business Segment

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Automobile gears 43,898.76 33,923.45 
Industrial gears 7,177.36 7,023.20 
Solar power 918.23 286.13 
Total 51,994.35 41,232.78 

Revenue based on Geography

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

 DomesƟ c 51,092.40 40,577.72 
 Export 901.95 655.06 
Total 51,994.35 41,232.78 

29.2 Goods and Service Tax (“GST”) has been implemented with eff ect from 1st July, 2017 and therefore, revenue from 
operaƟ ons for the year ended 31st March 2019 is net off  GST.  Revenue from OperaƟ ons and expenses for the 
period 1st April 2017 to 30th June 2017 included under the year ended 31st March 2018 being inclusive of Excise 
Duty are therefore not comparable.

30. Other Income

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest Income
On Bank Deposits and others 654.02 1,051.49 
On Financial assets measured at amorƟ sed costs 11.80 10.63 
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Other non-operaƟ ng income (net of expenses directly 
aƩ ributable to such income)
Profi t on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3.26 152.03 
LiabiliƟ es and Unclaimed Balances wriƩ en back 214.19 117.60 
Insurance and Other Claims 0.13 –   
Gain  on Foreign Currency transacƟ ons and translaƟ ons 2.29 3.91 
Cash Discount received 220.95 237.56 
Miscellaneous Income 63.93 61.85 

1,170.57 1,635.07 

31. Cost of Materials Consumed

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Opening Inventories 2,839.41 3,005.79 
Add : Purchase 24,819.60 17,915.63 

27,659.01 20,921.42 
Less: Closing Inventories 2,539.51 2,839.41 

25,119.50 18,082.01 
32. Changes in Inventories of fi nished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Opening Stock
Finished Goods 1,509.80 1,298.39 
Work in Progress 1,237.24 950.11 
Scrap 1.95 2.85 

2,748.99 2,251.35 
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods 1,312.66 1,509.80 
Work in Progress 2,942.76 1,237.24 
Scrap 1.57 1.95 

4,256.99 2,748.99 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories of fi nished goods, 
Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress 

(1,508.00) (497.64)

33. Employee Benefi ts Expense

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Salaries and  Wages 5,356.82 4,716.40 
ContribuƟ on to Provident and Other Funds 45 342.00 329.94 
Staff  Welfare Expenses 212.22 188.84 

5,911.04 5,235.18 
34.  Finance Costs

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Interest expense 997.59 1,079.41 
Interest Expense on Finance Lease 0.19 0.19 
Interest expenses on Income tax 22.22 –   
Other Borrowing Costs 0.27 38.85 

1,020.27 1,118.45 
35.  DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ saƟ on expense
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ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

DepreciaƟ on on tangible assets 5 2,137.19 2,199.16 
AmorƟ saƟ on on intangible assets 6 42.26 36.47 

2,179.45 2,235.63 

36. Other Expenses

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

ConsumpƟ on of Stores, Spare Parts and Packing Materials 4,625.54 3,186.64 
Power and Fuel 2,276.66 1,797.19 
Job Charges 2,614.23 2,034.31 
Repairs and Maintenance  to Buildings 60.74 66.23 
Repairs and Maintenance to  Machinery 1,160.26 1,274.32 
Solar Power 46.09 48.87 
Excise Duty paid and on stock –   907.78 
Brokerage and Commission on Sales 59.16 46.99 
Transport and Forwarding Expenses  727.47 601.57 
Rent 37.2 124.65 93.75 
Auditors' RemuneraƟ on 36.1 16.75 13.25 
AmorƟ saƟ on of deferred porƟ on of Financial instruments 23.41 23.37 
Miscellaneous Expenses 36.2 1,589.07 1,545.18 

13,324.03 11,639.45 
36.1  Details of Auditors’ RemuneraƟ on

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Audit Fees  10.00 10.50 
CerƟ fi caƟ on and other services 6.75 2.75 

36.1.1 16.75 13.25 
36.1.1 Includes Payment to Previous Auditors

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Audit Fees  –   0.50 
CerƟ fi caƟ on and other services –   –   

–   0.50 
36.2  Includes ` 2.40 lakhs (March 31, 2018 : 1.40 lakhs) on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Gross 

amount required to be spent by the company during the year ` 62.63 lakhs (March 31, 2018 :` 47.09 lakhs). Also 
refer Note 36.2.1 and Note 36.2.2

36.2.1   Amount spent during the year on:
ParƟ culars In Cash  Total yet to be paid 

in cash 
 Total 

ConstrucƟ on/acquisiƟ on of any assets Nil Nil Nil
On purpose other than (i) above 2.40 0.00 2.40

36.2.2 The head of expenses under which the company has incurred CSR expenditure during the current and previous 
year is on Health Care Services.

37.  Leases
37.1 Finance Lease disclosures
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 The leasehold land is located at Rudrapur, UƩ arakhand and has been classifi ed under fi nance lease having lease 
term for a period of 90 years and contains renewal opƟ on. The net carrying amount of the leasehold land is 
`114.77 lakhs (March 31, 2018 : ` 116.26 lakhs ).

Finance Lease LiabiliƟ es Minimum 
Lease Payments

 Present Value of Minimum 
Lease Payments 

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

Not later than one year  0.19  0.19 0.17 0.17
Later than one year and not later than fi ve years  0.94  0.94 0.63 0.63
Later than fi ve years 13.35  13.54 0.94 0.94

37.2 OperaƟ ng Lease disclosures
 The Company has certain operaƟ ng lease arrangements for offi  ce accommodaƟ ons etc. with tenure ranging from 

11 months to 6 years etc. Term of certain lease arrangements include escalaƟ on clause for rent on expiry of 36 
months from the commencement date of such lease and deposit / refund of security deposit etc. There are no 
restricƟ ons imposed by lease agreements. There are no sub-lease and all the lease are cancellable in nature. 
Expenditure incurred on account of rent during the year has been recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 
amounƟ ng to Rs. 124.65 lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 93.75 lakhs).

38. Tax Expenses-Current Tax

ParƟ culars Note No.  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Provision for current tax 2,430.00 1,624.74 
2,430.00 1,624.74 

38.1 Components of Tax Expense

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Current Tax 2,430.00 1,624.74 
Deferred Tax 18.91 164.73 
Total Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 2,448.91 1,789.47 

38.2  ReconciliaƟ on of Income tax expense for the year with accounƟ ng profi t is as follows :
 Taxable Income diff ers from ‘profi t before tax’ as reported in the statement of profi t and loss because of items of 

income or expense that are taxable or deducƟ ble in other years and items that are never taxable or deducƟ ble. 
Details in this respect are as follows :

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Profi t before tax 7,118.63 5,054.77 
Income tax expense calculated at 34.944% (34.608%) 2,487.53 1,749.35 
Add: Eff ect of Expenses that are not deducƟ ble in determining 
Taxable Profi t
Eff ect of Temporary diff erences  on account of Tax of earlier periods –   68.85 
Expenses not allowed for Tax Purposes 8.60 –   
Certain expenses to be allowed on payment basis –   27.98 
Eff ect of Fair ValuaƟ on of Financial Assets and Financial LiabiliƟ es –   7.40 
Less : Eff ect of expense/income that are deducƟ ble/not taxable in 
determing taxable profi t
Eff ect of Temporary diff erences  on account of Tax of earlier periods 9.48 –   
Expenses of earlier year allowed on payment basis 27.23 –   
Expenses not allowed for Tax Purposes –   52.86 
Eff ect of other adjustments 10.51 11.25 
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Income tax expense recognised in the statement of  profi t and loss 2,448.91 1,789.47 
The tax rate used for reconciliaƟ ons above is 30% as applicable for corporate enƟ Ɵ es on taxable profi ts under the Indian 
tax laws.

38.3 Income tax recognized in Other Comprehensive income

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Deferred tax charge on
Remeasurement gains of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on 3.00 (17.06)
 Income tax recognized in Other Comprehensive income 3.00 (17.06)

BifurcaƟ on of the income tax recognized in Other comprehensive 
income into :
Items that will be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss –   –   
Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss 3.00 (17.06)

38.4 Components of Other Comprehensive Income

ParƟ culars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Items that will not be reclassifi ed to statement of profi t or loss
Remeasurement of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on (net of tax) 5.59 (32.24)

5.59 (32.24)
39. ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt
Central Excise/Service Tax/Sales tax maƩ er under appeal 305.51 352.90
Income Tax maƩ ers under appeal 433.13 279.28

Interest on External Development Charges 22.03 18.98
Other Claims not acknowledged as debt 23.06 23.06

39.1 The Company’s pending liƟ gaƟ on comprises of claim against the Company and proceeding pending tax/statutory/
Government authoriƟ es. The Company has reviewed all its pending liƟ gaƟ ons and proceedings and has made 
adequate provisions, and disclosed the conƟ ngent liabiliƟ es, where applicable, in its Financial Statements. The 
Company does not expects the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its fi nancial posiƟ on. 
Future cash ouƞ lows in respect of above are dependent upon the outcome of   judgments / decisions.

Capital and Other Commitments

ParƟ culars Note No. As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Capital Commitment:
EsƟ mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for: net of advance  of Rs. 1074.29 lakhs 
(March 31, 2018: Rs. 1005.55 Lakhs )

2,877.41 3,243.55 

Other Commitment:
Future export obligaƟ on/commitments under import of capital goods 
at concessional rate of Custom Duty.

2,383.42 1,511.69 

40  Disclosure as required by Indian AccounƟ ng Standard (Ind AS) 37 Provisions, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent 
Assets
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 ConƟ ngent Assets
 A conƟ ngent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confi rmed only by 

the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
enƟ ty. During the normal course of business, unresolved claims remains outstanding. The infl ow of economic 
benefi ts, in respect of such claims cannot be measured due to uncertainiƟ es that surround the related events and 
circumstances.

41. Related party disclosure as idenƟ fi ed by the management in accordance with the Indian AccounƟ ng Standard 
(Ind AS) 24 on "Related Party Disclosures" are as follows :

(A) Names of related parƟ es and nature of relaƟ onship
(i) Key Managerial Personnel and their relaƟ ves
 (a)  Mr. Pradip Kumar Daga, Chairman cum Managing Director 
 (b)  Mr.Yashwant Kumar Daga,Vice-Chairman cum Joint Managing Director 
 (c)  Anand Prasad Agarwala-Independent Director
 (d)  Meera Dokania-Independent Director
 (e)  Sujit ChakravorƟ -Independent Director
 (f)  Smt. Asha Devi Daga-RelaƟ ve of the Director
 (g)  Smt. Nandini Daga-RelaƟ ve of the Director
 (h)  Niraj Agarwala-RelaƟ ve of the Director
 (i)  Amritesh Daga -RelaƟ ve of the Director
(ii) Enterprises over which any person decribed in (i) above is able to exercise signifi cant infl uence and with whom 

the Company has transacƟ on during the year.
 (a) Deepak Spinners Limited
 (b) Brua HydrowaƩ s Private Limited
 (c) Longview Tea Company Limited
 (d) Coplama Products Private Limited
 (e) Yashwant Kumar Daga (HUF)
 (f) Pradip Kumar Daga (HUF)
(iii) Post Employment Benefi t Plan
 (a)  Deepak Industries Provident Fund
 (b)  Deepak Industries Gratuity Fund
(iv) Aggregate amount of transacƟ ons with related parƟ es: (` In lakhs)

Nature of TransacƟ on Note 
No.

Name of Related Party For the year 
ended  March 

31, 2019

For the year 
ended  March 

31, 2018
(a)  Amount paid upon buyback of 

Equity shares
Longview Tea Company Limited –   111.00 
Coplama Products Private Limited –   92.79 
Asha Devi Daga –   824.60 
Nandini Daga –   623.10 
Yashwant Kumar Daga (HUF) –   77.50 
Pradip Kumar Daga (HUF) –   860.63 

(b)  RemuneraƟ on (included in 
Employee Benefi ts Expense)

Yashwant kumar Daga 77.28 69.89 

(c)  Siƫ  ng Fees Anand Prasad Agarwala 0.58 0.66 
Meera Dokania 0.54 0.62 
Sujit ChakravorƟ 0.50 0.58 
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Nature of TransacƟ on Note 
No.

Name of Related Party For the year 
ended  March 

31, 2019

For the year 
ended  March 

31, 2018
(d)  Commission Anand Prasad Agarwala 3.50 2.75 

Meera Dokania 3.50 2.75 
Sujit ChakravorƟ 3.50 2.75 

(e)  Professional Fees Anand Prasad Agarwala 0.92 0.17 
Niraj Agarwala 0.39 0.06 

(f)  Advance given and 
subsequently recovered

Sunil Ghiya 10.90 7.75 

(g) Sale of Solar Power Deepak Spinners Limited 192.97 265.92 
(h) Offi  ce Expenses (Rent, 

Telephone, Electricity, etc.)
Coplama Products Pvt. Ltd 2.21 1.94 

(i) ContribuƟ on to Employees 
Provident Fund Trust

 Deepak Industries Provident Fund 10.77 10.62 

(j)  ContribuƟ on to Gratuity Trust Deepak Industries Gratuity Fund 120.77 42.64 
(k)  Club Membership Fees Yashwant Kumar Daga 0.54 0.36 
(l)  Scholarship charges Amritesh Daga 84.88 33.08 

(v) Balance of related parƟ es are as follows :

Nature of TransacƟ on Note 
No.

Name of Related Party As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

a)  Salary Payable Yashwant kumar Daga 4.69 –   
(b) Closing value of Investment in 
Non CumulaƟ ve non ConverƟ ble 
Redeemable Preference Share

Brua HydrowaƩ s Private Limited 100.85 91.04 

(c)  Balance Receivable Deepak Spinners Limited 20.84 21.09 
(d) Payables to Trust created for Post 
Employment Benefi t Plans

 Deepak Industries Provident Fund 1.80 3.62 

Deepak Industries Gratuity Fund 164.72 213.21 

(vi) The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year are as follows:
 ParƟ culars Note 

No.
 As at March 31, 

2019 
 As at March 31, 

2018 
 Short–term employee benefi ts 77.28 69.89
 Post–employment benefi ts* –   –   
*Excluding contribuƟ on to gratuity and provident fund

Terms and condiƟ ons of transacƟ ons with related parƟ es 
The sales to and purchases from related parƟ es are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length 
transacƟ ons. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and seƩ lement occurs in cash. The 
Company has not provided any guarantee to related parƟ es towards their borrowing faciliƟ es. For the year ended March 
31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment allowances in respect of receivables relaƟ ng to amounts owed 
by related parƟ es (March 31, 2018 Rs. NIL). This assessment is undertaken each fi nancial year through examining the 
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fi nancial posiƟ on of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
(vii) The above related parƟ es informaƟ on is as idenƟ fi ed by the management and relied upon by the auditor.

42. Segment InformaƟ on

42.1 Basis for segmentaƟ on

 The Chief OperaƟ ng Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance and allocates resources based 
on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The CODM of the Company evaluates 
the segments based on their revenue growth, operaƟ ng income and return on capital employed. No operaƟ ng 
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the business segment of the Company.

 Management has determined the operaƟ ng segments based on the informaƟ on reviewed by the CODM for the 
purposes of allocaƟ ng resources and assessing performance. The Company has idenƟ fi ed three business segments 
viz. Automobile Gears, Industrial Gears and Solar Power and presented the same in the Financial Statements on a 
consistent basis. Revenues and expenses have been idenƟ fi ed to a segment on the basis of relaƟ onship to operaƟ ng 
acƟ viƟ es of the segment. Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a 
segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as "Unallocable".

 Segment Assets and Segment LiabiliƟ es represents assets and liabiliƟ es of respecƟ ve segments. Investments, Tax 
related assets/liabiliƟ es and other assets and liabiliƟ es that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis 
have been disclosed as "Unallocable".

Reportable Segment DescripƟ on of products/services
Automobile Gears The segment is engaged in manufacturing of tractor and Automobile gears and ShaŌ , 

Moped/Motor Cycle parts.
Industrial Gears The segment is engaged in manufacturing of helical gears, worm gear boxes and geared 

motors.
Solar Power The segment is engaged in generaƟ on and distribuƟ on of electricity.

42.2  InformaƟ on about reportable segments
 The following is an analysis of revenue and results from operaƟ ons by reportable segments:

ParƟ culars Automobile Gear Industrial Gears Solar Power  Unallocated Corporate  Total 

 2018-19  2017-18  2018-19  2017-18  2018-19  2017-18  2018-19  2017-18  2018-19  2017-18 
Revenue 
Sale and services to external customer 43,898.76 33,923.45 7,177.36 7,023.20 918.23 286.13 –   –   51,994.35 41,232.78 
Revenue from OperaƟ ons (Gross) 43,898.76 33,923.45 7,177.36 7,023.20 918.23 286.13 –   –   51,994.35 41,232.78 
Segment Results 6,891.86 5,678.00 (354.03) (969.64) 452.37 (158.69) –   –   6,990.20 4,549.67 
Unallocated Corporate Expenses( Net 
of unallocable income) 

–   –   –   –   –   –   (1,148.70) (1,623.55) (1,148.70) (1,623.55)

Finance Costs –   –   –   –   –   –   1,020.27 1,118.45 1,020.27 1,118.45 
Profi t Before Tax 6,891.86 5,678.00 (354.03) (969.64) 452.37 (158.69) 128.43 505.10 7,118.63 5,054.77 
Tax Expenses –   –   –   –   –   –   2,448.91 1,789.47 2,448.91 1,789.47 
Profi t AŌ er Tax 6,891.86 5,678.00 (354.03) (969.64) 452.37 (158.69) (2,320.48) (1,284.37) 4,669.72 3,265.30 
Segment Assets 35,977.73 36,034.28 7,947.32 9,032.03 2,117.59 2,505.25 –   46,042.64 47,571.56 
Unallocated Corporate Assets –   –   –   –   –   607.17 801.46 607.17 801.46 
Total Assets 35,977.73 36,034.28 7,947.32 9,032.03 2,117.59 2,505.25 607.17 801.46 46,649.81 48,373.02 
Segment LiabiliƟ es 5,751.16 10,183.56 12,451.08 14,293.29 140.92 292.95 –   –   18,343.16 24,769.80 
Unallocated Corporate LiabiliƟ es –   –   –   –   –   1,368.01 1,339.89 1,368.01 1,339.89 
Total LiabiliƟ es 5,751.16 10,183.56 12,451.08 14,293.29 140.92 292.95 1,368.01 1,339.89 19,711.17 26,109.69 
Capital Expenditure 3,936.40 2,065.24 4.19 96.98 –   –   0.42 0.51 3,941.04 2,162.73 
DepreciaƟ on/AmorƟ saƟ on 975.39 999.92 813.85 845.23 389.04 389.04 1.17 1.44 2,179.45 2,235.63 
Non Cash Expenses other than 
depreciaƟ on and amorƟ saƟ on 

–   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   –   
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Finance income and costs and fair value gains and losses on fi nancial instruments are not allocated to individual segments 
as the underlying instruments are managed at company level. Current Taxes, deferred taxes and certain fi nancial assets 
and liabiliƟ es are not allocated to those segments as they are also managed at company level. 
Capital Expenditure consists of addiƟ on to Property, Plant and  Equipment, Capital Work In Progress  and Intangible 
assets.
42.3 Geographical InformaƟ on

ParƟ culars  2018-19  2017-18 
Revenue by Geographical market
Sale of Products and Services
- DomesƟ c 51,092.40 40,577.72 
- Export 901.95 655.06 
Total 51,994.35 41,232.78 
Assets
Trade Receivable (Net of Impairment allowances for bad and doubƞ ul trade 
receivables)

- Within India 10,404.87 9,288.46 
- Outside India 204.36 216.88 
Total 10,609.23 9,505.34 

42.4 InformaƟ on about major customers
 Revenue in respect of automobile gear include sale to two public companies (March 31, 2018: three public 

companies) pertaining to the automobile secor which account for more than 10% in each case and ` 26353.36 
Lakhs (March 31,2018- ` 25806.64 Lakhs ) in aggregate of the total revenue of the company.

43. CalculaƟ on of Earning Per Share is as follows :

ParƟ culars  31st March, 
2019 

31st March, 
2018 

Net profi t for basic and diluted earnings per share as per Statement of 
Profi t and Loss (Rs. In Lakhs)

4,669.72 3,265.30 

Net profi t for basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs. In Lakhs) (a) 4,669.72 3,265.30 
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculaƟ on of basic and 
diluted earnings per share (Face value Rs. 10/- per share)
No of equity shares outstanding as on 39,56,433 39,56,433 
Weighted average number of equity shares considered in calculaƟ ng 
basic and diluted EPS

(b) 39,56,433 39,56,433 

Earnings per share (EPS) of Equity Share of ` 10 each :
Basic and Diluted  (a/b) (`) 118.03 82.53 

44. In the opinion of the management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realizaƟ on of current 
assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which they 
are stated in the Balance Sheet. The debit/credit balances of parƟ es are however, subject to confi rmaƟ on and 
adjustment, if any.

45. Post ReƟ rement Employee Benefi ts
 The disclosures required under Indian AccounƟ ng Standard 19 on  "Employee Benefi ts" (Ind AS - 19) are given 

below:
 (a) Defi ned ContribuƟ on Scheme

ParƟ culars For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

87

(` In lakhs)
ContribuƟ on to Defi ned ContribuƟ on Plan recognised as expense for the year 
are as under:
Employer’s ContribuƟ on to Provident Fund 85.74 83.51
Employer’s ContribuƟ on to Family Pension Fund 105.46 104.25

 The Honourable Supreme Court, has passed a decision on 28th February, 2019 in relaƟ on to inclusion of certain 
allowances within the scope of “Basic wages” for the purpose of determining contribuƟ on to provident fund 
under the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Company is awaiƟ ng further 
clarifi caƟ ons in this maƩ er in order to reasonably assess the impact on its fi nancial statements, if any. Accordingly, 
the applicability of the judgement to the Company, with respect to the period and the nature of allowances to be 
covered, and resultant impact on the past provident fund liability, cannot be reasonably ascertained, at present.

(b) Defi ned Benefi t Plan
 The company has a defi ned benefi t Gratuity plan. Every Employee who has completed fi ve years or more of service 

is enƟ tled to Gratuity on terms not less favorable than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
Company makes annual contribuƟ on of Gratuity to Gratuity Fund maintained by Trust created by the company for 
the scheme.

 The Company also extends benefi t of  compensated absences to the employee, whereby they are eligible to carry 
forward there enƟ tlement of earned leave for encashment upon reƟ rement/separaƟ on. This is an unfunded plan.

 The Company has a separate Provident Fund Trust (Funded), whereby all the employees covered under the said 
Trust are enƟ tled to benefi ts as per Provident Fund Act/Trust Deed. Any shorƞ all for the Trust is borne by Company, 
hence the same is treated as a defi ned benefi t scheme. ContribuƟ on to those provident funds amounƟ ng to ̀ 10.77 
Lakhs ( March 31, 2018 : 10.62 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in "Employee Benefi ts Expense" 
.Shorƞ all in the funds of ` 1.14 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: ` 0.92 Lakhs) towards such trustee funds to the extent of 
the informaƟ on available with the company has been provided.

 The employee's gratuity fund scheme managed by Deepak Industries Gratuity Fund is a defi ned benefi t plan. The 
present value of obligaƟ on is determined based on actuarial valuaƟ on using the Projected Unit Credit Method, 
which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to addiƟ onal unit of employee benefi t enƟ tlement and 
measures each unit seperately to build up the fi nal obligaƟ on.

Gratuity (Funded)
ParƟ culars For The Year 

Ended March 31, 
2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018
A . Change in fair value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ on : 

Present Value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ ons as at the beginning of the year 781.62 735.54 
Current Service Cost 67.34 65.44 
Interest Cost 57.30 52.56 
Benefi t Paid (74.93) (114.81)
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses –   –   
Remeasurements- Due to Financial AssumpƟ ons 4.08 (10.46)
Remeasurements- Due to Experience Adjustments (8.91) 53.35 
Liability at the end of the year 826.50 781.62 

B . Change in Fair Value of plan Assets :
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 568.41 600.46 
Interest Income 43.77 46.54 
ContribuƟ ons by the Employers 120.77 42.64 
Benefi t paid (74.93) (114.81)
Remeasurements- Return on Assets (excluding Interest Income) 3.76 (6.42)
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year 661.78 568.41 

C . Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet:
Present Value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ ons as at the end of the year 826.50 781.62 
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 661.78 568.41 

164.72 213.21 
D . Components of Defi ned Benefi t Cost

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Gratuity (Funded)
ParƟ culars For The Year 

Ended March 31, 
2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018
Current Service Cost 67.34 65.44 
Interest Cost 57.30 52.56 
Expected Return on Plan Assets (43.77) (46.54)
Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on remeasurement recognized in OCI –   –   
Total Defi ned Benefi t Cost recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 80.87 71.46 

E . Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements- Due to Financial AssumpƟ ons 4.08 (10.46)
Remeasurements- Due to Experience Adjustments (8.91) 53.35 
Remeasurements- Return on Assets (excluding Interest Income) (3.76) 6.42 
Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (8.59) 49.31 

F . Balance Sheet ReconciliaƟ on
Opening Net Liability 213.21 135.08 
Defi ned Benefi t Cost included in Profi t and Loss 80.87 71.46 
Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (8.59) 49.31 
Employers ContribuƟ on (120.77) (42.64)
Amount Recognised in Balance  Sheet 164.72 213.21 

G . Percentage allocaƟ on of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer/trust is as follows:
ParƟ culars As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 

2018
Equity –   –   
Bonds 96.29 94.40 
Other Current Assets 3.71 5.60 
Insurance policies –   –   

H . The Principal Actuarial AssumpƟ ons as at Balance Sheet  date are set out as below:
Summary of Financial AssumpƟ on
Discount Rate 7.70% 7.75%
Salary EscalaƟ on- First Five Years 6.00% 6.00%
Salary EscalaƟ on- AŌ er Five Years 6.00% 6.00%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.70% 7.75%
Summary of Demographic AssumpƟ ons
Mortality Rate IALM (2006-08) Table
Disability Rate(a % of above mortality rate) 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal Rates 1% to 8% 1% to 8%
ReƟ rement Age 58 Years 58 Years
Average future service 19.74 19.64

I. SensiƟ vity analysis
ParƟ culars Change in 

AssumpƟ ons
For The Year 

Ended March 31, 
2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018
Salary EscalaƟ on 1% 886.24 836.13 
Salary EscalaƟ on -1% 0.31 733.01 
Withdrawal Rates 1% 832.25 786.93 
Withdrawal Rates -1% 820.02 775.64 
Discount Rate 1% 775.33 734.39 
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Discount Rate -1% 884.58 835.10 
The above sensiƟ vity analysis is based on a change in an assumpƟ on while holding all other assumpƟ ons constant. In 
pracƟ ce, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumpƟ ons may be correlated. When calculaƟ ng the 
sensiƟ vity of the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on to signifi cant actuarial assumpƟ ons the same method (projected unit credit 
method) has been applied as when calculaƟ ng the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on recognised within the Balance Sheet.

J. EsƟ mate of expected benefi t payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)
ParƟ culars Gratuity
01 Apr 2019 to 31 Mar 2020 152.64 
01 Apr 2020 to 31 Mar 2021 176.72 
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 71.79 
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 91.53 
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 82.08 
01 Apr 2024 Onwards 1,124.10 

K. ParƟ culars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Average number of people employed 986 994

Compensated absences (Unfunded)
Other Long Term Employee Benefi t

ParƟ culars For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018
A . Change in fair value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ on : 

Present Value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ ons as at the beginning of the year 187.30 168.95 
Current Service Cost 15.60 23.82 
Interest Cost 13.94 12.66 
Benefi t Paid (12.53) (11.07)
Remeasurements- Due to Financial AssumpƟ ons 0.62 (2.92)
Remeasurements- Due to Experience Adjustments (7.26) (4.14)
Liability at the end of the year 197.67 187.30 

B . Change in Fair Value of plan Assets :
ContribuƟ ons by the Employers 12.53 11.07 
Benefi t paid (12.53) (11.07)
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year –   –   

C . Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet:
Present Value of Defi ned Benefi t ObligaƟ ons as at the end of the year 197.67 187.30 
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year –   –   

197.67 187.30 
D . Components of Defi ned Benefi t Cost

Current Service Cost 15.60 23.82 
Interest Cost 13.94 12.66 
Total Defi ned Benefi t Cost recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 29.54 36.48 

E . Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements- Due to Financial AssumpƟ ons 0.62 (2.92)
Remeasurements- Due to Experience Adjustments (7.26) (4.14)
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Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (6.64) (7.06)
F . Balance Sheet ReconciliaƟ on

Opening Net Liability 187.30 168.95 
Defi ned Benefi t Cost included in Profi t and Loss 29.54 36.48 
Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (6.64) (7.06)
Employers ContribuƟ on (12.53) (11.07)
Amount Recognised in Balance  Sheet 197.67 187.30 

G . Percentage allocaƟ on of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer/trust is as follows:
ParƟ culars As at March 31, 

2019
As at March 31, 

2018
Equity  N.A.  N.A. 
Bonds  N.A.  N.A. 
Other Current Assets  N.A.  N.A. 
Insurance policies  N.A.  N.A. 

H . The Principal Actuarial AssumpƟ ons as at Balance Sheet  date are set out as below:
Summary of Financial AssumpƟ on
Discount Rate 7.70% 7.75%
Salary EscalaƟ on- First Five Years 6.00% 6.00%
Salary EscalaƟ on- AŌ er Five Years 6.00% 6.00%
Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.
Summary of Demographic AssumpƟ ons
Mortality Rate IALM (2006-08) Table
Disability Rate(a % of above mortality rate) 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal Rates 1% to 8% 1% to 8%
ReƟ rement Age 58 Years 58 Years
Average future service 19.73 19.64

I. SensiƟ vity analysis
ParƟ culars Change in 

AssumpƟ ons
For The Year 

Ended March 31, 
2019

For The Year 
Ended March 31, 

2018
Salary EscalaƟ on 1% 211.93 200.46 
Salary EscalaƟ on -1% 185.14 175.74 
Withdrawal Rates 1% 199.38 188.92 
Withdrawal Rates -1% 195.74 185.49 
Discount Rate 1% 185.44 175.94 
Discount Rate -1% 211.71 200.33 

The above sensiƟ vity analysis is based on a change in an assumpƟ on while holding all other assumpƟ ons constant. In 
pracƟ ce, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumpƟ ons may be correlated. When calculaƟ ng the 
sensiƟ vity of the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on to signifi cant actuarial assumpƟ ons the same method (projected unit credit 
method) has been applied as when calculaƟ ng the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on recognised within the Balance Sheet.

J. EsƟ mate of expected benefi t payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)
ParƟ culars Leave
01 Apr 2019 to 31 Mar 2020 52.88 
01 Apr 2020 to 31 Mar 2021 55.43 
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 14.10 
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 22.82 
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 16.44 
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01 Apr 2024 Onwards 271.78 

K. ParƟ culars  As at
March 31, 2019

 As at
March 31, 2018

Average number of people employed 986 994

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The accounƟ ng classifi caƟ on of each category of fi nancial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as 

follows:-

ParƟ culars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets (Current and Non-Current)
Financial Assets measured at AmorƟ sed Cost
Trade receivables 10,609.23 10,609.23 9,505.34 9,505.34 
Cash and cash equivalents 241.86 241.86 195.32 195.32 
Other Bank Balances 8,517.40 8,517.40 14,307.02 14,307.02 
Other Financial Assets 531.04 531.04 738.67 738.67 
Unquoted Non-ConverƟ ble Non-cumulaƟ ve 
Redeemable Preference Instruments 

100.85 100.85 91.04 91.04 

Financial LiabiliƟ es (Current and Non-Current) 
Financial LiabiliƟ es measured at AmorƟ sed Cost 
Borrowings 10,622.05 10,622.05 15,607.98 15,607.98 
Trade Payables 4,626.68 4,626.68 5,407.90 5,407.90 
Other Financial LiabiliƟ es 1,524.10 1,524.10 1,080.14 1,080.14 

Fair ValuaƟ on Techniques 
The fair values of the fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transacƟ on between market parƟ cipants at the measurement date. 
 The following methods and assumpƟ ons were used to esƟ mate the fair values: 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, current trade receivables and payables, other 
current fi nancial liabiliƟ es and assets approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these 
instruments. The management considers that the carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabiliƟ es recognised 
at nominal cost/amorƟ sed cost in the fi nancial statements approximate their fair values.
A substanƟ al porƟ on of the company's long–term debt has been contracted at fl oaƟ ng rates of interest, which are reset 
at short intervals. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying value subject to adjustments 
made for transacƟ on cost. In respect of fi xed interest rate borrowings, fair value is determined by using discount rates 
that refl ects the present borrowing rate of the company.
Fair value of Investment in unquoted Non CumulaƟ ve Non ConverƟ ble Redeemable Preference Share and security 
deposit which can not be measured based on quoted prices in acƟ ve market have been determined on Eff ecƟ ve interest 
Rate method(EIR) and diff erenƟ al thereof has been recognised as deferred loss/gain and to be recognised to profi t and 
loss over the tenure of the instrument .
FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
The Company’s fi nancial liabiliƟ es comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company’s fi nancial 
assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks including Fixed Deposits with Banks, 
trade receivables and other receivables, Deposits and Investment.
The Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Board of Director reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which 
are summarised below:
MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as 
equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments aff ected by market risk includes borrowings, investments, 
trade payables and  trade receivables.
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Interest rate risk
The company's exposure in market risk relaƟ ng to change in interest rate primarily arises from fl oaƟ ng rate borrowing 
with banks and fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons. Interest rate risks is measured by using the cash fl ow sensiƟ vity for changes in 
variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the company's cash fl ows as well as 
costs. Borrowings at fi xed interest rate exposes the company to the fair value interest rate risk.
Further there are deposits with banks which are for short term period are exposed to interest rate risk, falling due for 
renewal. 
With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of the borrowing cost on fl oaƟ ng rate 
porƟ on of loans and borrowings.

Nature of Borrowing Increase in basis 
points

As at March 31, 
2019

As at March 31, 
2018

Rupee Loan 0.50 45.33 50.07 
A decrease in 0.50 basis point in Rupee Loan would have an equal and opposite eff ect on the Company's fi nancial 
statements
Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of an exposure will fl uctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s trade receivables and trade payables.
The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fl uctuaƟ on by assessing its exposure to exchange rate  risks.
The carrying amount of various exposures to foreign currency as at the end of the reporƟ ng period are as follows :

ParƟ culars As at March 31, 2019
Trade 

Receivables
Trade Payables Other Current 

LiabiliƟ es
Net Assets / 
(liabiliƟ es)

SGD 44.65 –   –   44.65 
STP 7.88 –   –   7.88 
USD 150.77 17.80 –   132.97 
EURO –   353.71 10.66 (364.37)

Total 203.30 371.51 10.66 (178.87)

ParƟ culars As at March 31, 2018
Trade 

Receivables
Trade Payables Other Current 

LiabiliƟ es
Net Assets / 
(liabiliƟ es)

SGD 32.03 –   –   32.03 
STP 7.88 –   –   7.88 
USD 175.77 7.68 0.38 167.71 
GBP –   1.91 –   (1.91)
EURO 1.20 28.49 59.66 (86.95)

Total 216.88 38.08 60.04 118.76 

SensiƟ vity analysis resulƟ ng in profi t or loss mainly from SGD, STP, USD,GBP and EURO denominated receivables and 
payables are as follows

ParƟ culars  For The  Year Ended
31st March, 2019 

 For The  Year Ended
31st March, 2018 

Receivables (Weaking of INR by 5%)
SGD 2.23 1.60 
STP 0.39 0.39 
USD 7.54 8.79 
EURO –   0.06 

Payables (Weaking of INR by 5%)
SGD –   –   



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

93

(` In lakhs)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

STP –   –   
USD (0.89) (0.38)
GBP –   (0.10)
EURO (1.00) (1.42)
JPY –   –   

Figures in bracket represents loss
A 5% stregthening of INR would have an equal and opposite eff ect on the Company's fi nancial statements.
Commodity Price Risk: 
The Company doesn't have any derivaƟ ve assets and liabiliƟ es. This miƟ gate the Company from commodity price risk.
CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligaƟ ons under a fi nancial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a fi nancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es primarily trade receivables 
and other fi nancial assets including deposits with Bank.  Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The 
Company periodically assesses the fi nancial reliability of customers, taking into account the fi nancial condiƟ on, current 
economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable. 
The Company’s exposure and credit raƟ ngs of its counterparƟ es are conƟ nuously monitored and the aggregate value of 
transacƟ ons is reasonably spread amongst the counterparƟ es.
The carrying amount of respecƟ ve fi nancial assets recognised in the fi nancial statements, (net of impairment losses), 
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. The concentraƟ on of credit risk is limited due to the 
customer base being large and unrelated.
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its esƟ mate of incurred losses in respect of 
trade and other receivables. Receivables from customers are reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management 
and appropriate impairment allowances for doubƞ ul debts are made to the extent recovery there against has been 
considered to be remote.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Cash and cash equivalents, investment and deposits with banks are neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash 
equivalents with banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking insƟ tuƟ ons.
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
Trade receivables amounts that are past due at the end of the reporƟ ng period against which no credit losses has been 
expected to arise except those which are impaired.
LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its fi nancial obligaƟ ons. The objecƟ ve of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain suffi  cient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 
Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital loans from  banks. The Company invests its surplus 
funds in bank fi xed deposit  which carry no market risk. The company relies on borrowings and internal accruals to 
meet its fund requirement. The current commiƩ ed line of credit are suffi  cient to meet its short to medium term fund 
requirement.
Liquidity table
The following tables detail the Company’s contractual maturity for its non derivaƟ ve fi nancial liabiliƟ es with agreed 
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fl ows of fi nancial liabiliƟ es based on 
the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash fl ows 
as at balance sheet date:
Interest rate and currency of borrowings
As at March 31, 2019

ParƟ culars Total Borrowings FloaƟ ng Rate 
Borrowings

Fixed Rate 
Borrowings

Weigted average 
interest rate

INR 10,622.05 10,522.72 99.33 7.60%
Interest rate and currency of borrowings
As at March 31, 2018
ParƟ culars Total Borrowings FloaƟ ng Rate 

Borrowings
Fixed Rate 
Borrowings

Weigted average 
interest rate

INR 15,620.40 15,447.97 172.43 8.55%

Maturity Analysis of unamorƟ sed Financial LiabiliƟ es
As at March 31, 2019
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ParƟ culars Carrying 
Amount

On Demand Less than 6 
months

6 to 12 
months

> 1 year Total 

Borrowings 10,628.57 7,555.84 419.71 396.60 2,256.42 10,628.57 
Other Financial LiabiliƟ es 1,524.10 -   941.18 144.05 438.87 1,524.10 
Trade and other payables 4,626.68 -   4,626.68 -   -   4,626.68 

As at March 31, 2018
ParƟ culars  Carrying 

Amount 
On Demand Less than 6 

months
6 to 12 
months

> 1 year Total 

Borrowings 15,620.40 11,446.37 291.11 810.20 3,072.72 15,620.40 
Other Financial LiabiliƟ es 1,080.14 -   632.33 14.68 433.13 1,080.14 
Trade and other payables 5,407.93 -   5,407.93 -   -   5,407.93 

The company has current fi nancial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures that 
it has suffi  cient cash on demand to meet expected operaƟ onal expenses. 
The company relies on operaƟ ng cash fl ows to meet its need for funds and ensures that it does not breach any fi nancial 
covenants sƟ pulated by the lender.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
a. The primary objecƟ ve of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital 

raƟ o in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company’s objecƟ ve when managing 
capital is to safeguard their ability to conƟ nue as a going concern so that they can conƟ nue to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefi ts for other stake holders. The Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base 
to ensure independence, security, as well as a high fi nancial fl exibility for potenƟ al future borrowings, if required 
without where the risk profi le of the Company. 

 The gearing raƟ o are as follows :

ParƟ culars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 10,622.05 15,607.98 
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 241.86 195.32 
Net Debt 10,380.19 15,412.66 
Equity 26,938.64 22,263.33 
Equity and Net Debt 37,318.83 37,675.99 
Gearing RaƟ o 0.28 0.41 

b. Proposed Dividend
 For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Board of Directors has proposed a fi nal dividend of ` 10 per share (100 

%) be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual 
General MeeƟ ng and has not been included as a liability in these fi nancial statements. The proposed equity 
dividend is payable to all holders of fully paid equity shares. The total esƟ mated equity dividend to be paid is 
` 395.64 lakhs and the dividend distribuƟ on tax thereon amounts to ` 81.33 lakhs.

47. Previous year fi gures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confi rm with fi nancial statements.
48.  These fi nancial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 29, 2019  for 

issue to the shareholders for their adopƟ on.

As per our report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For  Lodha & Co. P K Daga  Y K Daga
Chartered Accountants (DIN: 00040692)  (DIN: 00040632)
Firm Regn No. 301051E Chairman-Cum-Managing Director  Vice Chairman-Cum-joint-Managing Director

H K  Verma S ChakravorƟ  A P Agarwalla  Meera Dokania
Partner  (DIN: 00066344) (DIN: 00312652)  (DIN: 07094376) 
Membership No. 055104
Kolkata Maneesh Khanna  V D Mall
May 29, 2019 Chief Financial Offi  cer  Company Secretary



ATTENDANCE SLIP
Only Shareholders or the Proxies will be allowed to attend the meeting.

D.P.ID* L.F.No.

Client ID* No. of Shares held

I/ We hereby record my/our presence at the 64th Annual General meeƟ ng of the Company being held on Tuesday, the 
17th  September, 2019 at 2.00 P.M.at 16, Hare Street, Kolkata-700 001 

Signature of Shareholder(s)

1. .........……......………..….........………… 2. ….............……….........….......…………….  3. …............................………………………….

Signature of the Proxy holder …………..............................……………… 
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
Note: Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and 
hand it over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN : L63022WB1954PLC021638
Name of the Company : DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered Office : 16, Hare Street, Kolkata-700 001

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Email ID

Folio No./Client ID

DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of …………………………………….. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint.

(1) Name………………………….......…..……....…… Address…………………........................................................…...........…………

 E-mail ID …………………..........………….………Signature ……………....................................................…….  or failing him.

(2) Name………………………….......…..…....……… Address…………………..................................................................….…………

 E-mail ID …………………..........………….………Signature ……………....................................................…….  or failing him.

(3) Name………………………….......…......………… Address…………………..................................................................….…………

 E-mail ID …………………………......….....……… Signature …………….......................................................…….....................

as my/our proxy to aƩ end and vote (on a poll) for me/ our behalf at the 64th Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company 
to be held on Tuesday, the 17th  September, 2019 at 16, Hare Street, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 001 and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resoluƟ ons as are indicated below:

DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN No.L63022WB1954PLC021638

Registered office:
16, Hare Street,  Kolkata-700 001
Email: secretary@dil-india.com

Phone No.033-2248-2391/2/3  Fax No. 033-2243-9382



Resolu-
Ɵ on No

RESOLUTIONS No. of 
Shares

I/We assent 
to the 

ResoluƟ on
(FOR)

I /We dissent 
to the 

ResoluƟ on
(AGAINST)

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Ordinary ResoluƟ on to Consider and adopt Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st 

March, 2019 and statement of the Profi t & Loss Account, together with  Reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors of the Company thereon.

2 Ordinary resoluƟ on for declaraƟ on of dividend on equity shares for the year 
2018-19

3 Ordinary ResoluƟ on for re-appointment of Shri Pradip  Kumar Daga who reƟ res 
by rotaƟ on.
SPECIAL BUSINESS

4 Ordinary ResoluƟ on under SecƟ on 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
approval of the remuneraƟ on of the Cost Auditors.

5 Special resoluƟ on for the conƟ nuaƟ on and re-appointment of Shri Sujit 
ChakravorƟ , (DIN No.00066344) for a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years from 
01/10/2019 to 30/09/2024.

6 Special resoluƟ on for the re-appointment of Shri Anand Prasad Agarwalla, 
(DIN No.00312652) for a term of fi ve consecuƟ ve years from 01/10/2019 to 
30/09/2024.

7 Special resoluƟ on for the payment of Commission to the non-execuƟ ve directors 
of the Company within the limits of secƟ on  197 of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
amended.

Signed this ………………....………… day of ………........…………… 2019

Signature of Shareholder: ………………………………………......………..

Signature of Proxy holder(s): …………………………………………………
Note: 
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be completed and deposited at the Registered office of the Company, not less 

than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
2. For the resoluƟ ons, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the NoƟ ce of the Annual General MeeƟ ng.
3. It is opƟ onal to put a ‘x’ in the appropriate column against the ResoluƟ ons indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ 

column blank against any or all ResoluƟ ons, your Proxy will be enƟ tled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
4. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.
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If undelivered, please return to :
DEEPAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
16, HARE STREET, KOLKATA ͳ 700 001


